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We give people the freedom
to live in sustainable, vibrant
eighbourhoods. Places that bring
people together in communities
where evervone can belong.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Ata glance

VIBRANT COMMUNITIE
WHERE EVERYONE
CAN BELONG

What wedo

» L]
Get Living 15 a leading prov.der of high gquanty hormes for rent, Olll' VISION
ramrtted t0 creating neighhniirhoodds where people can thrve, . .
come together ard know trey beiong Ve are for peopic who AL Get L!Vlﬂg. 1t's our

value not just a great home 'n a distinctive neighbourhood, but also
the ocpportunrity %o connect w'th athers in a welcoming commurmity

vision to offer people

We create except onal neighbourtoods ard we build ther at a better Way tO ll\/e and
scale. Frop desigr to deiivery we are rsprea by br nging paope rent N Sustainab}e!
togetrer .n places where they have the space to breathe We are . o

a ploneerirg bus.ress wth a goal to delver a resigert propos t:on vibrant communities

with the best in choice, service ara env ronrmrers, thereby delivering

sirong retdrrs for our sharehoiders that bU”d belonging'
Get Lwvng was founged ir 20°3 with the LK's first arge-sca.e nurture tOgethernessn
build-to-rent reighbourrood at East Vilage, Stratford. "oday, and Create ODDO rtU n”:y

we Fave almaost 4,000 homes across three neighbourhoods e
_ondor and Marcrester, wth a planred pipelire that wil see
the busiress grow o over 10,000 homes across the UK

Get Living PLC
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OUR NEIGHB

NEW MAKER
YARDS

New Maker Yards offers
canal-side living just minutes
from Manchester and Salford’s
vibrant centres.

Greater Manchester

Greater London

Tha City

wWestrmimster

Salford Mancnester

OURHOODS

east village
london 20

Cur first and flagship
neighbourhood, East
Village, is a vibrant 67-acre
community on the doorstep of

Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park.

rHackrey i

Stratford

ELEPHANT
CENTRAL

In London's zene 1, Elephant
Central sits at the heart of the
wider Elephant and Castle
regeneration area and is
perfectly placed for city living

Jreerwach

ELEPHANT AND CASTLE
TOWN CENTRE

The new town centre will deliver
close to 500 new homes and the
rejuvenation of what is already
one of London’s most dynamic
and vibrant areas.

Annual Report 2022
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NEWTON
PLACE

Get Living's third
London neighbourhood will
be a transformational scheme
for this well-connected
South Londaon hub.
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Portolio overview

BRILLIANT URBAN
NEIGHBOURHOODS

Location

London
E20
Homes
2. 44>
134,140 sq ft
2()13
ecst village
london E20 » Read more on pages 20 and 21
oooooooo ELEPHANT
Elephant and CENTRAL
Caste, London
652
63,63‘) sq 1
Launche d in

LLLLLLLLLLLL



Location NEW MAKER
Salford, YARDS

Manchester

S21

1L657 sq fit

Launched in

2019

» Read more on pages 24 and 25

.WITH MORE TO COME

N EWTON Location Commercial space
PLACE Lewisham, 87,328 sq1
London
Homes Launching in

649 2023

» Read more on page 26

Location Commercial space
Clephamt 181,034 sqnn
and Castle,

London

Homes Launching in

485 2026
ELEPHANT AND CASTLE

TOWN CENTRE + Read more on page 27

Annuai Report 2022
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Highlights

CONTINU
GROWT

Homes Revenue (£m) Net profit (£m) Portfolio value (£bn)

3,918 %99.2m 3136.3m %.2.73bn

A 26.2% 4 40.3% A 134.6% A 13.8%
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2021 1 2022 Co2021 2022 | 2021 2022 i i 2021 2022 |
Financial and operational Environmental and social
« i June 2022, 289 further homes were "aunchea at « Gert Livng was awarded the top 3-star GRESE ratirg
New Maker Yaras, ircreas rg our tota homes to 827 for the thira year rurnirg for the operatoral portfor o
n M ad ewood Locks, Salfora rrecognition of owr susta nabi ity performanrce
s Portlanas 2lace opened its doors in Auglst 2022, = We are working towards complange wth the
adding 524 new homaes to the heart of East Village rocommerdations of the UN's Task Faorce for

Clirmate-reiated =irarcial Disclosures (TCFD) ard

T i a th . b
+ Sirong rertai demand arg the aurch of new homes " 2022 carried out a TCFD Gap Arays.s

r Saiforg and East Vilage drove an increase n gross
revenue 10 €99 2m, up 40.3% « pJune 2022 three Get L ving reighbourboods
featured n the JomeViews' Top 10 "best places to live”

« A stron erformance across the busiress saw
ae ir e UK, as votea by our residerts

re: profitt ncrease 134 6% "o £136 3m

» nspirng Zast Vil age and Inspirrg Erephant
Cormmun ty Funds torh laurcined in 2022.
supporfing lacal projects ana charitable causes

* Underpinning the firancial resuits are
operationa: effic ercies and a contirued focus
or cost rmaragemert

¢ Cet Living Gives Back -auncirea . r 2022 wth
colleagues particpat ng ir group char tabie
initiativas 1IN the comrmurities in whickh we operate

» Tha balance sheet s robust with £15'bn
(2027 £ 33bn) of ret assets 472% (2027 46 2%)
aggregate _oan 1o Vaue arda weightea average
maturity of debt s 6.5 years (2021 78 years) s Throughout 2022 we partrerea with our supply crair
o rrovate the ifecycie of domestic furn ture ara
kckstar: a circular ecoromy busiress mode:

Tre Group has dentifiea pipe re opporiumties in
_eeds, Ma dentead, Sirrmirgram arg _eatherhead
giv g access o0 a poo of potent al rvestrerts
withip the private rartea sector

Get _vIng was short isted for the 3tR Spec:alist
Award at the EG Awards .n Novermber 2022

Get Living PLC
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CLO’s statement

BUILDING BELONGING:
CREATING VIBRANT AND
CONNECTED URBAN
NEIGHBOURHOODS FIT

FOR THE FUTURE

Get Living PLC




tis a mrark of the progress ana potentiar of Get Living

that we are posting a pesitve set of results .n this

Annua Report for the year erded 37 Decerrber 2022

Its & poirt that merts emphasis because this has beer
a year characterised across the UK by a mid recovery r the
wrter and spring, a better surmer foliowed by a disruptve
auturrn Get  ving showed rasiierce in the face of rapiayy
charging geo-poitica’, domesnc governmenrtal, ecoromic ard
corsumer confidence circumstarces This reflects the strength
of our portfouo of toternic destnation assets, the plaform
we have bunt, the resigent oropost or we offer, the tireless
work of gur committed team and the professioransm™ of our
nvestors whose support 1s resoiute

t = why we have referrea o our Report as Building Beionging.
It is based on the unrivaled expertise that Get _wvirg has to
create thriving naighbiourhoods that bring peopie together

i a way that kndles relat onships, attachments and familarty.
This provides us with a powerfui platform for the future.

“he year 2022 saw us launch further sigr:ficart new

housing prov'sior at East V-llage and at New Maker Yards,
ircreasing the operatioral portfolio by 26%, taking us to just
drder 4,000 bomes At Lewsham, we wiil scon be iaunching
549 rew homes ara the corstractior of 485 homes I1s
Jrderway at Elephanrt ard Castie Towr Centre Further
pipeine developmenrts are p.anred across the UK which
sigrificantly add to our portfolio,

The strategic propositior to investors of establishirg an
axempiary 3tR portfoo and piaform, provang high guaity
homes r v brart ne ghbourbcods which s supported by
commersurate serviee, 18 ircreasing v achieving the evel of
scale that remunerates shareno ders weth out-performirg tota
returrs ard ret profit Further sca.e from here becomes maore
rewardirg r terrms of accret on.

66

Arecord vear
positions us well
for further progress
as we enter an
exciting period

of opportunity.”

Tre egacy of the pandemic bas :n no sma i way rerinded us
of <he irue value of connectiors and commurity, especiaity
og o t.es, where oneliness ard the pursut of weilberrg and
purpese car be challerging At a tmie when the UK s facing
prob.ems of workforce capacity, business irvestment and
productiv oy, Get L ving has a vtal role to play r beirg part of
the solutior, proviaimg INspirirg homes ara reighbourtocas
whick support higb guality jobs ara prospecis in the ocal area

It's ret st where we hive, but how we ve We are deveoping
praces for adiscovery, where togetherress, choce ard

expiorat on are centrai terets of the Ger _wing propos.tion

It creates an opportunity for Get _virg to be the defring
creator of homres and neigkhbourtoods where peope krow
they beong.

Financial Performance

Totai reverues for the year tc December 20227 reached
£392m, up 40 3% onr the prevous yvear Gross profit was
£63.2m, up 37.7% for the same pencd. This transiated Into

a gross margin of 63 7% The year saw a sign-ficart revavat on
upift of tre portfolho of £136 Om, wrich fed through o create
an overal, net profit of £136.3m

Trese results are man-festat ons of a number of themes
across the year Dermanda for bPorres was high, but interestingly
't was from a broader derograph:c ard from people #ho
were seek rg more thar LsT a home, erdors rg our residert
propost or about pilace, belorg rg ard ambiert well-beirg
Occupancy avels typically stabilised at over 98% and rent
coilect.on averaged at 97% That fed througk Into rertai
growth ahead of expectatiors Operating costs were a big
focus and, notwitkstarding the irflationary infiuerces bear ng
down or al areas, cost per art - the meatric by which we
manage direct costs - saw reduct ors Centra costs were
Feld firm, geployed across a grow rg portfouo

Annual Report 2022
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STRATEGIC REPORT

CEQ’s statement continued

Financial Performance cont.nued

Cap-tal expenaiture rcluded two mobii sations at Portiaras
Place i Zast Vi lage ard the fira phase of New Maker Yards
alorgside dentfied asset rmaragemeant opporianues

Tre gebt arrangerrerts across the Grouwp closaed 20227 with a
~waghted average rmarurity of 6.5 years ara the average cost
of debt was 3 2% We arz conf.dent n our abil iy 1o refinance
the debt facihit.es ratur ng In 2023 ard 2024 whick furd cur
Portlands P ace ana New Maker Yaras assets At a time of
rapidiy ris:ng swap rates, the value of the Company’s hedging
rstruments ncreased.

F-rally, the December revaluat.cn came at a t-me wher a!

rear estate assets were Cortirg urder pressure frorm macro
headwnas “he 3tR sector appears to have been amorg the
rost resihent and the Get Living portfolio ore of the most
rasinent withr that sector, validating orce aegan the busiress
rmodel focusea on major Jrbar reighbourtcods r and arourd
~onden and the principal WK cities,

Market outiook

The UK's structura shorzage of housing 1s ~el aocumented
The Goverrrment's recent abardonment of 15 300000 p a
target and ts delays to ar updated overal plarnirg strategy
zoupiea wth wider Feadwinds of bulld cost nflator ard
Figher costs of debt, wil iead to a significart urnder delivary
of new horres for the foreseeable short-term. Act vity within
the for-saie housing rmarket Fas siowed on the back of higher
mortgage costs, the end of Help to Buy ard receding prices
The delivery of new affordable hous.ng stock by the Housirg
Association saector 15 also seeirg a marked slowdowr Alongside
that, the buy-to-let \nvestor sector 1s experiencing ar exocdus
r the face of '‘ncreasingiy orerous regulat on ard raxatior.

The 3tR sector Fas ar mmportant role to play in providing

“he rousing that an increasirgly wide aemograph.c s

seekirg As the UK ooks to create the conditions far
cormpanies to grow ard nvest in turn creatng the conaitions for
the recruitment and retertion of talert v well pa.d, productive
ana purposeful occupations, we w' | be heaviy reliant or the
vounger gererat orns to arve cur future rationa prospenty
The mobility of this group s therefore borh necessary and
daesirable, and the reea for a great home n the urban certres
whera rhe ,obs are .ocated 15 essentiaf

The housing sector therefore s n transition, and Nt 1es
cpportunity As the or ginal ploreer, Get wiving s well piaced
o expand 1ts modet and ts operatons o a2 much higher leve,
on the back of a deccade of experierce and w-th the lorg-term
capital that sits bebind it Resigert prefererces are chrarging,
new formats are ermerging and a desire for genume guality of
experearce s sought afrer ail of wh.ch speaks to Tre unigue
Get Livrg propost on, Jata frorm Trust for _ordor shows
thal, in _ondor alore, the popuiatior s expected torse to & 4
rilor .n the rext eght years, ana 300,000 additional rental
properaes wll be reauired accord.ng to JL_'s —onden 3tR
Report Qur miss.or |s to respond with the solut:or 1o

the probler, with quisCciplireq, wel ressarched. irnovave
acauist ons and rew developrents

2023 and 2024

“he next twelve months wii see Portaras Place and the

fra phase of New Maker Yards reach fu i stabiisat.on with
occuparcy of at least 95% Combinad wth the stabilised
assets Ir the rest of East Village, New Maker Yaras and
E.ephart Certral. our task s 1o consistertly mprove the value
propositior for res.cents as we seck to attract rew customers
ana retair exist-ng ones _ewisham will see the launch of 642

Get Living PLC
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rew homes at the era of 2023, inc uding N9 new co-livirg
studios and 06 affordable horres or a Lordon Living Rent
rerure This will be above a new street of ratall and fooa ara
beverage provision, together wth a gym and six-screer
crera. This is another excit ng momert wher the Get Living
moae Fas its charce to be validated and further imnovated

n the backgroura, we are also refresking our technowgy swite
ara centralised customer hub. so that the busiress s fit for
ke s gr ficant Increase :n the number of operational bomes
This w1 improve operat'ora efficiency customsr expererce,
aata anaytics and risk managemeant

Lock-rg further abeaa, we have pians to expand cur portfolio
by a further 6 500 Fomes across the LK. This inciudes one of
London’s most sigrif'cant regereratior schemes at Eiephant
ard Zastle Town Centre, the first ohase of which s due to
launch in 2026.

In terms of new pipelre, we art:cipate that the opportunities
we cort rdaly screen wiil convert nto rewarding acgurisitions
towards the second haif of 2023

ESG as a force for good

Our arbitious ESG agenda s progressivery becaming
embedaea rto every arca of our cuiture ang operations
for tre beref t of our res.dents, our people, ard wtimately
for our rvestors . terms of sharekho'der vaLe

For the third year m a row, we were awarded a GRESB 5 Star
rating for our stardng portfolo against a berchmark which
rises each year

We are mpiementing e findings of the TCFD gap aralysis,
row ghvIrg rise o fraingtg on cimate awareness, mproved
record keepirg and apdated poacies for AR, development,
strategy and rsk maragerert. Naw nvestment in metering
hargware and corsert workflows s mprovirg the guality,
renabirty and eff cercy of utiity consumrption data collections
rthat urderpir muitiple erergy ard carbon disciosures.

We areg aiso astablish.ng the francial ard operatioral -mpact
of align'rg existing reighbourhoods with thae CRREM net zero
pathway through retrofit works

Finally

No arruai review of the year wourd be corrplete without

a sincere exprassion of grat tude Lo the many peopie who
contrbute o Get Livirg's success To our resiaerts, who
ertrust us ta provide therm with an opportunity (o belong N our
re ghbourhaoas, thank you for makirg them the communit es
that they are To those within Get « ving, brnging their pass.on,
erergy and profassiaralsm to work avery day, my profound
appreciat:er for all your commimmert anc mutLal support of
zachk other ir every collaboration To our rvestors who support
Ls with therr capital, therr wise coursel ard ther ambitior, it s a
priviiege to serve you and the stakeholaers you in turr look after

t the tirme of writing, Austranan superanruaton fund Aware
Super has recently exchanged w th QD UK Hoiaings LP
QD" to purchase their 22% stake 'n Get i.vng and joir our
group of nvestors. This means that we part ways with QD,
one of our founding Investors, who bave played a pivotal roe
r ke success of the company, from the early days of
aurching Get Living to wheare we are today 1 would ke to
thank QD for ther visiorn ard ther invaluabla support and
comm trment to Get Livirg. Ir Aware Super, we arg extremely
pr vileged 10 have a iong-term, purpose-dr ver and mature
irvestor ard ook forwara o working ciosaly with ther team
Aware Super's backing of Get Livirg 1s a huge vate of
configence in our busiress, which gives us real firepower c
drve ambitiouws growth plans, in serv.ce t¢ ai our rvestors

The year “o December 2022 has beer a corfidert ser of
results, but it .s an importart step n ar exc't ng ournay
towards a wider vision ara miss or |t will see Get Living
cortinue its successful growth, dr ver by the pursuit of
errarced busiress performarce, creating a class-leacirg
pcrfol ¢ of ne'ghbourhoods In whick pecpie can correct,
thrive and belorg, and as a culminat on of ~hat, rewarcing
starehoiders wth comrrersarate returns

Rick de Blaby
CEO
27 April 2023

Annual Report 2022
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STRATEGIC REPORT

HOW WE CREAT

We create value by building the exemplar BtR platform, driven by a clear vision and mission, creating sustainable

- VALU
—e—
neighbourhoods that are fit for the future and delivering long-term investor returns.
A clear visior

ana rmisson

Inputs

—
Robust capital structure

—xperienced and
diverse warkforece

Techroiogy
enab!irg anaiytos,

data ard research

Capital
investment

and future
growth

2ad Mol

on page 14

%,
Q,
%
>
%
2
e}
[ ]
.
o
Customer-focus
approach
Operational
scale an
efficiencies

» Read maore

on page 15

Enyironmental

» Read more

on page 16
¥ -" A
"k management pag®

Outputs
Sustainable A zorpealirg res.dent rrevat ar-driver Tearmns Long-termr capital
neghbourtoods frfor ——  proposit or wnderpinned ——  thrvirg o a collaberative ——
the futLre by market insight envirormaent

Ard PCorTe ratLrrs
for investors
Our purpose is to create places that are sustainable
and vibrant, places where people peiong

Get Living PLC
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Strategy and KPlIs

=ST
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Grow the property portfolio by funding and acquiring high quality newly developed homes that
provide secure income streams with the potential for rental growth and capital enhancement.

Activity in 2022

* Ir Jure 2022, 289 further homes
were aunched at New Maker Yaras,
ncreasing our toral homes to 821
r Miadlewood _ocks, Saford

“ortlands Place opered its doors n
August 2022, adding 524 rew homres
to the Pear: of East viilage

We have contn.ed {9 \nvesT A

che irrprovemert of homaes and
reighbourtoods with.e our portfono,
with a refresh prograrmrme upgraaing
rhe qualty of our exist.rg homes

™ Zas: Vi'lage,

Ailish Chrst an-Weast was

appoirtea as Ch ef Operating Offcer
™ Novermber, providing strategic
ieadership o par:foine manager-ent,
developmert and ESG

Looking forward

* Newfor Place ard Siephant and Castle

Town Centra developments are well
progressed, anticpating o laurch n
2023 and 2026 respective:y

* The Group has dentificd pipeire
opperturiies n Leeds, Maderheaa,
Sirminghar and Leatherhead
gwvirg access o a pooi of potential
investrerts within the prvate
rented sector

¢ LK BtR sector fundamentals remair
strorg with contrued demarag for
privateyy rertes purpose bu, T homes

Get Living PLC
14

Total portfolio value (Ebn)

$.2.73bn

2022 2.73
2021 2.40
2020 2.03

KP1 definition {non-1FRS)

The aggregate totar value of
The Group's property porifoio
independertly valued by
CBRE r accordarce w th
RiCS vaiuat.on stangards

* Calculated ir the Business ~eview or
pages 44 to 46,

Average cost of debt (%)

’; 0/

Deim /O

2022 3.2
2021 ?27

2020 2.5

KPI definition (non-IFRS)

nterest rate on oans, waeighted
by the armount borrowea relat ve
o tota borrowngs.



OPERATIONAL
AND

SCAL
= FHIC

NCI

=S

Efficient and effective management of portfolio through our experienced and
innovative team ensuring operating costs are controlled to gain efficiencies.

Activity in 2022

* The Customer Hub cort.nued to
provide certralised custorer serv ces
to support al. ne:ghbourboods

* Anin-house devetoprrert tearm has
beer establ shed brrging a wealth
of experierce and expert.se of project
maragement and corstructior

in June 2022 three Get Living
neighbourhoods featured .n the
HomeViews' "op "0 "best p-aces
tohve” rthe LK as voted by
Qur resients

Looking forward

» ~ocus on opbmising the Grouwp
operatirg model to improve
resident experience ard reduce
operating costs

* Supporting our dynam.c and diverse
team, 1o contirue workirg efficient v
N a codaborative working culture

Annual Report 2022
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Net rental income (Em)
5.62.6m’

2022 62.6*

2021 45.4

2020 35.5

KPI definition {non-IFRS)

Renta ncore ret of direct
propery costs less marager-ert
fees Refar to page 43 for the
recorchiation of ret rental ncorme

© Calculated ir the Business ‘eview on
pages 44 tg 46,

Rental income growth (%)
=0/
19.:) /0

2022 19.5

2021 11.4

2020 2.1

KPI definition {non-IFRS)
Crowzh in rental iIncome for
propert es held throughout
the ent re current perodg or
3 "ke-for-like bass



STRATEGIC REPORT

Strategy and KPIs continued

~NVIRONM

—NTAL

AND SOCIAL

IMPACT

Future proofing assets against emerging physical climate impacts,
engaging with decarbonisation and supporting positive social outcomes.

Activity in 2022

Get _ving was awarded the top
5-star GRES2 rat:ng for the thira
year ranning for the operatora:
por:folio ir recogrmtor of aur
sustaraty ity performarce

Jonations were made throughour
the year to ocal projects, charities
and init'atives '\n the comrurities
nwhich we operate

Vyve imvestigated the recortmendar ors
of the UN's Task Ferce for Camate-
related F rarcia Disclosures (TCFD)
ara carr.ed out a TCFD Gap Analysis,

—rergy eff-clercy mproverrerts were
brought forward o reduce landiord
erergy consumption througk rproved
aghting specificat or ara cortrols

We carried out a honstic review of
our approach o erergy corsumotion
data, with a view to mproving gaa
quality ard coverage, and reducirg
the operat:ornal costs of coilat-rg
Jtriey consumption readings

Looking forward
s A rew programme, run by Raeburn,

wllrunin The Lab E20, _ondon's
rew creative hut ir Zast Vilage.
T:'tied Regenerative by Design, the
programme celebhrates oraon’s
caltura: -rrovation across climate
actior the circuiar economy.

ALl three operational re.ghbourhooas
ard the new _ewisham development
wellaurck mspirirg Communrity <urds
to sLpport Qcal commurity proects.

A rew programme of residen: everts
wilt take place to br ng people together
and ercourage new conrect ons

VWe piar S0 roli our energy efficiercy
works across multpie budirgs
ard neighbourhocads

Cur emerging E5G Data Strateqgy
will Improve vis.bilty of occupant’s
consuMpron data ard heip close “he
performarce gap betweer predicted
anrd observed erergy performarce

Get Living PLC
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Greenhouse gas emissions

24.6 (1%

2022 24.6
2021 24.4*
2020 22.7

KPI definition (nen-IFRS)
_ke-for-like/aegree day adjustea
rtersity tkgCO_e/m?) based on all
corsumirg assets ownea for two
consecurve years withir the Group.
See tabie " on page 38 for aetalls
®  Historic data for 2021 15 re-stated to reflect

data quality improvements and like-for-like
metrics reflect tre revised historic data.

Energy usage

39./k (+5

/O
2022 39.4Kk
2021 37.5k"
27;-20” 211k

KPI definition (non-IFRS)

_ike-for- ke/degree day ad:usted
consumMmptor (kWwh n O00's)
based or al! corsumirg assers
owned for Two consecutive years
withir the Group. See tatie 2 or
page 32 for detals,

*  Historic data for 202715 re-stated to reflect

data qualty improvermants and like-far-like
metrics reflect the revised nistonc data.



STRATEGIC REPORT

Market review

UK BtR MARK

PROVIN

TS RESILIENCE
4.3bn

investment in BtR in 2022

0/
/O

growth per annum over
the last five years

n 2022 despite poit ca- and ecoromic headwings, the LK
BtR sector continued o break its owr mpress.ve recoras,
drver by shortage of supply, growrg renta aemand for
high qualty Formes anda strong Investor momenrturm

Investrment 1IN the UK's 31X sector reached a record £4.3bnir
2022, with s.gnificart capital committed throughout the year
ard near'y £'bn 'r the last auvarter alore

According to the 3nt sh Property Federar:ior (3PE), there are
now over 242,000 BtR homes r the UK, up 14% from 2021
Of those ¢.78,700 hores are coprplere, ¢ 50,000 homes

ara urder corsruchion and ¢ 173,400 rores ara \n panrirg
Regioral BIR grew 3t amost doubie the pace of _ordor {17%
vs 3%) n the year The last guarter of 2022 saw a slowdown
‘n corstruact or evels as a result of bulld cost rflar or, aboor
shorrages ard wider ecoromic urcertaimty

UK BtR continues to grow across the UK
45,000
40,000
35,000
30,000
25,000
20,000

15,000

Number of Homes

10,000

5,000

380,000

BtR homes in the UK by 2032

Zoopia’s UK Renta Markel Report, pubishea .n December
2022, saw rertal growth come 1o 121% or a year-or-year bass,
wwice the average earnirgs growth for the same t me frame
Meanwh.le r the for-sae market, there has beer 2 fall \r the
rumber of new buyer enguiries, with dermand fail:rg by 23%
I~ Jaruary 2023 compared to the f ve-year average. Rentai
dernand -5 higher than ever and for many residents, BiR 5 a
more cost-effective and corverient solutior thar the prvate
rertal sector given the rew buid erergy efficiert hormes ard
wider amer:ty offering that BtR offers

Athough, thare s st: | a strong nvestment case for _ordor
BtR, invastor focus has shifted to 'rclude key regiarai ¢ties
Ore of the iargest rrarsactions n 2022 was £200m forwara
fungirg of Ore Tastside in Birrmirghar by “ersior rsdrance
Corporate pic

Due to the r sirg cost of debt and corstruct or cost inflation,
BtR irvestmenrt yields trended weaker ir the secord half of 2022,

o]

Ql Q2 Q3 Q4 Ql Q2 Q3 Q4 ' Ql

2018 2019

Q2 Q3

Q1 | @1 Q2 @3 Q4| Qr Q2 Q1 Q4

2020 2021 2022

Fource BNPERE

—ondor

Regions
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Elevating the living experience

BPE's arnual "Who _wves ' StR” report Fighights that,
despite rental rflation. the affordabiiity of BtR remains

s grificart when compared witk the private rertal sector.
we anticipate thar these cors'gerations will become maore
'mportant giver econartic and political beadwinds

Tre report stated that of the UK 3tR providers, 88% offer
soc:al @vents, 8'% offer a corcierge, 69% 'nclude intarnet

prov sion r rort, ard 73% offer co-working spaces. As the
word bas emerged from two years of rtarmittent iockdowns,
re ghbourhoods wtch encourage and erabie commurity
‘nieractior are Increasingly atractive

'n 2022, a decade on from the Lorder 2012 Oiympics 'n Stratford,
Ge: _wing laurcred ts rewast geveioprment at fast V llage,
Port.aras Place, delivering 524 new hores at our flagship
London site, This site ep tom ses a space des gnen to reet
the expectat ons of modern res dents, prov ding attractve
Fomes, wellress aren-t.es, flex ble workspaces, and fostering
a clear feelirg of cormunity

There s also a demand fraor res:derts that the spaces

they oceupy reflect ard erabie therr vaiuas, reffected ir

Ger Livirg's nerghbourhooa, retal and pacamaking strategy
Maoving forward, we art cipate that sustainab ity ard social
impact will contirue to forrm an important consideration
wilhih consumer decision malking

Get Livirg contiruas to leverage the value-add benefits

of emmbeddirg susta rability ard res.dert wetbe.rg rmo
deveiocpmerts whist aimmirg for best-ir-ciass developrent
irhne wth our ESG agerda ang va'ues

References:

bpforg uw/radasoress-releases/ rflar or -ard-aoour-sheriages contr bute-to-
slowdown-n-puild-te-rent-growt=-1r- 2022/

wwwsavills co wafresearcn_arucles/229130/559547-G

opf Org.ag/rredia/press- eleasas/buila-to-rert-5/4% - text<Researcr%B20from¥%20
Tre%20Britisn%20Pronerty rousirg%2Caelivery% 20ard%2Caconeic% 20growtn
www savills co Lk/researsn articles/223130,3395%4/-0

3dvantage zpg ¢o Lk NsIghts/rertal-rmarer recort/

oof org v /media/press-eleases/build-to-rer-orovides-secLro- eases ara-vaue-
for-meney-finds-largest-over-aralysis-af sector-2/

WWW CDTh couk/Irsiabts/oooks/uk-reai-estiate market-outloax-2023/res.aertial
onf org uk/~ediaspress-releases/ooelire-of-ould-ta-rent-Fomeas-n-u<-'egIoNs-
nereases py-gver-a-hftr-year on-year/

Looking ahead: the investment case for BtR

_ookirg to 2023, whilst there will be new challerges, the
sustaired acuie suppry ana demand -mbalance arven by

a slower housing rrarket due o fewer first-time buyers, 2RS
ardloras exat.rg the market ard hikes in mortgage costs will
mear thal demand for rental product 's proected o remair
strorg Coronued rerta growth over the year w.il see the
sector retaining 15 aliure for investors despte challergng
SeCcoromic corait'ors. However, sers:'yity arcurd the
increased cost of aving we | be imperat.ve for operators

o retan the rust, provde afforaab e mig-market

producis and ensare the wel being of ther res.dents.

Sigh bund cost rfanon wil continue 1o s ow Aown New
homes de'ivery over the medium o ong term. Cap'tal
markers wl remar subdued urt i the second haif of 2023
due 1o outward pressure on yie:ds, aithough socma areas of
distress will present opportur ties for investors where forcad
sa-es or refinancrg will hasten the process of price discovery
as the year progresses

Nevertteess, accordirg to CBRE's Real Estate Marker
Outlook, the irvesiment appetite for BtR and co-1ving w-!|
remair strorg as the more defens.ve asses class compared
Lo other tradit:oral real estate secrors Get L v ng's newest
Londar naighbourtoor n Lew sham will faunch at the anca
ot 2023, deliverng 649 new homes .rciucing 19 co-nving
homes ' response to rising demard

Wth ris g mortgage rates and the ircreas.rg cost of

1ving putting home owrership out of react for rmore and

more people, It has ciearly rever beer more rmporart that

~& have a averse, robust, well-rvested rental hous rg rarket,
Further investmert will be needed f 3t= 1s to grow from s
current peretration of 16% of the rental market to 8% by 2032,
as projected by Savills, but th s wii only be able happer if
nvestors ang pohcymakers cortrue to support the sector

The 'riroduct.or of rent caps, as we have seer n Scotiardg,

will only ‘ead to the cortractor of the renta. housng market
and sustain the Lpward prassdre or rents caused by a shortage
of suppy YWwe continue 0 engage with respective goverrments
to ensure the views of Get Living ang the BIR sector are
represented rarmarging 'egisation ang poicy.

Annual Report 2022
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Portfolio review

A THRIVING NEIGHBOURHOOD
SETTING THE BENCHMARK
FOR RENTAL LIVING

east village
london t2o

r 2023, East Village will mark its ter-year anniversary as the

frst large-scaie BtR neighbourhood in the UK 'n that nime,

the former Athietes V' llage has becorme a thrving horme to

rrore thar 6,500 residents, over 30 majorty independent
retaiers, restaurants and cafes. and ar Ofsted "Outstanding”
educatior campus

This year, Portlands Place opened ts doors to residents wth
524 high auaity apartments within two towers, Skylark Point
ard Hightall Point. Settirg a new bercrhmark for rental ving,
the towers are adjoinaed by a Skybridge on the tenth f.oor
which offers 7836 sq ft of Incoor best-ir-class amenity space.
Resigerts have exclusive access to a gyr, weilbgng room, the
'‘Come Dine With Ls" prvate dimng space, g cirerma room ang
10,473 sa fr of .arge outdoor terraces with viows of the Lordonr
skyline =aving iawnched in August, Portards Place was alMmost
B0% ocoupied by the erd of the year

The aadt on of Portlands Place ¢ Sast Vilage brngs the tota
rumber of Get L vng bomes ta 2,445

r 2023 28 new affordable homes developed by Ger Living
wlllaunch at East Village These Pgh qua ity two and three
pedroom homes were sod to Noftng —il Geresis » August
2022 ana w ! be avaiiable <o 'ocai peop.e at social rert

2022 saw the launch of the Elizabeth _ ne, adaing to the aireaay
mpressive trave links at Stratford W th the ine row running
from Reading to Abbey Wood, res dents can get to central
_ondon locations faster thar ever, ncuding ter minutes to
_verpoo! Streer and '8 minutes to “addingtor

The retar ard =&B offer at Zast Vilage was boosted ir the year
with the additions of Sigrorelir SBakehouse and 3amboao Mat.

[Py

Solowing the laurch of The Lab E20 n 2021, Get v ng's fagship
for sustainable retall, cuitural exiibitor ara creative workspace,
~e bhave worked closely with Fashion Distr ot ard other partners
to dr ve a pregramme of creat ve everts, exkibt.ons and
workshops throughout the year This year, The Lab 20 Fas
been hast to ar arch tectara summer school, a catwa k show
for sustainable brard o' ri Lordon arnd a pare' discussion
or regenerat ve des gn

At the end of 2022 we partrered wvih bypha Studios, a charity
matching creatives with empty spaces for free, 1o convert

a former retall store rte a creative space for emerging design
falent at East V llage. This unigue take or an ermnpty retait space
wi'l see severai artists curate and exhibit her work as well as
ergaging wth the '‘ocal commurity with workskops and everts

ir 2023, a programme of remeasatior works wil fake place w0
agdress a rumber of bunding aefects identifiea through fire

safety irspections
Get Living PLC
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2.44>5 30+

hines for rent

Independent retailers

Meet the team

“From the moment

I joined the Company
I knew I had made

a great life decision.”

Nick Marston, Head of Relationship Management

"As Head of Relationship Management for the Olympic
homes, ry aim s to epsure the team s always proviging
a best-in-class service to our residents. The team

at Get wiving are some of the most passiorate and
dedicated iIndividuais 've had the prviiege of working
with, ard their desire to .mprove and maintain Get
_viNg's reputation amongst renters s derronstrated
every day From the moment . ,oined the Company

| krew i Fad made a great !Ife decis.on I'm coming Jp
0 my fourth anniversary at Got Civing, and watchirg
Zast Vilage develop rto ore of _ordon's most thrvirg
reighbourhooas has been an wmmense source of pride”

Meet the residents

“Choosing Last Village
as my home was a
great choice.”

Yasmin Malhis, East Village Resident

"A Business Managemenrt bachelor stuaer:, | movad to
Zast Vilage in September of 2022 after arrv'ng from
Joraar Zast Vilage 1s the best place Lo reside r; with
£s very convenent locat-or that 1s on vy three stops
Lniversity and approxirmately hbalf an hour to certrai

"Zast Village hosts everts such as brurch preparea by
Signorell which gave me the opportunity "o make fe--org
friends who live n the same butllaing! We aiso watched the
Worid Cup together with people frorm all arourd the wor'd
o the comrmon space. 'n the sarre area, there s a gym C
stay active dally, a TV room ard a kitcher that you car
book to host yeur frienas Choosing East V lage as my
Pome was a great chawce”

Annual Report 2022
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Portfolio review continued

NEIGHBOURHOOD
LIVING IN THE HEART
OF LONDON

ELEPHANT
CENTRAL

ephart Certrai offers 278 high quaiity student
romes ard 374 homes for rent rght v the kear: of
Longon Ideally located opposite Elephart and Castie
Tram Station, Zlephant Certra. cort nues to attract
res.certs and students with occuparcy levels at over 39%

_ocateq in _ongon's Zore 1, Elephart Certral s wthir walking
distance of both _ondon College of Commuricat or and King's
College wordon Regent's Uriversity _ondon 1s less than half an
hour's corrrrute 1t s aiso within walkirg distance of London's South
Bark wh ch plays host to cutural everts, exhibiticns and shows
throughout the year and the VWest End is a shors tube ride away

The rearby tra.n statior provides quick ard conver.ent transport
Inks imto the city, 'ncluding less than 15 minutes ©0 both London

Brage ard 5t Parcras, Tre Nearest tube statior 1s a snort wark frarm
the reighpouriood wth access 1o the Northerr ard Baker'oo nes.

Theretail cffer s talored o the reed of the iocality and ‘rcludes
Gyrobox, a narsery, a Sansbury's Local and irdependert
restaurarts Inc uding "UPIL Pizzena Pappagore ard Murger Har
At nearby Castie Square, over 25 ocal traders operate aiorg with
a thrivirg evert space ir the pLblc sguare. Zvents at the sauare
are hosted throughout the year ard ncluae Lrban Elephant, the
Queer's Jubidec Celebration ana Saster i Woerderland, reflecting
the vibrart and culturally diverse nature of the community.

Work 1s underway at the Elephart and Castie Town Centre
redeveloprent which wit transforrm the former shopping certre
s te and aeliver brand new Fomes, shops and a state-of -the-art
rew condor College of Cormuricatior carpus The frrst phase
of the redeveiopmert 1s set 1o compiete r 2026

Onoce complere, Flephant and Cagtio Town Gertre wii' offer

a3 rew dest.natior ard transport hub r _ondon, rcluding
200000 sq. ft. of cormerc a) space as well as denvering
signef cant rvestrmert and opporturties for creative place
rraking. This will sit alongsice wiaer regeneraton within the
borough. Adjacent to the devaloprrert, The recently compietea
Eleprant Park has brought new private sector homes and
erharced public realr to the area, r adaition o rurrercus
restaurarts ard retaiors that have already elevated Z.ephant
and Cast'e's appeal 1o residerts ard v'sitors

The Eiephant ana Castie team cont.nues [0 ergage c'osely with
the ‘ocal comrmunity and Fosted numerous events ir the year,
nciuding the Urban £'ephant Festval ard bistorc waking tours
that rook v sitors through Eleprart and Caste's bistory

Sy late 2023, a programmie of rerrediat or works 's oxpected
o have commerced at Zlephant Certral to address a number
of bulding defects dent:fed by recert fire safety ‘nspections.
Get Living PLC
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34k 278

homes for rent

studcnt studius

Meet the team

“Over the vears

I have built so
many relationships
with residents.”

Alexis David, Senior Relationship Manager

at Elephant Central

"I have beer with Get Living for nearly e'ght years row
and 'm strl very much emjoy.ng my time bere  started
as a Property Consultart at Ger Livirg in East Village
ali those years ago and row ~“'m a Senior Relatuonskip
Marager at Elephant Central iocking after :ettings

"QOver the years ' have built so many relationships with
residents many of which have stayed with us for a 1org
time, ircluding couples who viewed with me ard are
row starnng a family. The rrost arrazrg feehng s tak rg
someone to view a home and seeing their reaction wher
they love the home and know that 1t 1s the perfect
place for them.

“I have to thank the briliant ceam i work with, from
Reatiorship Manageaers o clearers to ma rtenance,
all of wh.ch are a buge part of the successes at
Ceptant Central ”

Meet the team
“No day is the same.”

Jane Reeves, General Manager at Elephant Central
and Lewisham

"I have been with Get Livrg for reary nine years,
start'ng as a Senior Relationship Manager r zZast
Vilage, ther movng to Siephart Cenrtral to oper
Get Living's secord site as Gereral Marager. It's beenr
great to be part of the or gina story and see all the
chardes implemented aver the years to create the
great piatform we have today ‘'ove my ob rno cay
s the sarre, ard | enoy the rewaras it gives from
delivering a great operatior, which keeps homes ful
ard res dents Fappy. | work with some great pecp.e
ara look forward to building a new tearm arg
successiuliy mobrisirg Lewist-am, which wll ‘aurch
‘ate 2023 | amr proof of the career opporturines

n Get _ving for peope that want to deveop and
estabush careers in BiR.”

Annual Report 2022
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Portolio review continued

CANAL-SIDE
LIVING BETWEEN
TWO CITIES

NEW MAKER
YARDS

ow Maker Yards continues to go from strength

to strergth, sithing on the old Salforg-Manchester

border Foillowirg the ful' opering of the secord

prase of homes at New Maker Yardas this year,
the neighbourhood 1s now home to over 1,200 resigents
Iving m B2 homes

Set beside a canal-s.ce green space, New Maker Yards s
‘acated in the highly desirable Middlewooga Locks, within
walking distarce of Saford Central 5:at or and Manchester's
Spirnirgf elds, a2 popular aimirg, stoppirg ard event destiration
Manchestar ity carire s withir wakirg astance anda both
Manchester Uriversity and Manchester Metropodtan Linversity
are within easy reach from ke reighbourkoca

New Maker Yards s very popuiar with residents, who are abie

te make use of the neighbourhood's new 3300 sq. ft amerity
space, “The Lock”, which opened 'n 2022 as well as a ¢lub roorm
for co-werkirg ard relaxirg Tre Lock also provides access ¢ a
Drand rew parce. manager-ert store ard s home 10 92 Degrees,
ar ndependent roaster ara coffee shop which serves both
rasidents ard the wiger commurity The retad offer 1s boosted
by a loca: Co-op store

Resiaerts at New Maker Yargs are abie to sociaise at Seven
3ro7hers, a beerhouse that s local to Mahchestar and Salford
Seven Bro7hers bas quickly become a part of the cormmunity
g NOSIS MLMerous events

The wider event programie at New Maker Yards regularly
or rgs (ocal res-gents together Ongoing everts inc'ude a canat
s.de ja7z event ard Christrras celebrations.

Get Living PLC
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homes for rent

acres

Meet the team

“It feels really
rewarding to know
vou are contributing
10 somebody’s
perifect home.”

Sophie Bottomley, Senior Relationship Manager
“am comirg up to rry fourth year with Get _iving and
have recertly been promotea to Sertor Ke'at.onship
Manager here at New Maker Vards It has been woraerful
o see both the site ang the area deveiop so much
whilst ‘aunchirg the developrmens, especal y since

- am from the area myse f We bave a great team and
worlk ervironment anda -ts ovely "o be able 1o meet
ard connect with so Mmany new peop'e due to the
rumber of resicgents we come across every day ot
feels rea:ly rewarding to krow yowu are contributirg to
somebody's perfect home, whether that be by renting
the home to ther, assisting with any gquearies they may
have or fixing any mainterance 1ssues that arise it's
been a pleasure to watch the Company grow and
change so much s.rce .oning ard . car only magine
the growth the rax: four years will bripg:”

Meet the residents

“I love the location.”

Julia Anna Godlewska, Resident of New Maker Yards
‘I have iived at New “Maker Yards for over a year,
sharing a ore bea apartrmert with my partner » am

a jurior business corsuitart arg moved o Manchester
rghbt after finishing sniversity

" ave bow aesthetical and practica the apartrments are
- the furmiture 1s of the best quality ard everything loaks
50 modern, The views gspaglally e Femall=lalung
ke on-site office “The Lock makes life so sasy as we
are botk work ng from her-e ard the communa: area
0 work/study parfectly reflects an off ce ervirerment
jove the igcat.or - 't 5 very guiet reighbourhood
with the canal and yet 50 close to the city certre -
ter minutes walk New Maker Yaras a!so prov des
excenent 24/7 security andg every time | cal.ed for
assisTarce | was rever dsapportea”

Annual Report 2022
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Portfolio review continued

IN DEVELOPMENT

NEWTON
PLACE

A DYNAMIC, VIBRANT NEW
LONDON NEIGHBOURHOOD

119

co-living homes

530

homes for rent

ewtor Place s our next raighbourhood 0 launch n

London ard s set to cormpiete n the secora taf of

2023, welcormng :ts Frst residents shortly after _ocated

N zone 2 :n Southeast Lonvinn with great tranapen L
IMks to the certre of the cty, the new neghbourhood wili detver
548 homes, Inciuding 424 for market rent, 106 affordable
romes at _ordon Lwvirg rent ard 19 for co-hwving.

Complemert rg the residenrtiai offer s 25000 sa ft of

retall space, "5,.000 sq fr of food and beverage space,

a gy, 4 rmuluplex oiherma ard "0,000 sg ft of co-workirg
space zmpire Ciremas 1s aiready signed up 1o the schemre
wth nurrerous retaners set to forow. The commercias offer
s prommirently located a ong what wii becorme the prrcipal
pedestriar route correctirg Lewsham “owr centre wth
_ewshar's mamn bre ard DLR statiors

25,000

sq ft of retail space

The aeveloprment marks our first foray nto co-living, with
seif -cortaired stuaio-styte flats and high auality shared
comrura facilities toc erabe soGialiang Ann shargd bwneg,

The scheme s part of a wder regererat:on project whicin wiil
qebver a new heart for Lewisham's town certre and rcudes
homes, shops, restaurarts and a publhc sauare, Ir additionr

o maior rfrastructure mprovernants. Directiy adjacenrt ta
Lewisharm Natora Ral and DLR stat or, thera are excelent
“rarsport Inks from the reighbourhood o certral Londcr

with connecliors to Lordon Briage r nire minutes Char ng
Cross in 7 mirdras and Canary Wharf in 16 misutes, A potent a
extersior of the Baker co iire would provide further .rks

“his ramams under corsdltanon

“he new neighbourtood has beer developed r partrersqip
w.th Cewsham Gateway Developmert, a subsidiary of
Muse Developments

Get Living PLC



IN DEVELOPMENT

ELEPHANT AND CASTLE
TOWN CENTRE

A NEW TOWN
CENTRE IS EMERGING

485

homes for rent

‘ephanrt and Cast'e Town Centre s a major regererat or

prosect which wil deliver a new, v brant town centre

in Lordor’s zore 1, locared aongside our exisirg

neighbourhoeg. Flephant Contrat The sclerme, which
will corpete i 2026, wll gevver ciose To 500 rew homes for
rent, 3 vibrart mix of shops, restaurarts arg eisure facilives,
workspace, a state-of-the-art rew carmpus for London College
of Commuricat or and major Infrasiructure IMproverients

Construction s now well unaerway or the site of the forrmer
Elephant arg Castle shoppirg cenire and good progress has
beer made or ste w th gu rg work corrpieted in Jecermber
2022 The frst sectors of the baserrert slab have progressed
with the concrete tower structures to e constructed
“hroughout 2023 arg the ¢ adding to cormmence “owards
~he end of the year

S

acres

“he development 15 part of a wider rejuvenat.on of the area
and wll deiver much neeged bugh guality rental horres in

a prme locaton and 35% of the hames rhat will be affordable
by habitable roorm A secord phase of this proect 's

axpected to commarce or the ste of the _ordor Coliege of
Comruricatior folowirg 1t's reiccatior o the new ariversity
burdirg, niroducirg further homes as wel' as adaitional shops
ard eisure venues.

The pubrc realm located rext to £ ephant Centra,, Castle
Square, 15 rorme o a numrber of ccal traders ard plays host
ro nuMmerous averts ower the year which celebrate the rch
cutaral diversity of the iocal area.

Annual Report 2022
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Stakeholder engagement

OUR APPROACH

—

hrrrt

TO

Qur employees

Our empioyees are those who are directly
ermrployed by Get Livng. Empioyees want
to feer supported, working in a safe ard
comfortabie ervirponmert where they
can thrive ir a collaberative culture that
celebrates diversity ard incius on

Why we engage

Our busiress suctess wll be determired
by our employees \We recogrise the
rpormarce of atiracting and retanirg
talert ard creat'ng diverse teams with
reigvant skills and axpertise

How we engage

Divers.ty ard rclusion arg certral to

our offer and we commit to beirg an
organisatior where teams feel supporied
and .nspired to realise ther porentiai.
We nvest i our peopie through trarirg
COurses and arert developrert
programmes, encouragirg aspirirg
ferrale leaders by proviging executve
coaching and sponsorships Appraisal
structures support staff retertior and
employee performance. Our empioyee
valle propositior s regulary reviewed
to ersure tis reilevant for our pecple.
We collect employee feedback through
surveys and promote welbeing act vites

Qutcomes of engagement

= Qegula ExecUtve led events rerease
top Qowr cormun cation ard
arcourage business ergagermenrt

* A costof ivirg aldowarce was provided
to cartam employees during the year
to provide firancial asssiance

¢ Our sickress and parental leave
poucies have been enharced in
resporse to employee feedback

* As part of our pledge to reduce carbon
erissons, we Offer emproyeeas a cycle
to work schemea

NGAG

Our contractors and suppliers

Our contraciors ard suppliers are
those who provide goods and servces
0 Get Living, they want to be treated
with respect, through professiora!
nteract ons and prompt paymert

Why we engage

Cor:ractors and suppl.ers play a
crncal role .n our abiity o operate
sustainaby, safely and eff clenty and
therefore we ansurs that they comply
with Get _wv g stardards

How we engage

The procurerrert and development teams
rraintain close relat orskips ara regularly
reeet wth cortractors ard supphers

We have 3 colaborative approach to our
supply zhamn ard encourage Cortraciors
and sLppLers to raise ary ssues or
concerns about thar relaticrstip with the
Group, their contracts or the workforce,
We require our cortractors and sepphers
to support ant:-slavery inisiatves and
contrais are « pace to rritigate the risk
of slavery and humar traffick:ng from
accurrng withur our supply chairs,

Outcomes of engagement

* Koy Coniracrors ard supplers are
proactivey managaod to mamntamn
posicvee ralatighahins

*» Inbarced corporate due dirigerce
controls kave beer implemented
to provide more r-depth data to
moritor oLr sLpply char

* Qur render process scores contraciors
ard supprers with a minimure 20%
wesghting irked to £5G credertais

¢ Terrrs with contraciors ard suppiers
rclude a comrutmenrt 1o cormply
with *he iaw on anti-s:avery and
Fumar traffick ng
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Our residents

Our residents are those who wve n

our property and inciudes the.r guests
and visitors Residents want us to
understand thewr charging requirements
arg provige guahty andg susta rabie
Formes with responsive services.

Why we engage

Our residents are our busiress and
staying ir touch with ther wants
ard needs s essantial to the Group's
performance and reputation

How we engage

Reguiar ergagement 1s faciitarea throwgh
our Welcome Offices situated r sach
neighbourhood, allowirg res aents 1o wak
r and ergage arectly with “he customer
service team. Our Custorrer —ub team are
aiso dedicated "o deanng with rasident
quer es va phone, ema.i, webste chat

OF SOCI3 MMedia to ersure ~e are prompt
ang resporsive to ssues. We hoid socia
events for our residerts as part of our
placamaking sirategy to encourage social
ergagement in our neighbourhoods and
stay n touch with resident reeds and
feedback through surveys.

Cutcomes of engagement

¢« Trree Get oiving naighhnnrhoodg
featured r the HomeViews Top 10
“best praces to hive” in the LK aurrg
the yaar, as voted by our residents

¢ We are partnered wth London Stadwm
as lifesty'e sporsor, provding residents
with access o corgerts, stadiur tours
ana Jse of cormmunity fac iities

» Automared NP5 surveys are sert
avery s;x morths with ar option o
‘gave a comimenrt

+ Get iving has now jored the Spotify
platform, prov dirg a further urigue
spportunity 1o engage with res.gents



Section 172 statement

At Get Living, listening to and engaging effectively with our
stakeholders is key to ensuring the right decisions are made.
As a result, the relationships with our stakeholders arc key
to the long-term success of the Group.

Qur retailers

Our retalers operate busiresses within
our reighbourhcods, with offerings
such as retail, ‘'gisure ana F&3 Retallers
want us to unaoerstand therr changing
requrrernents ang proviae affordabie
ang sustanabie space ard resporsive
seryices that heip them compete ard
operate succpssfuliy

Why we engage

Retarcers are a key eler~ent of cur

re ghbourhoods and rot ony serve our
resigents, but draw agditional visitors
playing a key role in our piaceraking
strategy. We engage 0 ensure progducts
and services car be providea to dei ver
rmuiua'ly beref cial outcomes,

How we engage

we bave a dedicatea tearm led by

ar experenced Head of Rerai that
ergage reguary w'th our retavers
through a var ety of commun.cation
charnels We adopt a talored approach
Lo our retaners who rarge from smail
ndependert businesses Lo .arge
natvonal corporates, The retail team
take the opportumty to cornect
with brands ana bu-d relationships
through atiending retan events

Our reighbourhood everts presert
an apportunity for our rétalers Lo
showcase ther offer ng

Outcomes of engagement

¢ Getiwvrg hosted exh:bit.on stands
at the Compietely Retall Marketplace
avents In Apr!ard September 2022

¢+ The Retai team increased ir s.ze
durrg the year ersurrg sJff clent
capac:ty to agequate'y service our
ex;sting retaiiers ara :n art:icipat:cr
for futdre retaiers as geveloprrerts
reach compietion

Our investors

Our mvestors are those who own shares
in Get _iving Investors want the Group
to generate attract ve returns and
“herefore require C ear ard transparent
commurcation of our long-term
strategies, short-term plars ard reguisr
.pdates of the Group's prograss
towards these

Why we engage

Investors provide sadrty furdirg to

the Group and 'rstitational nvesors n
particular are corstantly evaluating ther
portfolio hoidings. Sroviding irsightful
nformatior about the Get @ ving's
strategy ard performarce 1s cruc.al

for ther assessment of tha Group

ard alows them to prov ae vauabie
feedback ara make assessrmonrts for
capital dep oyrent The Group pays
special attent.or to mantamrirg regular
ang transparenrt dalogue with rvestors,
i orger (o ersure that they are treatea
ard informed equany

How we engage

The Board s made up of three Nor-
executive Drectors and an ndeperdert
Charr, a! of whom are inogeperdert from
the maragement team of the Group as
investor nominees The Board meafs

at least quarterly Get _wving regularly
meets with the irvestors arg provides
rmonthy and guarterly reportrg

Outcomes of engagement

e A Group strategy aay was hela
N December 2022 atteraed by the
Executive Tear™ ard a nurmber of
nvestor reprasentalives

» The Group cont rues to adopt and
adhere 0 the Wates Corporate
Soverrarce 2rinciples (MWates
2rircples”™), ircreasing trarsparercy
for rvestors and other stakeholoers
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Qur communities

Our commun tes are those wha live

in areas wrere we operate, such as
iocal residents, bus.nesses, schoois ard
chartes. Loca people and groups want
us to enkance the physical and soc:al
nfrastructure N thewr arza, helprg thar
cormmunity 1o thrive

Why we engage

We want our neighbourhoods e

tave a positive :mpact or the ocal
community We have 1o urderstana the
reeds of our 'ocal cormurities o bep
ther~ thrive whch has a drect rpact
or tre success of Get Livrg

How we engage

Work.ng i collaboratior with our
partrers, cur community suLpport

s wide-rangirg Get L ving has a
dedicated everts team wh.ch organises
ard funds year-rownd everts ard
actvities creating the oppOrtunIty
for peopla to come togetter which
are -rclusive and open to all We
ensure we listen to and consult with
residerts, busnesses and commurity
groups wher we geveiop a new
reighbourhood

Outcomes of engagement

« The _ab EZ0Q, East Village's creative
hub has heid a number of free
exbibimiors, workshops and acthvities
chrougkout the year

o Our lnspirrg Comrmunties =urd has
cortinued to support a rumber of
orgar.sat.ons ard nitiat.ves across
our neighbourbooas

o Dur Sports A sporsership erabies
ana erpowers the next gereration of
arhietes to achieve *herr armbitiors



STRATEGIC REPORT

Environment, social and governance

ENVIRONMENTA

SUSTAINABILITY

2022 has seer a step change in nterast r the ervronmer:a
performarce ard social credentias of property compan:es
such as Ger _ivirg This year we bave bu 't or our establshed
ESG strategy 1o practicaily ard culturally embed sustainabiity
with.r our operat ors ard our plans for the future,

our muit-facered approach to ervirormentar performance
rciuded engagemert with avery singie cmployee, capital
wnOrks to mprove erergy effic.ercy. mproverents to E5G
data gualty and processes. developirg robust gesign stanaards
ara tackiing the thorny ssue of emboaied carbor

new developrenrts,
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Improving environmental data quality

Access to high quality data 1s essent-al to urderstard:ing,
mprovirg and corrmuricating cur operational erergy ard
carbor petformance. —owever, as a landlord, we are part:icuiary
renart or access to residents’ ard comrercial terarts’ atility
reter roadings, whch undorpir oy ol es sacln gs Zrerdy
Lse Intersity and Scope 1, 2 ard 3 carbon emissiors

we have 'dentified opporturmties to automate Ltilities aata
ard mprove the granularity of data inputs through the Data
Communicators Company {DCC) smart meter network, heat
networks, and toT-erabied sensors. These wi'l replace current
practices, which are labour imtersive and reliant or less
frequert reporting ntervals

We are working to automate the coliation of lardiord utilizes
cata for common parts ard void properties, whereg we are
the dltirate bill payer Elsewhere, we have developed a pian to
originate ana mantam occupants’ .nformed consent to access
therr automated utihty daza, which make up the rmajority of
our operational emiss'ors Across al’ utiity consurnpticr data
sources, we wish o reduce reportrg intervais from a matter
of morths to a martter of mirutes.

n the meant:me, we have revamped our nternai ZSG data
dashboards to track the use of automated readings versds
marLai and est rmated reaaimgs as a KR, We have alsc

a gred our guarter y interral report ng with the EPRA's
sustainability Best Practice Recommendations (ZPRA sBPR)
for absolute electrcity, heat rg, gas and water consurpLon,
carbon emissions ard waste divers on rates

Building for the future

Get Livirg recocgnise the need 1o future proof buildng
perforrance during the des.gr and corstructior phase
We have therefore corsol dated our reguirements for new
aevelopments 1o guide our AISCLSsIons with tharg party
deveopers and ‘nform aur .n-house deveioprent proects

“he stardaras reflect a fabric-first “energy hierarchy” ara
draw or the _ow Znergy Transition ritiative (LE™ ) guidance,
arerging regulatiors ( rcluging the Fature Sormes Standara
and draft London 2an), ard professiona! staraards

Specific targers for Erergy Use intersty, space

heating demard ard embaodied carbon aligr with LE™
recommengatiors and refererce gu.dance from the Qoyal
nsttution of Chartered Surveyors (RCS) ard the Chartered
nstitute of [uilding Services Engineers (CiIBST) Targets for
thermat comfort refer to CIBSE technical memorarda TM52
ard TM539, whiie we have aeveloped our owr standards for
smar: metering ara zero renance on fossi fueis in operat.or

Tackling embodied carbon

Reducing the impacts on construction 's a key challerge for the
property industry that will reguire iInnovation ard collaboration
ttroughout the value chair We 'rcude a Whaoie _ fe Cyele
assessment as a reguirement .r new developments ana site
acquisit.ors, and seek To aign with _ETI stardaras for ermbadied
carbor. We have also carried cut ar :rnovative ana deta-iea
refrospective study of the embod ed carbor in our recent
developroent, Portaras Place -r cast Viiage,

The study offered 'mportart iessons ‘N how to wrprove
measurement and urderstarding of embodied zarbor across
the development supply chain and Get _v'ng supperied the
adthors of the report 1o pub ish a peer reviewed academic
study Ir the open access ;journai “Energies”

wWe will apply insights from this study to future projects.

These including identifying a WLC study as a deliverable

r projects corsultants andg contractor teams’ appontments
The inter-operability of Bullding Irformation Moaes,
construction/manufacture modeas and WLC assessment

tools should also be considered throughout the desigr and
construct-on process b s hoped that greater awarerass of
WD studies wliimpact desigr decisions to favolr ow-carbon
techrologies and encourage supp.y chairs to provide more
robust Snv ronmertal Performance Declarations

Energy efficiency works

The energy efficiercy of buildings 1s ermergirg as a key aual Ty
d fferent:ator, which cam be -rmprovea through capital works
to realce energy corsurp.on

Ir 2022 we @ertified ardlord 1ghing 'n commor parts

of our burdirgs as a key area for irmed ate :mprovermenr:
ard aeveloped detared plans to replace | ght:irg and mprove
Jghurg cortrols In common parts The woerks are expected
o reduce the slectroty consumptor of ardlora ght by
79% for "48 homes ' zast Vilage “hese berefits form part
of a trpe bottom Yne of reduced energy arnd mantenarce
costs, lower carbor erissiors and fewer vsible defects in
highly crafficked arsas. "he scher-e s expected to lead to
erergy ara mantenarce sav ngs of £38k per arnum at a Yed
on Costs of 12 3%, ard f successful, we armn o roll cut simi'ar
scheres In otker blocks.

Tre efficiency of distrct heating retworks has beer
dertfied as arother opporturty for mprovemert 10 2022
we berefitted from goverrmant furding under the Heat
Network Efficiency Scheme, and identified opportunities
to 'mprove heating effic.ency ard cormfort r East Vilage
We are continuirg o work with the Fear retwork operator
for the Queer Elizabetk Qlympic Park 1o deve op thase
cpportunites ' 2023

_cokirg further ahead, we are aeve.opirg a decarkon:sat:on
piar for ar archetypa piot in Zast Virage. Thas stuay will
gertfy cap tai works reguired o a'lgr wth tre Carbor

Risk Real =state Monitor (TRREM) net zero pathway and
rrake recommendations regard rg zero rerarce on fossil
fuers, 'ow erergy use, renewab’'e gereratior, erergy demand
resporsiveress, ard In-use vernficatior, Learrings from this
project will be appred throughour the porifono
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Environment, social and governance continued

ENVIRONMENTAL
SUSTAINABILITY
CONTINUED

Circular Economy panei discussion with Davig Philips.

Making sustainability personal

Every Get Living employes sets persoral targets to ntegrate =56
into their work ard apprasa, for the year To haip olr team ralate
key cumate ssues to their day-to-aay work, over 70 empioyees
attended cimate hiteracy sraning workshops i 2022

I hese workshops explored cimare within the broader
sustainability .ardscape, ncluding 1ssues such as physicar and
transtion risk, ara how these re-ate 1o Get L v rg Every employee
was also nvitod to additiorai training to update them or Get
Living's ESG progress throughout the year

Kickstarting the Circular Economy

Throughout 2022 we partnered wth our supply chair to
inrovate the Ifecycie of gomestic furr.ture ard kickstart
ar exemplar ¢ircular econormy business mode:,

wWe dent.fied that furmture 'r our oider homes was
beccming worn and i need of replacement A tradit ona,
linear business model would have conder~ned oider
furriture to landfill However, Get _ ving worked w-th our
supply chain to assess 16 840 ndiv.dua iters of furniture
for refurb:shrent and re-Use

This resulted 0 2,098 irtems (2% beirg refurbiskad

and re-used withir the Get _iving estate A further
7409 items [44%) were refurbishea and qonated o
charity. with the rermainder re-so.d or d'verted o energy
gererat.or from waste. The project represents sizabre
potential vaiue, both as direct charitabie donattons, and
the saca. mpact of supporting :ow carbon skills,

Re-sold iterrs were marketea for saie under our furrizure
prov.aer’s rew consamer brand "Reease” Our parirer
plans to expand the corsumer brara with sex-rertal
furniture from across the r wider business
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SOCIAL IMPACT

At Get Living, we know that a persor's home 's mare than
about bricks ard rortar, t's also about the community ard
neigrbourrood that they become a part of, where peopie
come together and fee conrectea. Thatr's why social value,
creatirg wider soca, ervironmentat and economic berefits,
s ore of the vital ingredients across our ne.ghbourhoods.

This Fas bean our phuosopby since Get Living was
fourded back r 2013 wth our ploneering neighbourhood,
tast Village Being a force for good rmears taking ar active
role in our neghlbrourhooas, work rg closely with residents,
lccai stakeholders ana weaer cormunites To that end, we
have not only dorated o locai charitable and commun'ty
causes in 2022, but we have also set up our own iritiatives
and proects that respond to local needs w'th the am of
SAPPOrtNg, emMpowering and upskiiing local communities,

Our Social Value Policy

We nvest :n places for the 'org terrm and 1f's mportan: to

Js that we focus our efforts rot orly on our neighbourhoods
and resiaents, but also the aider locality. Our role s 10 support
«ocal employrent ard locai supplers, become cvic fam iy
mermbiers of the cominmrurities in whick we operate, while
parsaing a green and sustarabie agenda.

We work hara to offer cecpie a better way o I've ara rertg,
n reighbourhoods that are ft for the future We aim to
provige great rertal homes, create bealthier places ard
boost the soc'a!l ara ecoromic worth of communities

Creative Placemaking
with The Lab E20

=aving laurched in 202 The _ab £20 kas guickly becormre
a rew flagship for expenential retall, curtural exhsbiton ard
creative workspace. Designed by Christopher Raeburn,
founcer of RAEBURN, the 3500 sa ft ard deubie-heighteg
space 'r Stratford plays host to gvents ana expernerces w th
various cultural partners for resigerts ang wager comimiinity

The Lab ras successfully rcubated iocal creat-ve-tech
start-ups. supborted the emergerce of iocar desigr
talert r partrership wrh the Lordon College of =ash.on
and works w'th ocal and gicbal culturai partrers for
furtrer col-aboratior between the fashior irdusiry, the
bulit ervirorment and the creative industres

In 2022, mFashon Distnet curated The Lab's cultura:
programme wth a focus on sustamability, commurity ara
creativity Acty tres rcluded ar invasimert seres evenrt
featuring pitching workshops and nvestmert ©:nics. a
_OANHOOD pop-up with a preview party and dpcycling
workshop, and a Project ReGo Exkibitior sugporied by
~oundatior for Future Lorder and Lorndor College of
—ashior. Regular monthiy events at The Lab =20 rciude
saisa classes, kpithing clubs ard a commurity fund clul

To achieve that am, we are working to

* help ocal econom s grow through the provisior of flexible,
higk-quality, value focl.ssed ne'ghrbourhood developmert,
de'wering homes, new job opperturities ard contribut.ons
to the loca economy  n turn, this attracts further inward
rvestment and car act as a catayst for further growth
and produciivity, As ong-term stakeholaers in the places
rowbich we operato, we aiso nvest 'n projects ard
ritiatives that support 1ocal businesses, nstitut.ons and
studerts 'n the formr of funding, upskilling and mMmentoring

+ support wrain rg, skills ard career development for our

ermployees and throLgh our supply chamn

¢ create wiger social va ue by supporting local causes

arg projects through our :nspirng Comrmurnites Fund
ard by monitoring anc target rg improvemert of
terart satisfacton

s rprove the health ard wellbeing of our residents

and empioyees through assessment ano introcuction
of iminatves such as biodiversity enbancement ard
provis:on of cultura ard physica activites

The Lak E20
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Environment, social and governance continued

SOCIAL IMPACT
CONTINUED

Supporting
Communities with
ActionFunder

Workirg with Actionfunder, Get _ ving s Inspiring
East village Community Fund supported seven 'oca:
communtty project act-vities .n 2022 Over £20,000
was awarded 10 non-profts mak rg an impact n the
local area

The laurch follows the success of a similar funding
campalgr at our New Maker vards neighbourhood
in Saiford n 2021 Across tha UK, Ger Living proviaes
funding Lo 'oca community groups ard nitatives
focused arcurd four key thomes

o arvirg locar work and growth,

* working towards more sustairabie cit.es.,

« mcreasing focus on the arts and creat vity, and
» Improvng regrbourhood incius vity

A selact or panel, which included 1oca resigdents at
Zast Viliage, chose the wirning proects based or the
above criera This year the Ihspirng Zast v lage Fund
supparted a broad range of grojects and ritiat ves that
focus or upskiring ana educatior, [Ife ska!s workshops
ard groups “hat bring together ara cornecrt local
people These projects are ~=aady 'o Work - Vine
Conrect, XL? Homework Project, who s Seh nd the
Carrera - Youth Charter at Londor Stadium Learr:ing,
YouMelis @ The Lak 220 - Catalyst in Commurities,
QEOP Crrigutding Goes Carping, .rclusive Commurity
Cookirg, Skate Cals & Pals.

Local Girlguides group, supportea oy the 'nsoiring East Vilage Fund.

Get Living Gives Back at Thorogood Gardens, Stratford

Get Living Gives Back

In 2022 Get Livirg faunched Get _ving Give 3ack,
an oppertunity for colleagues to voiunteer for group
chartable iIntiatives In the cammunities In which

we operate Co:leagues spent a day of their time
supporting var-ed pro;ects that closety angr w'th
Get Lving's wider social value cbjectives, including
promoting biodiversity, combating loreliress arg
providing essentials for those most In need.

50 tearr mermbers part:c:pated .n 2022, weik furtheor
actvities planred for 2023

Tre events held .rclugsd

Thorogood Gardens, Stratford

n late Spring several Get _iving coi'leagues ,oned
~th some of our key supply partners to rejuverate

a commurty garder n Stratfora “he team hemed
~ith weed rg and mowing, the planting of beds and
corta.rers ard the pstallatior of a shed ard brd boxes
Slarts that would encourage widlfe o the area weare
also selected to hep promote Diocdiversity

Blackfriars Settlement, Southwark

Ovwver the course of twe days a group of Get Living
staff visitea the B ackfrars Settlemert Day Centre

to prepare, cook and serve ‘unch o a group of eldery
Southwark res,cgents. The tear~ spent tme chatting
with the residents, tosted a guiz and sarg songs

Newham District Foodbank, Stratford

'rstead of an all-co:league Secret Sarta and o support
those strugglirg weth the cost of Ivirg crisis, the Get
Liyng Stratfora off ce chose to make donat ons to

a local focabark, Over a three-week period nearly 300
focd items were qonated ana deyvered to the charity
tho waek before Christmas

Coco Collective, Lewisham

The Coco Coilect ve s an afro guaspora commun ty
garder :r _ewisham_  n Noverrber, nine people from
across Get _ivirg were guided by the Coco Collectve
tear 1n a aay of bramrbie c.earng, weedirg, and
digging up a awr ard replacirg T with new turf,

all to rmprove the garder for “Fe oca. community

Don't Walk Past, Manchester

Towards the end of the yaar staff ara res.dents at
New Maker Vards, Salford, donated unwartoed but
usable ciothes for the homeless ir Manchester
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The launch of Hyona Studiss at East Village.

Bringing local art
to East Village with
Hypha Studios

At the end of 2022 we began work.ng with
Hypha Studios, a charty matchirg creatives
w.th empty spacas for free, to convert a former
Sainsbury’s store irto & creative space for
emergirg design talert at Zast Vilage

Centred around thea themes of design

ard comrmunity living, the space has become

a showcase for a ser.es of artists and exhibt ors,
cerrent.rg East Village as the gateway to £East
London's creatve district ana further supportirg
Get Lving's strategy :r creating an nclugive
and sustainabie urbar neighbourhoocd

"Creanvity 1s central to many communit:es and our rewes: design
stud'o ir Stratford's East V' llage wil bring rew life to a vacant
commercial space, transforrming the un.tirto a rot-for-profit
gallery and exhibit:on space for ocal and emerging talent

"ZasT Yilage s afantastic ocaton for the rew ard historic local
communit es, and with great fravel conrectons we really hope

that the exhibitions wiil a:30 araw new visitors to the area Witk

The two unigue ga'lery spaces showcase curated
and mmers.ve warks by local artsts and emergirg
talent frorm Golasmiths University students. As
part of the resigency, the arusts are also engag:ng
with the local commun.ty

Elephant
& Castle
Busiress
Forum.

‘ts geep cultural h:story, Stratford s becoming a new creative Fub
for Lordon ara Hypba Studios s exc.ted 1o be working with Get
_v:ng to brrg a series of exkbitiors to E20

Camilla Cole, Founder of Hypha Studios

Working with local businesses through
the Elephant & Casitle Business Forum

=stabnshed ir 2021 the Zephart ard Castle Bus ress
Sorurm s a vehicle for lgcal businesses to waork together

to take advartage of ocal opportunites, develop Intiatives
to prorrote the local comrercial ard catura offer ard
apply for fLraing o denver projects r Ziephant ard Cast'e.
The forur~ has so far brough: togetrer 86 wcal busINesses
anag staketciders, lea by a stearng groeLp ard an appoirted
chair person,

Two successfui projects have beer delvered to date

The Torurm s working © parcrership with the LAL-_LC
Ur.versity and the Peopie's Cormpany Theatre w 't suppor:
from Scoutbwark Councr: 1t s also work ng with Lirban
Z'ephart Fest val ard Dig-tai Market rg face to face
tra.rirg to suppors 30 local businesses.
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Environment, social and governance continued

SUSTAIN

Sustainapie fashon
show at the Lab E20.

Strorg govarrarce s essenual to ensure that good :ntertons
are carred through ta practical ends Th-s s particulary rue r
matiers of sustarabity, where sustainabl"ty thered benchrrarks
and disclosures augment our wider corporate governance

Get Lvirg's approach o £5G benchrrarkirg s guided

by participatior in the GRESB, and supported by voiLntary
disclosures on our 5o0¢igl mpact ana the wide-rang:irg
sustamabiity 3est Practice Recommendations of the =ZPRA
(EPRA sBPR). We are 'rvestigatrg the recommendatons of
the Task force for Cimate-related Tinanciar Disciosures (TCFD)
arnd nclude nght-touch disclosures :n this report We aiso make
mardatory disc.osures under the Streamlired Ernergy and
Carbor Reportirg framework, detaiis of whigh are

provided beiow

5-star GRESB rating

For e third year runring, Get Living partic.patec n the
GRESH and was awarged a 5-star GRESS ratng for Stardirg
investmerts Our Development Assets werg aiso awarded a
4 star GRES3 rat ng for the second consecutive year, plac rg
Get owvirg second from top in our Resigentas Multi-“amily
peer group of eight comparies

A3 aan rvestor-led organisation, GRESS provides a rgorous
and rounded framewark for sustarable practice and preparg
=5G data for the financia. markets. Get L v rg have berefitted

from tre regular benchmarking process which collects, vaildates,

.

scores, ard rdependartly berchmarks E5G data

ABILITY AN
GOVERNANCE

Partcipat or 'n GRESB has helped shape our poicy

andg approachk to ESG leadershsp, ircludirg reportirg rsk
rmanagerert, stakeholder ergagerent, deveiopment standards,
bund guaity, greer bur-dng cert fcat:on, erergy efficercy,
watar eff c:ency, waste management and tota! greenhouse
Jas armissions

Preparing for the Task force on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures

Get _iving worked with externa speciaists o invest gate the
racommendatiors of the "CFD ard carred out a 9ap analysis
i~ preparat or for emerging mMmandatory requirements

We have rvestigated the raie of cimate on Get Livirg's
goverrarce, strategy, risk management and targer sett rg,
idertfyirg a number of “guick wins” to rmprove our approach,
as werl as deeper systemic charges that we intend o -mplerrert
over “he medium to lopg terr Clhrrate strategy s nreravoven
throughcust our wider strategy

Get Living PLC



Iable: Snapshot of our sustainability journey

TCZFD Recomrmeandation

Response

See also

Governance

The Board’s role

Cirmate matters are rased at the 3oard’s guarterly meetings as appropr.acs,
—ernenls ol chimate risk are also captured \n the Audit Sub-commitiee’s duties
regarding general risk managerment

Corporate Governanrce

Repor: page 48

Management’s role

Ciirrate strategy s represented within sen.or maragement by the CCO, who
s responsibie for 28G Orciuairg chimate-related opporturities ard risk) Tre
COO 15 supporied by external advisers, the =256 Steening Comm:tiee and
tha Heaa of Net Zero

Executive Team
page 51

Strategy

Climate
opportunities
and risks

The broader topic of sLstanability” has been dentfed as a prncipal risk that 1s
actively maraged and regulary reviewed by scr-or management “Sustamnatiity”
Nciudes chimate trams.ion risks such as build cost inflat on and changing customer
expectations, while phys.cal cimate mpacts are captared as sensit:ivities o otber
principal nisks, such as acute ervirorrrental events irpacung Fealth ard safety,
and investor sentimert Impacting market rnsk

Principal Risks page 40

Climate impacts
on strategy and
financial planning

Working weth external aavisors, “orvis Ger L v ng carried out a TCFD
GAP Ana yss 'n 2022 Thisigertif'ea a number of "gquick wrs” to improve
our approach and nciuded strategic recommerdatiors to benefit from the
Taskforce's wiger recomrmendations

Susta nability goas are already ircluded in every team member’s arnuai
appraisal to prorote ownershp of sustainabilty (ard climate) at every level
of Get Living's culture Sudget has a:s0 beer aiacated to improve E2C ratirgs.
reduce iand ord glectr.city corsumption and invest in ESG data guality
through srart metering infrastructare ard processes.

Snvirarmentar

Sustainability page 30

Scenario analysis

Get _ving 1s corductirg a Scerarnio Araiysis for standing assets r 2023
Deve oprment assets are alreaay rvestigated by spec anst consultarts 1o
werafy ard rutigate physical cirate risks such as floodairg, extreme heat
anrd high wirds throughout the deve opmert cycle

Risk management

Identifying
and assessing
climate risks

The Executve Team regularly revews all principal risks ard how these arc mtigated
and rraraged across Get Living’s busiress activities. The ESC Steer'ng Commitiee,
which s chairea by the CO0O a sc provides suppart to senior maragement
regarding thedentif cation ana nteract.or of ciimate rsks

Maraging Risk arda
nterna: Conrtrons
page 40

Managing
climate risks

Get Living seeks to future proof assets against emerging phys.ca: ard transit.on
chimate risks through robust new buid stardards ard improvements to the
erergy efficiency of exist rg neighbourboods We are work.rg e guartfy the
capita commitments required o align with CRREM decarbonsat on pathways
ang are ass investirg i tra rming o mprave awareress of ciumate sensitivilies
and rpacts

Ervirormental

Sustairab ity page 30

Integrating climate
within wider risk
management

nhght of the TCF2 Gap Araysis, we are working to improve understanding

of "climate” both withir the “sustainab-lity” ageraa, and the proager bus ness
strategy larascape. To s end, all prreipai r sks are assessed for cimate
sensitvities to h.ghhight the nteractior between ¢ imate matters ard traatiors;
risk cassficat ons suck as market rsk ara bealth and safety

Prircipai Risks page 40
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Lnvironment, social and governance continued

SUSTAINABILITY AND
GOVERNANCE CONTINUED

Table: Snapshot of our sustainability journey cont nusd

TCEQ Recommeraanon Rasporse See also

Metrics and targets

Climate metrics Detatled ¢ imate metrics are disclosed anruaily v Get _wving's annual Sustainability Report
Sustairability Repors, whick aligns w th EPRA sBPR standards.

Greenhouse Scope 1, 2 and 3 greenhouse gas emrissions are disc osed annuaily SECR Staternent

gas emissions naccordance with the Strearlired Energy and Carbor Reporting page 38
requirements, which are included «n this report.

Targets for Get _iving 1s -nvestigating angnmert with the Carbor Risk Real Estate Moriior

improvement (CRREM) methodology and aspire to set targats in line with the UK's Nationa:

Deterrmined Contribut ons to the Paris Climate Accords.

EPRA’s sustainability Best Practice Recommendations

Ger _ ving's annual Suszanability Repart for 2022 wal contirue 20 InC Lae detalled sustamabity metrics ' ine we-ik the
Zoropeanr Pubigc Real Estate Association's sustarrabiiity Best Bractice Recommeraatorns (EPRA sBPR;. “hese include guality
assured statements or the portfolio’s erergy consurmptior, water corsumptior, carbon emissions, waste managemert, greer
buLilaing certif cation, social ‘mpEact, employment praciices, procurerrent practices ara goverrance. The report for 202° whick
was publishen in 2022, car be founa at https /www getivirg corm/about/esg-pocy/.

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

Get Lvng PLC ermussions ard energy wsage statermenrts are reported r the beiow tables for the year enairg 31 Secember 2022
Absoute emissions/consurrpt on, iike-for-like anda ar irtens Ty vawie' for 2027 and 2022 are reportaec These “abies set oLt the
em ss:ors and consurmptor for the ert ty overal ard the spit between "Residertial” ard "Student Accommodation” asset types
_tke-tor-ike ana rtensty valdes irglude aill corsurming assats owned for two conseculive years within the ertity. The approach
taker folows guidance prov-ded by the GHG Report.rg Guide ines (BE1S, 20'9)" See Apperaix for further aetals of the
reporting metkodology.

Table 1: Get Living PLC Greenhouse Gas Emissions Statement for year ending 31 December 2022

Apsaute em ssions Like-for-nke/degree day adjusted _ke-“or-uke/degree day
{torpes COe) emssions ("onres CO,e) adjusted intensity (kgTO,e/m? NLAj

Sector ang GHG source 2021 2022 2027 2022 % cnarge 2021 2022 % change

Scope 1 813 1,178 738 970 31% 15.7 20.7 31%
. Scope 2 2,889 2,848 2,860 2,714 -5% 10.1 8.6 -5%
Residential k

Scope 3 3239 3,230 3,150 3,096 ~2% 11.1 10.9 -2%

Tota 5,941 7,256 6,748 6,780 0% 238 23.9 (1%
Student Scope 1 237 218 237 250 5% 43.4 46.0 o%
Accommodatior Scope 2 74 85 74 B85 15% 136 15.6 15%

Scope 1 1.050 1,396 975 1,220 5% 18.46 23.3 25%
Total Scope 2 2,963 2,933 2,334 2,799 -5% 10.2 8.7 -5%
7

Scope 3 3,239 3,230 3,150 3,096 -2% il1.1 10.9 -2%

Totai 7.252 7,559 7,053 7,115 1% 24.4 246 1%

L ke-for-like excluges assets That were oLronased, sold or wnder rofuroisament aurng the two years repcried
ntersity vaies are caicuiated or a xgCl e/’ tasis for GHG ermissiors ara <Wwh /M’ for energy canrsampticn

I MLLDS /3s5ets Sulisming service gov Jk/government/upioads/sysiem/upioads/attacnment datafe/ 791529/ Snv-repartirg-guidance rc _SECR_3IMarcn pa
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Table 2: Get Living PLC Energy Usage Statement for year ending 31 December 2022

ACso Jle Consurrpton _ike-for-l ke/degree day adjused Iika-for-uke/degree day
{Wh .n GOGC's) consarrpT on (kWwh n 200 s) adiusted ptersity (KWh/m7 LA
SeCtor and energy sowurce ‘202; 2022 2021 2022 o % change ‘2621 2022 % change
Eectric ty 8,100 8,875 7,981 7,681 -4% 28.2 271 -4%
Res.densial District heat.ng
_analord & Gas 11,283 13,083 10,858 12,509 15% 38.3 44.2 15%
Total Erergy
Larchord 19,393 21,958 18,839 20,190 7% 66.5 71.3 7%
Eectrety 6,363 6,888 5,999 5,842 -3% 225 220 -3%
Resden:ial District Heatng
Terants & Gas 11,058 11,121 10,99¢ 11,522 5% 41.4 43.4 5%
Total —rergy
Tenants 17,420 18,009 16,989 17.363 2% 639 65.3 2%
Eiectric.ty 148 439 348 439 26% 8539 BO.S5 26%
Student Distr ¢t Heating
Accortmedatior & Gas 1,232 1,195 1,292 1,371 5% 237.2 251.7 6%
Total cnergy 1,641 1,634 1.641 1,810 10% 3011 332.3 10%
Eectroty 14,811 16,202 14,329 13,961 -3% 43.6 48.4 -3%
Total District Heatirg
& Gas 23,643 25,399 23,140 25,402 10% 80.1 B8.0 10%
Total Energy 38,454 41,601 37,489 39,364 % 129.8 136.3 5%

1 ight of aur 2fforss to IMmprove ervironmenta, data guality, we Pave increased the scope of erergy data sources, whiist refinirg
the methogology of our carbon accourting {for Instarce via the apportiorment of erviss.ons across GHG Protocor scopes ard
orgarisat.onal bourdares),

Most matenally, we have secureg access o heat consumpiion data for East Village, which s included for the first e, Aggregated
gata was used on a plot-by-plot basis ard apportioned o landlord and terant spaces on an area basis. Consumption wthin
leasehold properties owned by Triathlon Homes has also beer exciuded for the first tme, followirg a getailled review of best practice
criter a (GHG Protocol) relatng o ermissiors that fall withir financial and operatiorai contror of the business istorc data for 2021

1$ re-stated 1o reflect these improverrents and like-for- ke metrics use the revised historic data accordingty to ensure consistency

Absolute consumpt on Fgures have Increased o reflect the absorpuor of new developmert ir East Vilage ard New Maker
Yards, ard increased occupanrcy of Portchester House ir Elephant Central, Like-for-tke mertrcs rclude degree day adjustiments
{adjusting for weather conait.ors), whichk suggest that heat dermanrd has not reducea n proportior to the relatively mild winzer,
with gas corsumption growing or a reiatve basis owever as gras and other eneray SOWrcAs mprove, absotuto and like for
hke degree day adjusled emrlssions metrics have berefitted from reduced carbor factor (the carbon em.ssions resuiting from
rhe usage of a part cular form of erergy). for both gria eiectricity and gas supplies “his means that for eguivalent erergy
J4sage, the carbor erissiors for both erergy Types wili be lower thar the previous year

s eryisaged that continued mprovemerts to Lt ity data collect.on may create some rital voiart nty .r SECR metr ¢s,
whilst ganerating operationai insights to reduce consumptior m the mediur-rerm,
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Principal risks and uncertainties

MANAGING RISK AND

INT

FRNAL CONTROLS

Get Living continued to strengthen its internal controls framework
during the year, which enhanced its ability to manage risk.

Overview

The Executive Team aralyses risks on a monthly basis ard
reviews how these are mitigated and managea across all areas
of Get Lving. _ike all busiresses, the Group faces a var ety of
risks that have the potential to impact its performance ana
ability to realise vaiue in reigbbourhoods. This includes exterras
fac:ors that may arse from the markets 'n which the Group
operates, governmert policy, reguiation ard general economic
condit-ors, as weil as internal risks that anse from the way .r
which the Group 's managed ard structures its operations
Risks are considered as a fundamenta: part of decisior rraking,
determining strategy ard cors.dering rew opportunities

The Group has a range of :nternal controls ard operatiors:
procedures thart are designed to effect.vely manage risk, but s
recogrised that risk carnct be totaly enmirated A Risk Register
s mairtained ana updated monthly by the Executive Team wth
contributior from serior maragemert t rcudes current ang
future mitigatons of the :aent.fied risks, as well as potential
opportunitias, and is discussed at eachk gquarterly Board meetirg
Our princ'pai risks corsist of the most signif cart rsks impact rg
tre Group ard are corsiaerad across a bwo year “mefrarme

Tre Executive Team recognsses trat = has imited akyl ty to
control certair externai risks that the Group faces, such as
governmert policy, bur keeps the possible impact of such rsks
under review, fak:rg mitigating act or where possible, and
considerng therm as part of the overal decis.on-rakirg process.

“re Audit Committee s resporsible for reviewing effectiveneass
of the Group's nterral controis and r'sk maragement systems
or benalf of the Board.

Outlook

Our risk assessment has evolved over the past tweive rmonths
e oaclairess e new dnd grretying Feks argey driven by the
macro-economic ervironrment, 2022 saw unprecedented
global shifts causea by the war r Ukraire and post-icckdown
2coromic supply corstramts resulnrg in starp nflationary
hereases and a cost of ivirg crisis weth soar ng enargy prices
UK polntical .nstabiiicy and policy charges 'ed o interest rate
vo atiity and the 'argest singie-meeatirg increase r the Sark
of Englard Base Rate in 30 years, d-srupt.ng francias markets
towards the end of 2022 ard beyord We will contnue o
focus or the risks relevart to the Get _virg busiress whick
Fave the highest akellhood o adversely rmpact operations
ana/or prevert vaue growth, the cost of iving cr sis ard
nCreasing arergy costs rmpact ng on Bt marker demanra,
econamuc declire ara b.gh cost of .ending or property vaues
and avallability of capital; Industry regulatior ang cost inflatior
corstraning rovenue growth and aperat.orai effciencies
preventing attract ve nvestor returns

The Execulive Team has cons dered emerging nsks and their
potential impact or the Group. In thes regard, one adaitional
principai risk has been wert fied, developrent risk, as the Group
has row taken respons.il ty for managsrg our development
projects In-house.

Principal risks heat map
Residual risk (assessed after ‘Existing Controls”™)
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A

Market

Inherent risk rating Residual risk rating

Hign High
FRY e e .
@ rcrease \f/ Increase

Risk description

Declne .n market conditions, reductior n dermard for UK
real estate, changes in PRS corsurrer behaviour, changes in
political policy regarding 3:R homes, ircreased competition
and interruptions due tG other development activities and
geopolitical ssues that may adversely affect the Group's
portfoio valLation and performance.

Commentary on risk in the year

Despte headwinds of r 3ing inflatior ana interest rates ncreasing
the cost of ving n the UK, the BER sector experenced arother
record-breaking year in terms of irvestrmart, with cver £4 3 billior
irvested ' 2022* Demand n the sector has contnued <o far
cutsirnp supply supporting pricing growth and rmit gatng the
varuatan r sk by offsetting yield pressure The PRS market
shows resilience in the inflat-onary ervironment as It provides
more flexioility and a ‘ower finarc:ai cormpitment cormpared
tc home awrership

An expardirg porifo 1o belps to mitigate aganst changing
factors that right rcrease barriers to entry Get _wving
opered Port ards Prace .n Auglst 2022, add rg a further
524 new homes 1o the hears of Zast visage in addit.on

to g further 289 homes aurch.rg at New Maker Yards n
Salford in June 2022 VWe cont rue to see development
exparsion with the Group increas.ng its portfoio va:Le as
a resJult of significant capal experditure, Newtor Place

15 due to reach practica cormpetior r the secord haif of
2023, whilst Elephart and Castie Town Centre Is expected
to aurch r 2026

Mitigation

* Get Living has estabished 3 Pricing Commitice r the year
chared by the Feaa of Portfolio Maragemert which meets
rnorthiy and sets the PRS pric'ng takirg into accourt external
factors such as enguiry «eveis, reasons for move outs and
genera. rarket conditjons.

+ We proactively keep Jp o date with ard react accordirgiy to
changes to relevart legisiation nouding potert-a. government
rent corIrols or similar Irmitatiors through active angagement
with policy makers, ndustry boales ana professionar advisors,
the Renters’ Reform 311 s being activery reviewed

s We cortirually strve to ungerstard the reeas of the
customrer and cormur cate with residerts through customer
satisfaction surveys

* We invest nmarketing campaigrs to ensure a clear ard
cormpettive market postior,

©onttos Sewwsavills.co ukfoesearch articles 229130/339547-0

Financing and capital markets

Inherent risk rating Residual risk rating

MeaiL™ Medium
@ increase @ NO change

Risk description

mabiity to raise appropriate equity or debt as required o
meet the needs of the business Changirng capita market
cond t ans coud drive adverse movement in interest rates
and have a negative iImpact on property valuations and
lcar covenants

Commentary on risk in the year

Resilence n the PRS sector and swift recovery post-panderic
aviderced by high occupancy, coilectior rates and rental growth
provides conf-dence fo existirg and patentia. ienders

Debt markets were volatiie \n the period with rsing nterest rates
and a reduction n the avalability of finance We wera significartly
protectad from nsing rterest rates through Fedgirg our floating
rate fac'hties.

The Portiands Place developrrent loars, with a total balance of
£°53 0 million at the year end, are due 1o mature n September
2023 The refirancing of this debt s 0 progress with strorg
ender irterast and we anticipate clasing this ref'ranc ng i
agvanrce of the gevelopment .car mat.urty dates,

_ook.ng further ahead to March 2024, the £32.6m New

Maker Yards Phase " debt faciity will require refinancing

wihilst the £64 8m New Maker Yards Phase 2 facir oy will

require reforanc rg wnless an opt on +s taker to extend

the fact ty for one more year

Mitigation

* The compostior of the Group's debt portfoio 's monitoreg
o ensure complhance with coverarts and continueed
avallabihity of funds

« The Board s repcried to on a guarterly bas.s w il regards
o currert debt, coverart compilarce and projectiors of
future furd ng requirements to ensure early warning of
potant-a: issues

= We ergage with debt advisers and lenders proactvely,

keeping abreast of marker freras which feed nto
underwrt rg assumpt.onrs

« We approach potertial eraers wer n advarce of
a refiranc ng requirement o reduce ref-nancing r sk

Annual Report 2022
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STRATEGIC REPCGRT

Principal risks and uncertainties continued

C

Sustainability

Inherent risk rating Residual risk rating
High Figh

@ No change @ Increase
Risk description

impacts of environmeanrtal everts aue
to climate change. ESG requirements
on operations and net zero carbon
obi.gations. A falure to antcpate and
respond to environmértal r sks cou-d
damage our reputation and cause
disruptior :n our cperations Growirg
nvestor ana lerder praferences for
sustainable properties may impact the
Group’s abihity to meat current ard
fuature financing comrmitmenrts

Commaentary on risk in the year

Work 's in progress to quartify the capital
commutments required o aligr weth the
Zarbon Risk Real Estate Monitor (CRREM)
decarbonisat or pathways. We are aso
investing 'r trainirg o mprove awargness
of c'imate sers.tivities ard impacts

Get Lv rg was awarded the top 3-star
GRES3 rating for the third year runring
for the operatiorai portfoio r recogr:tion
of cur sustairablty performarce

Mitigation

¢« (et Lvrgs ESG Steerirg Committee
consigers sustainabilty, includirg
phys.cal and trarsitional chimate
risk, and s sporsoreda by the Ch-ef
Operat rg Officer with support
fror the —ead of Net Zero

* Physical chimate risks are monitored
at an operational "evel ard adaressed
in development with screenirg ano
mt:gatior measdres assessed through
food nsk assessmenrts, microclimate
ard wnd safety studies ard tharmai
cormfort standards.

+ Cimate transit on risks are addressed
through robust new buiid stardards ana
improvemerts to the energy efficiency
of exist ng neighbourkcods

+« We nvest r =56 focused traming ard
personal object ves for arp oyees

D

Cyber security
and technology

Inherent risk rating Residual risk rating

High Mediium mgn
«»| NO charge @ No cnarge

Risk description

Critical system :nterrupt:ons through
systems faillure or major -7 securty
breaches couid lead o exposure or
loss of data held by the Group, ieading
to operationa! disruptior, reputat onat
damage ard potential regulatory fines,

Commentary on risk in the year
Get Living has progressed the
recommendations from the latest
Cyber ALd.z report This has
strengthered Get Livirg's operat.rg
position by adoprting best practice
earnings ir the NCSC gutdance and
implemerung recommendatons

Get wvirg s now conducting detarled
analysis and threat assessmenrt which
ailows for real-time Aj response o
threats ard 24-bour montoring

Mitigation

« GCet Lving operates in 3 secure
encrypted clowd ervironmeant
rormored around the ciock by
expererced service partners and
all systerms are fully backed up

« Dotaled analysis and threaat
assessrrert s conducted through
Darktrace which alows for real-t me
Al response to threats and 24 -four
morzar ng of both or s.te ard
remote works ard activtes

* The Group relies or key systems
o enaura oporationai cfficiency.

» Reguiar Cyber Audits are carr ed
out by thirg-party firms

Get Living PLC
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People

Inherent risk rating Residual risk rating

Low Low
{am) (4> No on
() No change > No crarge

Risk description

Group perforrmance could suffer due to
the loss of key staff through resigratonr
or extended periads of abserce Fallure
to attract and retain a diverse workforce
could impact performance as it s key
that cur employees can conrect with
our residents, commun-ties and

wider stakehoiders

Commentary on risk in the year

A HR-led policy review dunng 2022
resulted 'r an enhancement ta our
sickress and parental leave Regular
avents and meenirgs led by the
Executive Team were impiemerted

N the year to ncrease top-dawn
communical:or andg encourage busirass
engagermert We continued o promoie
health and wel'lbeing across the
business through a rumber of everts
and activties he d durirg the yaar

Mitigation
¢ We provide earrirg ard deve:opmenrt
support for ail employees as weti
as specific eadership trairirg
and execut ve coachirg for
dent fied talent.

« Divers.ty and inclus.or qata s
contnuously monitored, ncluding
gerder pay gaps

* Apprasal structures are
r place to support employee
performance, deve:opment
rternal career progression

« Compary poic es and our amployee
value propositior are regular'y
reviewed to ensure they are relevant
for our peop.e

= Empioyee feedback s coilectea
through surveys ard everts arg we
prormate wellbeirg activit es.

* Executve rercureratior and ong-term
ncertwe pans are airgred with Group
perforrrarce ard overseen by the
Reruneration Commitiee



F

Regulatory

Residual risk rating
Modhium

Inherent risk rating
~ign

@ No change @ No change
Risk description

Faliure to rmonitor, adhere to ard be
proactve to changes .n the legislazive or
regulatory emvironmant, ircluding the RET
regirre, T'SE isting rulas, GDPR, buiding
ragJiations, rentai reform, corsumer
protection law and Associatior of
Residertiar Letting Agents (ARLA) coud
lead o operat onal disrupt.on, complaints,
reputatiora: darrage and regulatory fines

Commentary on risk in the year
Quarter'y goverrarce review meetrgs
were held throughout the year Yo actively
monitor regulatory Compluance and review
farthcorirg 'egislator

Get L ving engages Savills to arsure egal
ard reguiatory corpliamce across all
neighbourtocds.

Durrg the year bwo senior ega. counse:s
.oired the tTearm and subsequent to

the year erd Get _iving appointed a
—aad of Tax.

Get Lving s workirg wib advisors to
roritor and assess the rsk of potent al
rentai reform regulatior, :ir retatior to both
currert and future governmenrts

Mitigation

+ Regular advice s received from
crofessional advisors ard we actively
ergage with rdusiry bodies to ensure
in-nouse knowledge s maintained

¢ We mave nvested negai ard coroorate
affairs teamn who proactively 1o ubur
changes to reievant egisiation ard
CoONguCt horzon scans 1o ersure the
Group s kept abreast of votental and
actdai regulatory charges. A programme
of ergagemert witn key oolicy makers
s orgoing.

s We are conducting a reveew of consumer
grotection aws relevart to tre resident-al
sector to ensure existing orocesses and
orocedures ase fully corpliant Action
pomnts with traring will be <cllad sut,
audted and updated on ar annual basis

Health and safety

Residual risk rating
MeciLm

inherent risk rating
—High

@ No change i4») No change
Risk description

A major health ard safety ircident could
lead to loss or injury 10 residents, staff or
contractars as well as reputationa damage,
financial loss and cotential labuity We
oart.cularty corsider fire safety and our
responrsibility to xeep our residents safe
ard ensure our buldings are cormpbant
with tre 'atest bullding safety regulations

Commentary on risk in the year

Get Living's Operauors Director oversees
ard mplermants H&S policies with

+he assistance of a dedicared —ealth

ard Safety Maragear. A health and

safety matrix has beer developea and
implemerted across ali operatiorar areas.
The Group has contirued o uncertake
buiidirg surveys and risk assessments

o gertify areas where fire safery
remediatior or mproverert works are
required to our buildings, commencing
recessary works pased on adv ce from
interral and exterra. experts

Mitigation

« Quarteriy bealir ana safety
rmeet,ngs are he-d ard charred by
the CZ0, attended by a number of
representatives across the business

+ Each Get _iving bulairg undergoes an
annual heaith ard safety aadit as we!l
as a fre and generai rsk assessment
with actiors docurented

« Developrrert project heaith arad
safery paspobsilily s rmaraged by
principal contractors who cortrol
sites, delver trairrg and manage safe
corsiructior ervirgnments

» Cet Livirg has corvened a senior
maragerent weekly forur o discuss
and provige direction on matters
relat ng to the fre safety of the
exterral wa, corstructor of buldirgs
withir the Get L ving porifons

» Advice s recerved from industry
experts at east on a weekly basis.

Annual Report 2022
43

H

Development

Inherent risk rating Residual risk rating

Modium low Medium
TN N
(L m (Utva

Risk description

Inapity to delver quaiity 3tR assets
with flexicle and sustairao.e des:gns
on time and within cudgest could have
a significart impact on performarce
and future growth plans e the current
enyirgnment, securng a contractor
1s chaslengirg and construction cost
inflation makes it challeng.rg to make
crojects viacle

Commentary on risk in the year
The Group established an r-house
development team durrg the year
bringirg a wealth of experence and
expertise of project managerment
and constructior

Got Livirg was largely protected from
the aaverse \mpacts of the irflatorary
crvirormert on corstruction costs aue
to forward funding arrargemerts and
fixed price dract development Proects

Mitigation

* Get _iving has ar r-rouse deveropment
maragament Team wth signifcant
experiance ard strorg relationships
Witk third-party aevelopment ard
constructon advisors

+ Tia Group parrers w.th reputabie
contractors krown to deliver
quality schermes

« We actively monitor cost 'riat or,
Interest rates, rerts and y'eids as
woll @3 @nalyse Lends LU IUENUTY new
potentral r'sks as they emerge and
react accorairgiy
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Operating performance

The 2022 resuits delvered a strong performanrce for Get Living.
We made significant progress through further rvestmert n
dewveloprmerts and capturng strong renta: demand which
contrbuted to significant rertal growth and hioh stab ised
occupancy ‘evels

Rarta incorme of £83 4 mill on for the year represents ar
increase of 30.7% when compared to 2021 (E63 8 mul-or)
“he exceptiorai leasing performance ard delivery of

new pipe- e led to net rertal income of £62 6 mithon,

arn ncrease of 37 9% versus 2021 (£45 4 million)

We cortinued to invest in the improverren: of homes and
neghbourhocds within cur portfoiio, with the conunuation
of a refresh program upgrading the guauaty of our ax.stirg
homes r East Village

Ger Livirg's costs of operatiors cortnue to be carefuly
raraged through control of overhead costs. Totai costs as
a proportion of ircomea reduced w:th the Group's EPRA cost
ratio being 65.6% (31 December 2027 73 2%}

Subsecuent o the year end the Group maae a paymert of
£18 3 miiorn to HMRC as part of an agreement signed ir
March 2023 to settie an orgoing fax erauiry; see note '8 of
tke financial statemenrts

Development programme

Partiards Place opered ts doors in August 2022, adding 524
new hor~es to the beart of East Village and closed the year
79% occupied reflect:ing the strorg demard In June 2022 28%
further Formres were \aunchea at New Maker Yards ard closed
the year 34% occup'ed, .ncreasng cur otal Formes 10 827 :in
Miaclewood _ocks, Saifora

Tre New:ion Place developmert bas maade subsrariial
progress during the yeoar ahead of expected compietion
2023, whilst construcnior at Ereprant ara Castie Townr
Centre commmerced n Jaruary 2022 ard s progressing wel!

All of this conirbuted to a 13.8% 'rerease ir total portfolio vaiue
to £2.73 b lior (31 December 2027 £2.40 bilion)

radad:tian £o cur r-progress developments 0 _ew!'shar

and Elephant ana Castie, the Group tas a strorg pipeline of
cpportunities to further grow the rumber of homes it provides
Cet Living's cort nued nvestrent wiil suppors the lorg-term
demand for a more fexible and modern lIfesty'e which rertirg
offers, as the cost of home ownrership increases.

66

Summarised results

Year ended voar endecd
31 December 31 Tecermber
2022 2625
£m Frr
Rental income 83.4 £3.8
Direct property costs (26.5) 24.8)
Maragament fees ['reluded
withir direct property costs) 5.7 o.4
Net renta. incorre 62.6 a5.4
Other ircome 15.8 5.9
Other cost of saes {9.5)
Managemert fees (iIncluded
within direct property costs) (5.7) 6.4}
Administrative expenses {35.7) 728.3)
Operating profit before
revaluation 27.5 176
Net financ.ng costs (36.7) (27.3)
EPRA earnings (9.2) 94
Revaluat on gan 136.0 61.9
~air valLe gain or derivatives 25.6 3.2
IFRS profit before tax 152.4 8.3

EPRA cost ratio

Year ended
31 December

“Vear erden
31 December

2022 202°

£m Fen

Diract property costs 26.5 2483
Void costs (1.8) —
Maragemmeanrt fees (5.7) 6.4
ACMmINistrative expenrses 35.7 28.3
EPRA costs 54.7 46.7
Rertal rcome 83.4 6538
ERPRA Cost Ratio 65.6% 732%

We made significant progress

through

further investment in

developments and capturing

strong rental demand.”
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STRATEGIC REPCRT

Business review continued

Property portfolio - Valuations

CBRE 'ndependently vaiued the portfolio at market vaiug in
accordance with R'CS Vaiuator Standards The aggregate totai
va:Le of the Group's property portfo 1o totalled £2 73 b ilion
as at 31 Decermber 2022 (31 December 202" £2 40 bitlion}
The ncrease s driven by a valuat or gain of £736.0 millior

0 the year, (740 3 vnihon of geveiupmert spend ana capital
nvested n asset management prolects This represents

3 "3 8% increase 0 tota portfoho value.

31 December 31 Dacerrker

2022 207!

£m £

Investment properties 2,223.5 2,058.7
Properties in the course

of development 435.7 7.5

Total investment properties owned 2,659.2 2,366.2

Tradirg propercy 6B.6 35.86

Total properties owned 2,727.8 2.401.8

Capita cormmitments 546.6 5€9.0

Total completed and committed 3,374.4 30705

Debt facilities

At the beginning of the year furdirg draws commercea
on Newtor Place and Eiephant ard Castle Town Centre
developrrent debt facilit.es 1o progress with constructior

“he Portlards Place dgeveropment ‘oars, with 3 total balarce

of £163 2 mulior at the year end, are due to mature ir
Septermber 2023 The refinarcing of this debt s r progress
with strong ender nterest ang we art'.cipate clos ng ths
refrarcirg » advarce cof the maturity date of the developmenrt
‘cars Loaking further abead o March 2024 the £32.6 million
New Maker Yards Phase 1 debt faci ity weil require ref rarcirg
whist the £64 8 midlion New Maker Yaras Phase 2 facuity wili
reguire refinarcing uniess ar opr.on s taker to extend the
fac:hty for ore more year

whiist there has been ar ncrease r the cost of borrow rg,
Ge: Livirg has berefiited from holdirg lorg terrr debrt at
favourable fixed 'mterest rates, with mirimal exposure on
floatng rate aebt faciities due to hedging n place Of the
toral exterrai 'oar baance at 31 Jecember 2022, 68.2% has
fixed interest, whilst the floating rate debt was 96.4% hedged

Average cost of gebt r 2022 5 323% (31 December 202°. 2 7%)
ara welghted average rraturty of deht s A 5 years (31 Docen ey
202" MH years)

Total debt

At 3" Decermber 2022, the Group had access to debt facihties
totaihirg £1,729 8 million (31 Decermber 2021 £7,72.0 million}
ard drawr debt fotalling £1.352 2 mulon (31 December 20271
£17774 millicn) €665 m.llwon (3" December 2027 £672 mithan)
af free cagh wis Peld as 2l the year erd, resuit.ng in Group net

debt of £1.288 4 milhien (31 December 2021 £ 110 2 million)

The Group bad two assets on site ander construct.on at the
year end with committed development costs of £546.6 mullior
(31 Decerrber 2027 £669 0 milior)

Readroorm on the Group's avai-abie gebt facilities totas
£376.9 midion (37 December 2021 £543 6 mill aor)

The Group's agaregate Loar 1o Value rat.o a5 at 3" December
2022, inciuchrg ail debt facilities, was 47.2% (3! December
2021 46 2%)

Outlook

Following a record financias performance n 2022 with streng
rental ncome growth, Get Lwving s well postiored for further
growth ard success with a strong baance sheet, competinvary
pricad gebt and supporive INvestors.

SJubsequert to the year end, Australlan superanraat.on
fund Aware Super has exchanged w:th QD LK ~oldirgs
LP to purchase ther 22% stake ir Get Living and ;o.n our
investor group which s a huge vore of confderce to
our business

We acknow ecge “he rsks assoc.ated with upcoming
refirancing ard 2ther external headw 'nds ard are corfdert
hat we are wel eguipped o face the challerges ahead.

We wi! contrue to capitalise or rental growth as demard

Is axpected to conunue irto 2023 ara ook for opportunives
to drive eff ¢ erc es ir our operaticns ard deiver strorg
retLrns o cur invesiors

2023 w:l see the 'aunch of Newton Place with Slephant ard
Castie "own Certre folowng n 2026, uniock rg further
growth to suppor: our ambtion 16 realise vaue through
operaticnal scale

Dan Greenslade
Chief Financial Officer
27 April 2023

The Strategic Report was approved by the Board of Dirertars
and signed vl 1ts petatt by

Vames Boadle

James Boadle
Director
27 April 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance report

Enhanced and adaptable governance,
supporting Get Living’s strategy.

Introduction

Sffective carporate governarce 1s a key requirermert for
the Group For the year ended 31 December 2022, under
The Cormpares (Miscellarcous Reparting) Regulatiors 2018,
Get _ving has appiled the Wates Corperate Goverrance
“rincipies for Large Private Companies {the "“Wates Principles”)
as ts framewaork for disciosure regarding its corporate
governance grrangerments, ‘\We continge to support our
business tc denver on aur strategy In an ever-changmng
reguiatory emvironment. Corporate goverrance at Get Livirg
s abodt runming the business in the right way ir order to
reaise value in our reighbourkoods for the berefit of al!
our staketolders and 1s treated as a core discipire that
corrplements our need o Improve the performance of tre
business on behaf of our stakeholders . this sectton we
prov-de getaills of our 3oard members, the Zxecutive Team
and the role of the Roard ard its Committees

The Board

“he Board current.y comprises three Non-execut.ve Directors.
all of whom are ndependent fror the management tearm of
re Group The Board 's resporsibee for setting the overali
Group strategy and investment policy, monitering Group
perforrarce ard authorsing a! property acgu sImIonNs

To asmist b discharging these responsibilinies, f receives
regular financial ang operatiora! reports from the Cxecutive
Tear~. it 2150 monitors updates on regulatory ssaes ard
corporate goverrance ruies ard guidel.res on a reguiar basis

e Board meets at least four tmes per year and has adopted
a schedule of reserved matters for decision making

“he Boeard has estabusred an Aud't Committee ard a
Rermuneraton Commitiea ara continues to support the
orgoing deveiopment of these Commitiees in suppor: of
the adopt on of the Wates Corporate Governarce Prrciples

Accountability and audit

The Board's responsibilties with regara to the financial
staterments are set out from page 67 Tre Indeponraent
auaitor's report 1s g ven on pages 60 to 66,

internal control
The Beard recogrises its uitimate responsibiinty for the
Group’'s system of interral control 1t s actively deve.oping

procedures for gertufy rg, evaluairg ana managing r sks that

the Group 1s exposed (o and has ident:fied rsk management
controls ir the key areas of business objectves, accourting,
compilarce and operations as areas for the cortinua review.
“hese procedures have operated throughout the year ard
LUp o the date of approval of the Arrual Report ard auditea
firarc al staterments It has, however to be understood that
systems of 'rternal controi, Fowever carefully designed,
operated ara supervised, can provide ony reascrable and

not absolute assyrance against material misstaterent or ©s5

A gescription of the Group's operations and the strategy
which .t erploys to rmax mise returns whilst rmirimising risks
car be foura on pages 40 7¢ 43

Qur governance structure

The Board

Respons kble for the ong-term
sucoess of the business

Devecprrent of sirategy

Dotarmines the rature arc extert
of significart risks

Audit Committee

Operating Committee

T

Remuneration Committee

|
| .
i Oyersems gualily of
i firarcia reporing
Provides assurance on internal
cortrois v sk manager-ent
aNng audit procasses

Approves routing Busiress matters
betsxeer Board meerngs

Sets remunaratior pohay

Approves 'evel of rermureration ard
Scard appointmeants

. Ersares approprate baiarce of skilis
ard experierce ar Soard

1

Each of tte above Committeas report or their activites o the Board

Get Living PLC
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Waltes Principles application

The Board considers that Get Living successfully applies the Wates
Principles, through the corporate governance practices described above.

Principle One
Purpose and leadership

The B3ecard implements a five-year plar wh ©h sLpports our
vision to build the exerrprary UK 81R platform gdeverirg
guaity homes o our rasidenis whi'st coptrnibuiing o local
communities ard ensuring that Get Living vaiues, strategy
and cuture ai gn with our overal! purpose. An annual 3card
Strategy Away Day has been introduced n the year, which
shares the vis.on, purpose and Mmiss.on of the Board and
providaes an open forurm to discuss the strategic direction
arnd oxpecred challenges and opportunities. Detalls of the
Board Strategy are set out Or pages 14 to 6.

Principle Three
Director responsibilities

The Board meets on a quarterly bas s and has aelegated the
Jay-1o-day operat or of the bus ress 1o the Executive Tearm.
“he Exccutive Tear meets at 'cast mmorthy ©o review the
operatora performance of the busress

“he Boara and Exacutive Tear bave a clear understarairg of
‘heir accountability ard responsbaties "o assist e discharg ng
“her auties, the Boara has estabished an Audit Commities
ard Remuneraton Committee ana has aelegared appropriate
levers of authority to the Sxecut ve Team The delegated
auther 1 es and reserved matter proceaures sepport effective
decis.on-rrakirg ana indeperdert challerge “he Group

has clear corporate governance pract ces in place, wth clear
ines of accourtability ard resporsibility Detar's of the Scard
Commitiees are set out or pages 52 1o 55,

Principle Five
Remuneration

The Buard promotes executive remureration struciures
aigred o the wong-terr sustarable success of the Group,
taking nio account pay and corditions ersowhere r the
busiress. Tre Remureration Committee's role 15 to seek
ard retanr the approprate caibre of people or the Board
and =xecut ve Team for the Group ard recommerds
remyuneratior ‘eve s o the Boarg cans stert wth prevanrg
market condit ors, peer group corpan:es and roles ara
responsibittes Details of the Jirectors’ pay po icy s proveaded
N *he Rer~ureraton Cormities Report or page 35

Principle Two
Beard composition

The 3oard currert y comprses thrae Non-executive Directors
ard an -ndependenrt Charr, a! of whom are :ndepender: from
the managerent ~cam of the Group The Remuneratior
Committee reviews the structure, s'ize ana composition of the
3oard ard ts committees and makes recommendations with
regard to any charges corsidered necessary n the
dertification and nomination of new Directors. the
reappointment of axist ng Directors ard appointmert of
members to the Board's committees. it also acts as a forum to
assess tre roles of the ex stirg Directors in off ce 1o ensure that
rhe Board ana Executive Team are balanced 0 terms of skil's,
knowledge, experience and diversity. The Chair s responsible
for the effect veress of the Board Detals of the Board ara
Exocutive Team compositon are set out or pages 50 ana 31

Principle Four

Opportunity and risk

Strategic opportuc feas are ident fied througt the fve-year
strategy piann ng process whick includes rput from al!
areas of *he bus ress. The five-year p arn s raviewed ard
acknowledged by the Board on ar arnua basis

The Executve Tear regularly reviews risks and how these
are mitigatad ard maraged across a2/} areas of Get _ ving’s
business act.vities. Qisk 1s corsigerad at every ‘eve of the
Group’s operat:ons and the risk managemenrt process ensures
prompt assessrent ard respense o rsk 1ssues that may be
dertifed an ary level of the Group's busiress The 3oard’s
approach to overs ght of the dentf cation ard mit.gatior of
rsks car be found 0 the Sirategic Repor: on pages 40 tc 43

Principle Six
Stakeholder relationships and engagement

At Get _v.rg, istening to ard ergaging effectivery wmith our
stakeholaers 15 key o ansuring the rght decisiors are made
As aresat the relatonships ath our stakehoiders are key *¢
the iorg-term success of the Group The Board and Txecut've
Team are responsibie for overseeirg meanirgfu engagemert
with staketalders, includirg empoyess, ard having regard 1o
rheirr v ews when taking decisiors. Detalls of the Compary’s
srakeboiger argager-ent are set out in the $772 statement

on pages 28 ard 29
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James Boadle
Nor-executive Director

Jarres Is Sericr Vice

Pres dert, Europe and a
merber of the Europear
cadership team at Oxford
Sropertes ("Oxfora”) Oxforg
s the real estate arm of
OMERS, ore of the 1argest
Canadian Pens.or piars

~e |5 rasponsible for iogist'cs
ard residert.al strategies
across turope, as wali as

the development of Oxford's
wider Europear strategy

Jamas has over 15 years’
track record -n the rea,
estate sector with globa:
fransact:on experience
across al’ major asset classes,
nouding resicertal, off ce,
retail and .ndustrial, and has
leq Oxford's Invoivement INnto
the LK res dent.al prvate
rented sector through

DOOR Prior to ,oiring
Oxford, Jarres spert seven
years atreal estate aavisory
firms Savils ana CBRE.

Jarmes 15 a member of

the .nvestment Property
—orure {IPE] ara the Rova
‘nstitutior of Chartered
Surveyors (R'CS)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board

Mabel Tan
Nor-executbve Director

Mabeg s Director of Asse
Marager~ert for Qatan Dar
Europe, a whoily owred
subsichary of Gatar Dear
Rea tstate .rvestmert
Compary which s owned
by the Qatarn nvestrrent
Authority, the sovereign
wealth furd of the State

of Qatar 't s the specialist
reai estate arm of the Qatar
investment Author'ty with
a s grificant preserce in
the UK ana the LS

Maber has owver 20 years
experience 0 finance and
ryastrrents. Prior (o joring
Gatar Dvar n 2008, Mabe!
developed new commerc:al
projects, inc uaing Jvs ard
acguis.Lor opportunites
for Group RCL a arv's or

of Wyrabam Wor dwide

Mabe! s a board rmember
of var ous erttes r the UK
ard Montenegrd

Rafael Torres Villalba
Nor-executive Director

Rafaei 15 a Seror Portfolo
Marager at APG Asset
Manragemert, focusirg on
ASG's Zuropean res.aentig
irvestment ARG s the
pens.or fund marager for
“he Dutchk ¢ vil servarts
pens.or furd A3P

Rafael has beer working for
APG's rea estate group for
more than 20 years, work rg
on both Asiar and Curopean
reai estate. After headirg the
Europear real estate team
for close to 13 years, be has
taken responsibiity for some

of the residertal irvestmenrts

n APG's portfol.c —us skil.set
ertans both trarsactional

as weil as portfolo
management sk lis.

Rafael 1s a board merber
of the Sparisk PRS Socirm
Vwveno ara Oslo based
shopping centre compary
Steer & Strom,

Get Living PLC
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Jeremy Helsby
Non-execut ve Char

Jerermy provides sirategic
adv'ce ard support for
Get _wing as T coni rues
o denver on 'ts arbitous
growth piars

Jererry bas mmensely deep
real gstate and operat-onas
expert se gained from his
AQ-year tenure at Savi's,

" years of which were spert
as Chief Txecutive, pr or

to Fis retirement .n 2019
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Rick de Blaby
Chief Executive Qfficer

2-ck oredq Get Livirg n 2077
as Execul ve Vice Chairman
before being appointed

as Chief Zxec.tive Officer

r 2079 He s focused on
growirg Get Lwing's patforr
3Cross the LK, creat ng new
IR neighbourhoods that
change the way we live
nocites

Wth a derrorstrated track
record of regenerat.ng urban
areas, Rick has 20 years of
real esiate geveloprmer:

ard investmart experience
acrgss beth residential and
commercal property Pricr
to Get Liwving, he was CEO
of Lnited touse Group and
CEQ of MEPC

—-MPOWi

Dan Greenslade
Chief F-narc al Officer

Jan gined Get Livirg as
Chief F.narcal Off car in
2022 and s respors:ble for
all aspects of Get _ving's
firarcia! maragemert,
reportirg ard debt strategy
With more than 2Q years

of fnance experence,

Dan brirgs a deep track
recora of buwilairg a robust
firance operat:on to support
a companry durng ts
growth phase

Before joirirg Gat Livirg,
Dan was Director of Group
Finance at Logicor, a
‘eading European ownrer
and manager of iog stics
real estate, where he spert
more than fve years, 2rior
o Logicor, Dar spent cver
four years at Qu ntair He
auanfied as a Chartered
Accourtart at PwC

Annuai Report 2022
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Ailish Christian-West
Ch-ef Operat:ng Officer

Anisk was appomnted as
Director of Rea: Estate
at Get Livirg :n 2020
pefore becomirg Crief
Operating Off cer in
2022. She 15 accourtable
for Get Livirg's ex.sting
£2.8 rilion bulld-to-rent
portfolio, ircluding retanr
and public reaim space
She provides strategic
ieadership to operatioral
asset maragemeanrt,
developments and =56

Aihish has rmore thar

20 years' experience ir
UK rea! estate. Prior to
Get L.ving, she was —ead
of Property at _ardsec
and during the year was
Sresidert of Revo, the
placemak rg ara retail
property organisat on



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Audit Committee report

Stephen Murphy (Chair)

MONITORING

~PORTI

Members of the Audit and Risk Committee

(the “Committee™)
Dur rg the year, two meaet ngs were he.d

Members of the Cammittee
= Stephen Murphy fas Chair)

*» Neck Si1ssing (replac rg Adsor _ambert effective
8 QOctober 20223

« Rafael Torres Vilalba

Responsibilities
The rramn roies ard responsibilities of the Auart
Cormmittee \nciude

¢ raritor ng the ntegrty of the Group's arrual ard irterim
firancial statements, ensur ng they are fair, batanced ara
urderstandabie ard reviewrg sigruficant finarcia repoerting
ssues and Judgements cortaired therair,

v reviewng the Group’s systems af finanmia contral and
risk management;

¢« rmaking recammerdations to the 3card or the appoirtment
of the exterra: aLditor and approvirg ts remureration and
terms of engagemert,

s moriorrg and reyvewing the oxterra auditor's
rdependerce, object vity and effect.veress, tak rg irio
account profess ora ana regulatory regu.rerer:s, ard

« annusliy corsider rg the reed for ar rtermal audit furcoon.

G AND RISK

Report on the Committee’s activities
during the year

During the year. the Commitiee dischargea s
respons:bl fes by

reviewrg the Group's draft finarcial statemerts for the year
arded 31 December 2027 and draft unaLdited inter m firancial
staterrents for the perod to 30 Jure 2022 prior to discussion
ard approval by the Board, ana reviewing the externa
aLditor’'s report on the anryal f'rancai statarerts,

advising the Board on whether the Annua Report s far,
balanced ard Jdnderstardable and provides the irformatior
necessary for shareholaers 1o assess the Group's performarce,
pos tion, busiress model and strategy.

revew ng tThe contiruirg appropr ateress of the Group's
account.ng policies,

considering the poternai -mplicatons of forthcoming
changes in accouwrting standards for the Grann

reviewirg the auditor's piar for the audit of the Group's
December 2022 finarcial statements, recenving and
revewing confrrmatons of auditor ndependerce ard
approv rg the terms of ergagemert and proposed
fees for 2022

corsidering the gualifications, expertise, resources ard
rdependerce of the auditor through reviews of ts reports
arg performarce, ana

recormmeanaing the reapporomert of the aud.tor
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Significant accounting matters

The Committee consiaers ail fnancal :rforrmat or published
r the Annual Report ard unaudited nterr report ard
considers account ng polhicies adopted by the Group
presertation and disclosure of fiinarcal .nformat.on ara. n
particular, the key ,udgerrents made «r preparrag the financial
statersanly For Decarmbier 2022, the pr mary risks dent fied
were 'n rejation to the va.uat'on of the property portfoio
(ncluairg the net realisable va-ue of traaing property ), gorg
corcern and revenue recogrinon

Valuation of the property portfolio

The Group has property assets of £2. 7278 million,
irclucing investrent property of £2.6592 milion ard rading
property of £68 6 rrillion, as detalled In the Group balarce
sheet. As explained i note *2 to the financial statements,
investment property 1s ‘naeperdent v valueo by CBRE n
accordance with RICS vauatior standards in the Lnitea
Kingdor ard (AS 40 rvestrmert Property The Audit
Cormmittee reviewed ard d'scussed with management the
Judgerrents and assarmptions made i respect of the property
valuation, reviewed the valuer's report ard the auditor's
cormments theracon, arnd corcluded that the valuatan -s
apprapriate.

Net realisable value of trading property

The Group's trading property s stated at the lower of cost
and net realsabie value {NRVT) NRY IS calcLiated with
reference to The expected selirg prece. less the est rrated
costs of compiet'on ard the astimated costs necessary o
make the sa'e, discounted to the ret present varue “he Audit
Committae reviewed and discussed with maragemert the
judgements ang assumptiors made i respect of the net
realisabie va ue of trading property and conciuded that the
vauatior 1s appropr.ate

Going concern

The Committes Nas reviewsy Managermreart s going concern
assessrmert for the per oo to 20 June 2024 in order to
assess the reaurements of the Group over that period ard
the appropriateness of aaopting the going concerr bass of
accounting In preparing the full year firancial statemerts

Despite the buoyant rental market, driven n part by a markes
suppiy and demard imbalance, the going concern assessment
has beer performea against the backarop of a subdued globai
econarm:c outiook, The Directors have therefore corsidered

a base case. a downs.de scenario, and performed reverse
stress testing, ir considerat:on of the potent.ar future rsks of
econorric uncertairty and rfurther recession related to rmacro-
economic events; the crisis .» Ukraine and aftermath of the
globai panderric drivirg giobal supp'y corsirairts eading to
nigh nflator and a cost of iv.ng crisis, alorg with Pigr nterest
rates as a resuit of UK polit:ical instability ardg policy changes.
“he Directors bave also consigerea the payment subseguent
to the year end of £18 9m o ~MRC, and the recept of £70m
furding from shareholders in March 2023 r the going concerr
assessmert Tre Directors aiso eva uated porential averss ard
coraitiors beyona the perod ending 30 Jure 2024 that may
cast significant doubt or the Group's abiity to contirue as a
going corcern, with no significant transact:ors or everts of
materal urcertanty idertified

The Directors are conf.dent in the Group's abirity o refirance
debt facihties expiring during the going concerr period.

The Directors have beld discussions with a number of potertia,
lenders or the refrarcings and a seres of competitively
priced nohicative guotes have bheer received (subject to

crecit committon approvall The Tirgctons dre confiderst that
the market appetite for lerding agamst PRS assets rermairs
strorg and that Get Liv.ng PLT 15 well placed to secure the
required f'nancing on both the Portlands Place and the New
Makar Yards Phase T and Phase 2 debt faciiities whch fall

due I the going corcerr pernod. =owever, f the Group 15 not
successful in refinarcing the debrt facilities, t will be renant

on shareholders providing funds to suppor: the repayment

of existing debt fac ities, n agdit'on o the shareholder
furding assurmad 0 the base case scenario The Directors have
therefore conciuaed that there 1s a mater al unceranty w-th
respect to refirancing the Portlanas Flace, Noew Maker Yards
Phase 1 ard New Maker Yards Phase 2 debt facilities whickh may
cast significant doubt over the Group and Compary's abihty
to cont.nue as a gowrg concern.

The Board believe <hat, subject to the material uncertainty
retatirg to ach ev rg the ref'nancing described above, the
Group will be abie to manage its business risks successfully,
ard the Group's forecasts and projections show thar the Group
will be aple to operate within the lever of 1ts avarable hguidity
ard coveranrt requrerrents. Accoraingly, the Directors cortirue
to adopt the goirg concern basis In preparng the annuar
report ard firarcal statements, boweaver, the mattars described
above result ir the existence of 2 matenal urcertainty which
may cast significant doubt over tte Group's abiity to cortpue
a5 a going corcern

Revenue recognition

The Group recogrised reverue of £99 2 miluor of whick

£83 4 milion relates to rertai 'ncome The ALait Commitiee
reviewed ard discussed w.th management reverue recogniiion
ara the audizor's commerts thereon and concluded that the
revenue recegnition 1S approprate.

Review of risk management

and internal control processes

The Audgit Commitiee 1s responsible for reviewrg the
adequacy ara effect veress of the Group's risk maragemen:
processas and systerms of irterral controi,

Foliowrg its cwr assessmenrt and the maragermert report
and the work .t perfarmeadc un nsk management ard rternat
control procedures, the Committee bel.eves that the kay
risks fac ng the busiress have been corrac:ly igertifed ara
disclosed n the Risk managerrer: sectior of the Strategic
Report or pages 40 1o 43

Ir addi or, the Cormmittee beeves that, a-though robust, the
Group s systarrs of rrerra cortro are designed o manage,
rather than eliminatce, the risk of fa iure 1o achieve the Group's
pusiness object ves Therefore the systerm can provide crly
reasonable and not absolute assurarce aga:nst materia:
misstatement or '0ss.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Audit Committee report continued

Financial reporting

The Board s responsible for the Arpua Report. The Audht
Committee 15 asked to review the Annual Report and corsider
whether :t ‘s far, balanced ard understardable ard prov des
the necessary information for shareholders to assess the Group's
positon, performarce, busiress model and strateqy.

In undertak-ng ts assessrent, the Commities considered

* the sysiems ard controls operated by rmanagemenrt around
the preparation of the accounts,

s the procequres rciudea i these 1o br rg reievart
rformatior to the attention of those who prepare
the accounts,

* the consistency of the reports; and

* whether they are in accordanrce with the .rformatior
prov-ded o the Boara durning the year

it alsc considered whether the Arnuat Report had beer writer
i clear and concise larguage ard without urnecessary
repetit on of nformatior, ana that market-spec:fc terms and
any non-statutory measurss had beer adeqguately defined
or explanea.

The Audit Comrrittee has reviewed the cortents of the
Decermber 2022 Arrual Report and fingncial stater~ents ard
corfirrmed (o the Board that, in ts view, the report s farr,
balanceda and urderstandable ard proviges the nformation
recessary for sharehoiders o assess the Group s positan,
performance, busiress model and strategy

Auditor independence

The Group's poiicy ensures 'ndepenaeaence and obrect vity

of the exterra. auaitor ana corpliance wab the =RC Sth cal
Standards, the Group may procure certain ron-aLd @ Services
frorm the exzernal auditor All other proposed engagemerts
must be sLbrmitted to the Comm.itee for approval pror to
engagement, Detals of the arourts paid te the exterra
auaitor gurirg the year for audit ang other serv.ces are set
out in note 9 to the Group financial statemerts

The externay auditor was engaged for tax re ated services
being the ory ner-aud t assignments gurng the year s
engagerent was rot deemead to compromise 15 objectivity
and ndepandence as sJfficient safeguards were 0 place

Effectiveness of external auditor

The effectiveness of the audit process s dependert or
appropriate aud-t risk ident fication at the start of the auait
cycie The Committee receved from Ernst & Young LLP a
aetal'ed aud:t plan, identifying 'ts assessmeant of these key
riskn Tor 2022, o prmary rsks igentified were 0 reration
to the valuaton of the property portfoio, going concern and
revenue recognitior

"he Roard takes respons bil ty for exercis ng judgement

when necassary r preparng “he Arrual Repoert ard financia.
staterrerts It prepares and rav'ews papers provided to the
auditor sett.ng out 1ts Judgerrerts and approaches taken

to spaecfic terrs The work undertakenr by the auditor .n

th.s area to test management's assLMpLans ara eswmateas

5 chatenged by the Auait Commtiee, which assesses the
effectveness of the auair process through the reporing
received from Ernst & Young LLP at year erd. The Committee
5 sat sfied w th the effectiveness of the auditor and therefore
recommenrds .ts reappointment.

The Comm.ttee assesses the effect veress of the external
auditcr or an arnual basis ~ollow ng the comptetion of the
December 2022 year era audt, the Commitiee corducted fs
rev ew ard consigers that the aud t was appropratey plarned
ara scoped afficiertly and effect vely performed by Ernst &
vourg __2 The Committee s satisfied that Ernst & Young i P
cornrued to perform effectively as the exzerra auaitor

Audit tender policy

The Audit Comm-ttee will corsiaer the reeaq for a compettive
-erder for the rowe of exterrna auditor at 'east every ter years

arg recommenrd to the 3oard f 3 tender process s felf to be

approprate

“he tender procass w It be agministered by the Audit
Committee which wll cons«er whether to seek major
investors views on the aud:t frms 1o be inv.ted o teraer
ard success criteria to be Lsed by the Group in the course
of the teraer

faterder s corductad as part of a normal terder cycle,
ke rcumbent auditor wil be rvitea fo partorpate .n
rhe tencder uniess prohibited due ¢ spec fic factors suchk
as indeperdence

The Audt Commuttee will make a recormrmendaton o the
Boara of 75 preferred appomniee

“he current external Aauditor, Ermst & Young v P (RY) was
appointed in 2018 Graerre Downes s the audit partner and
has heid the roe sirce 2022,

Internal audit

The Audit Committee consiaers arruady the requiremert
for ar riernal aud:t functoon ara the Board, on the
recor-menaanon of the Audit Committee, hav'rg regard mo
the matters corsiaered above, has conciudec that one Is rot
currertyy requ.rec

The Audit Committee
27 April 2023
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Remuneration Commiittee report

Jeremy Helsby (Chair)

ALIGNING -
—RFO

Members of the Remuneration Committee

(the “Committee”)
Durrg the year, four meet rgs were held, ara these wera
atiended by sharehoider reprasertatives

Members of the Committee
¢ Jeremy rmeisby {as Chair)

* Mabei Tar

* James Boaale

+ Rafael Torres Vilalba
= Staffora _arcaster

The Rermuneratior Committae's rowe s to seek and retain the
appropr ate calibre of pecple on the Beard and Sxecutive
Team for the Group and recommenrd remureration ievels

to the Board consistent with prevailling market condit ons,
peer group corepanies and roies ard responsiblities. Execut.ve
remunearatior structures are aligred 7o the iong-term sustainable
success of the Group, taking into account pay and condrions
elsewbere nthe business A recommendatior s ther made
to the Board

The Remunerat'cn Commmitice also acts as a forum to assess
the roles of the axist.ng Directors - office 1o ensare that the
Board s balanced r terrms of skil's, know edge. experierce
andg drwersity

O
RMANC

BUSH

A

Responsibilities of the Committee
The principal resporsibilit.es of the Cormmittes are.

» sefnng the remmurerat.on frarmmework or policy for all
Directors, Executives and semor manragers,

» revewirg the orgomng appropriateness and relevance of the
remureration pohcy.

« within the terms of the approved poncy, determining the
tota: Individua! rerrureration package of each Director,
Exacutive and senor manrager;

= agreeing the policy on the recovery of expensas incurred
whilst performing duties, and

s reporting to shareholders orn the implementat.on of the
remunarat.on policy 1IN accordance with relevant statutory
and corporate governance requirements

Committee’s activities during the year

The Committee met four himes dunng the year to discuss
the remuneration of the Executive Team, which ircludea
approving the grants of \org-term incentive plars, setting
specific targets for the annual borus and review'ng progress
agarrst the ‘org term 'ncentive plan The Committee also
considered external, pubhicly avalab-e survey Informat.on of
remuneration levels paid by similar companies r~ making ary
recorrmendation to the Board. The Committee agreed that
there 15 no remuneration for the Directors for the year This
5n line wth previous report ng periods

The Remuneration Committee
27 April 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Directors’ report

The Directors presert thair Annua Report including audited
Group financial statements for the year ended 31 Decormber 2022,
This report should be read together with the Corporate
Governance Qeport on page 48.

Directors
The Troctors who served gurng the year, anda at the date of

this report, were
* Jarres Boadle (appointaed 17 October 2019)
+ Mabel Tan (appointed 18 August 2020)

» Rafael Torres Vilialba (appoirted 30 June 20213

Future developments

n the coming year, the Directors w'il continLe the proactive
nvestment and maragement of the 3tR schemes and

will centinue to work on the buillding phases of ts BtR
developrrents ircluding Newtor Place and E ephanrt ard
Cast'e Town Centre. Details of these developmerts are
rcluded n the Portfono Review section from pages 26 o 27.

Going concern

Tre financ.al statements have been prepared on a goirg
concerr basis. The Directors have prepared cash flow
Forecasts for the perad to 30 June 2024 1 arder £ assess
the requirements of the Group ard Compary over that
period (the "going concern peroa”) Despite the buoyart
rental market, driver in part by a market supply ard
demand mbalance. the going concern assassmert has
beer performed aganst the backdrop of 2 subgued gicbal
ecorcmic out.ook. The Directors have therefore corsidered
a base case, a downsige scenarto, and performed reverse
stress testung, r considerat:or of the potertal future r sks of
economic uncertainty and further recass on reiatea to macre-
acoromic everts, the crisis r Ukraire ard aftermath of the
giobal pancemic drvirg global supp'y corstrairts leadirg
o kigh inflat-on and a cost of v ng crisis, along with bigh
interest rates as a resylf of UK pottical \nstaby ity and poiicy
charges. The Directors have aiso considered the payrrent
subsequent to the year end of £18 9m to HMRC, and the
receipt of £7.0m funding from srarehotaers in March 2023
i Ehe going concarn assessmeart

N the base case scenar-o:

“he Drrectors have performed a detalled gorng corcern
review based on rhe Board approvea 2023 budget, which
reflects current trad.rg rends at migh occupancies for
stobihised assels, 3 strong laurch of lease-up assets ard
continued strong rental growth, with revenue on stabilised
assets forecast o 'ncrease approx mately -n ire with
rfat.onary trends betweer 2022 ang 2023 The impact of
rfiat on or costs over the gong concern per oa Fas beer
rcorporated nto thes scerar o Key assJdmpriors e the
base case scenaric include;

» “he Group successfuly refinarces the debt facilities or
ts Portlards Place asset aread of the maturity aate of
September 2023, and 'ts New Maker Yards Phase T and
Phase 2 debt facilities abeaa of their maturity date in
March 2024 Tre Group has the option o exterd the New
Maker Yards Phase 2 facility for one year to March 2025,
subject to meeting certain conaitions whick the Group
are corf.dent car be achieved

s The Group recerves further capital from 'ts irvestors to
meet the costs of carry'ng cut fire safety remediai works

s« The Group recerves further capital from its investors to
meet nor-contractual commitments spectfically for thre
deveiopment of other plots at Zast Village If fiircing
s ol obtairea, the Group has the optior rot to enter
nto these frarsactions

in the downside scenaro, the Board has consigered
a severe but piausibie scenarno which considers the
following assumptiors

* Reduced occupancy across the Group’s assets and
dowrward pressures on pricing, modetled based on an
extended econom.c downturn. This scenario assumes a
10% clecrease from the base case n PRS, student and retail
revenues, This scerario alsc models a 10% ncrease in vord
urit ard 5% mncrease in bad debt costs

s Varous mitigation measdJdres that would need to be exercrsed
ncluding the deferral of certair discretionary cperating
costs, development ard capital expenditure The Crirectors
are confgent these mit. gating actiors can be executed ir the
recessary urmreframe f required and are within the cortron of
Maragemert, The use of these mit gations would not have a
resultant impact on the forecast revenues

s Theare are ro breaches of car fac ity covenants.
¢ The Group receives no further funding from sharekolders.

Based on the dowrside scenario, assumirg the debt facl ty
refinancirgs in the going concern perod are ach.eved and the
controtlabie ritigat ons are actioned, the Directors assass that
the Group has suff'ciert cash reserves 10 operate as a going
concern. THis judgerment .5 based upor.

» Reference to the approved budget for the year erded
December 2023, through which sharerolders have agreea
to provde furdirg for fire safety costs and nen-contractual
commitmeants for developmert plots

* The Directors have considerad the financial ability of the
Investars and assess they have suff cient cash resources
<o prowvide the fundirg committed

* r the scenarnic where ro further sharebeiger furdirg s
received the Group bas sufficient cask reserves to meet ts
liabilit.es after executing the mitgat ng actions which are
within the contral of Management.

The Group aiso performeg a reverse skross tost over Hhy
impact of a fall \n ts property valuat ons aurirg the gong
concern period, with ar unprecedenrted percentage fali not
even seen durng the Covid 19 pandemc regurred to result

N aioan 1o varle covenant breach, a decreaseg not historcany
seen by the Group. This s therefore cons.dered to be a
rermote possibility during the going concern period.

The Directors aiso evaluatea potertal everts and condihions
beyond the period eraing 30 Jure 2024 that may cast
significart doubt or the Group's ability to cortinue as a goirg
concern, with no s grificart transact ons or events of materal
uncertainty aent.fied

The Direciors are configent n the Group's ability to refinance
debt facil:ties exprring durrg the going concern pericd The
Oirectors bave heid discussiors with a rumber of potertai
‘erders on the refinapcings and a sernes of competitively
priced -rawcative guotes have Deen recaved (subject to
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credit committee approva) The Directors are corfident that the
market appetite for lerding against PRS assets rermairs strong
and that Get Living PLC 15 well placed to secure the requrred
firancirg on both the Portlands Place ard the New Maker

Yards Phase T and Phase 2 debt facilities which fall due in the
goirg concern period. However, If the Group s not successfui

0 refnanciryg the aobt faciines, (L woll be reliart on shareholders
providing funds to suppor? the repayment of exist.ng debt
facilities, ir addit-on to the sharebolder funaing assumed ir the
base case scenario The Directors have therefore concluded that
there 's a materal uncertanty wth respect to refinarcirg the
Portlands Place, New Maker Yards Phase ' and New Maker Yards
Phase 2 debt facilities which may cast sigr.ficart doubt over the
Group and Compary's ability to contirue as a goaing concern.

The Board believe that, subject to the materal uncertanty relatng
tc achreyving the refinancing described above, the Group will be
able 1o manage its business risks suecassiully, and the Group's
forecasts and projections show that the Group wll be able to
operate within the ievel of its avalable lgudity and covenant
reguirements, Accordingly, the Directors contnue to adept the
gong concern basis in preparing the arrual report and financia:
statements, Fowever, the matters descr bed above resdilt ir the
existence of a materal uncertainty which may cast sigrificant
aoubt over the Group's ability to contirue as a going corcerr

The consolidated firanc:al statements do rot inciude the
adjustments that wouwd result iIf the Group and Company
were unrabie to continue as a doing corcerr

Financial risk management objectives and policies
Fnanciasi r sks include mterest rate sk, credit risk and nquichty
risk "hese rsks, and management obiectives and policies

IN re.ator to these rsks, are descrbed further in note 23 to
the firarciar statements

Charitable and social donations

The Group made charitable dorat.or contributions of £31k
(Decermber 2021 En) and corrurity project contrbutons
of £'88k (December 2021 £'57k) during the year

Greenhouse gas emissions and energy use

Or a -ke-for-like basis, Greenhouse gas emissions (GHG) for

‘he Group ircreased by 1% (December 2021 decrease of 5%)
whilst energy usage mncreased by 5% during the year (Cecember
20217 1%) which suggests that head demand has not reduced

Ir propartion with the relatively mild wirter The measurement
approach “aken follows gurdarce provided by the GG and
INRPFY Suctainability Resaur Lng strdelines, Please refer to our
Statement of GHG Ermissiors and =rergy Usage r "sustainabiity
and goverrarce” section of the Strategic Report

Stakeholder engagement

The Group cortinued to foster busiress relationskips dur-ng
tha yvear Please refer to the Group Section 172 statermrent on
pages 28 and 29,

Dividends
No dividends were recommended or pald to sharehoiders
ourng the year {December 2027 nily

Staff policies
The Group seeks to nvoive all employees .n the development
of the Group's businass The Group undertakes to proviae

employees w th informator of concern to them that s kely
to affect their interests.

The Group supports the principle of equal cpporiunities in
employment anda opposas all forrs of discr-mination. Every step
1s taker to ensure that rdividuals are treated caially ard fairy,
and decisions on recruitmert, fraimng, promoet on ard career
davaiopment are based ony on object've and job-reiated criter a
The Group gives full ana far consideratior to applications for
amployment from disabied persons and alse seeks to contnue
to empioy. with suttable training, If approprace, any person who
pecomeas disabled whilst empioyed by the Group.

Subsequent events

Subseqguent to year end QD UK soldings LP, one of the Group’'s
controlling parties, excharged on a transaction to dispose of its
entire shareholding :n Get Living PLC to Aware Super. There are
ro further subsegquent everts that ‘mpact the Group

Subseguent to the year end the Group made a payment

of £18.9 millicn o HMRC as part of an agreemenrt signed N
March 2023 to settle ar ongorng tax enguiry The sett'ement
of “his baiance confirms that the Group had a presert
obligatior at the erd of the reportng period ana therefore the
Group bas recegnised a provis on for £18.7m, refer to note 18

Directors’ statement as to disclosure

of information to auditor

The Directors who were merbers of the Soarg at the time

of approving the Directors’ report are referrea to on page 56
Each of the Directors in office at the date that th:s Arrua
Report ana financial statements were approved confirms trat.

» to the best of each Director’'s knowsedge ard belief, there
s ro relevant audit ‘nformatior (thar s irformation reeded
by the Group's auditor \n conrection w'th preparrg Its
report) of which the Group's auditor 1s uraware, ard

s+ cach Director kas taker all the steps a Cirector might
reasorabiy be expected to have taker to be aware of
relevant audit information and to estabiish that the Greup's
auchtor 15 aware of that information

Directors’ indemnity

Tre Group has in place approprate Directors” and Off cers’
vability insurarce cover in respect of potert ai legar actior
against ts Directors Trese indernn ties are quanfying
third-party rdemrity provisiors as def ned by Sect.on 234
of the Cormesm gy AT JUUL 'The indemrities were valid
thrroLghout the year and are currertly vaid

Auditor

In accordance with Secton 485 of the Companies Act 2006,
a reso.ution for the reappointmert of Ernst & Young —LP as
auditor of the Group 15 o be proposed at the forthcormirg
Arrual Gereral Meetirg

Approved by the 3oara of Directors ard sigrea on behaif
of the Boara

James Boadle

James Boadle
Director
27 April 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Statement of Directors responsibilities

The Directors are responsibie for preparing the Anrual Report
and the financial staterments ir accoraance with appucable
Unted Kingdom law and regulatiors

Company law requires the Dircctors to prepare firancial
statements for each finangial year Under that iaw the
Directors have plected 0 propars the Group Liancial
statements in accordarce with UK-adopted interratioral
accounting standaras ('FRSs), ard the Company financia.
staterments In accordarce with United Kingdom Generally
Acceptea Account rg Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and appiicable aw). ncluding Financial Reportirg
Srandard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (FRS 101)

Uraer compary law the Directors must rot approve the
financal statements uniess they are satisfied that they give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
the Compary and of the proft or loss of the Group and the
Company for that pericd

In preparirg these financiai statements the Drrectors are
required to

+ select suitable accourtirg poicies 'n accordance with 1AS 8
Accourting Polictes, Chapges in Accountirg Estimates and
=rrors and then apply them corsistently

+ make judgerents ana geccounting estimates that are
reasonabie ard prudent,

= present information, Includirg accounting pohcies, r
a manrer that provides relevant, rei.able, comparabie
and understandab.c inforrmatiaon;

+ provide adait aral aisc osures whert corrpilance w th
the specfic regquirermerts 0 IFRSs and . respec: of the
Company financial staterrents, /RS 01 s rsufficient
to enabe users o Lnderstard the impact of particular
transactions, other events ana condit:ions or the Group
ard Company f'ranciai posit.or and firancial performance;

* r respect of the Group finarcial statements, state whether
UK-adopted nterrat.ona accounting stardards have beer
folrowed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explaired n the finarcial statements,

+ rrespect of the Commpany finarcial statemarts, sfate
whether applicable UK Accounting Standards, rciuding
FRS 01 have been followed, subject to any material
departures disc'osed and explaired n the firarcal
staterments, ang

prepare the fnancial staterneants on the going concern basis
urless 1t 1s inappropriate to presume that the Compary
arcl/or the Group will contirue 1n bus.ness

The Directors are respensibie for keeping adeguate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Company's and Group’s transactions and disclose with
reasonabie accuracy at ary time the fimarcial position of the
Company and the Group and enable them to ensure that
the Company and the Group financial statemerts comply
with the Comparies Act 2006, They are also respons:ble for
safeguard rg the assets of the Company ard the Group and
herce for taking reasonable steps for the prevent:on and
detection of fraud ana other irregulantes

Under appncable aw and regulations, the Directors are also
respons/bie for preparing a Strategic Report and a Directors’
report, that compiy wth that law and those regulations The
Directors are responsible for the raintenance and rtegrity
of the corporate and franciai information ncluded on the
Company's website
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent audilor’s report

to the members of Get Living PLC

Opinion

In our opimion:

Get _nving PLC's group financial statements and parent company financial statements (the "financial statements™) give a true
and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of the group's profit
for the year then ended;

the group financial statements have been properly preparad In accordance with UK adopted international accourting standards;

the parent compary financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with Uruted Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice; and

» the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

We have audrted the financial statements of Get Living PLC (the ‘parent company’) and 1ts subsidianes (the ‘group’) for the year
ended 31 December 2022 which comprise

Group Parent company

Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022  Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022

Consolidated statement of corrprehensive iIncome for the Statement of changes in equity for the year then ended
year then ended

Consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended  Statement of cash flows for the year then ended

Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended Related notes 1 to 16 to the financial statements including
a summary of significant accounting policies

Related notes | to 38 to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial staterments is applicable law
ard UK adopted irternational accounting standards. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation
of the parent company financial statements 1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101
“Reduced Disclosure Framework” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with international Standards on Auditing (UKD (1ISAs (UK)) and applicable law Our
responsibiities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements sect:on of our report. We are independent of the group and parent company 1IN accordance with the ethical
reguirements that are relevant to cur audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied
to listed ertities, and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibihties in accordance with these reguirements.

we believe that the audit eviderce we have obtained 1s sufficient and approprate to provide a basis for our opmion.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to note 2 in the finarcial statements, which indicates that there 1s a maternal uncertainty relating to the
refinancing of the Portlards Piace, New Maker Yards 1 and New Maker Yards 2 debt facilities which fall due in the going cencern
period. As stated in note 2, these events or conditions, along with the other matters as set forth in note 2, indicate that a
material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt or the Group's and parent Company's ability to cortinue as a going
concarn Chir npininn s nod modifien in respact nf this marrar

In auditirg the financial statements, we have concluded that the director’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements s appropriate. Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the Group and parent
company's ability to continue to adopt the going corcern basis of accounting included:

* We obtained Management's going concern assessment, including the cash flow forecast and covenant calculations covering
the going concern period to 30 June 2024,

* ‘We understood the process followed by Managerment to prepare the Group's going concern assessment, including the goirg
concern period considerad by Management, identifying. and assessing the impact of a severe but plausible downside scenaric in
their cash flow forecasts and covenant calculations in order to assess the forecast hquidity and covenant compliance of the Group.

* ‘We challenged the appropriateness of Management's base case and severe but plausible downside forecasts by assessing
historical forecasting accuracy, the reasorableness of assumptions, including forecast occupancy, rental rates and operating
costs, by reference to historncal performance, post year end cccupancy rates, external industry forecasts and the perspective
of our Chartered Surveyors in assessing the potertial reductiors in property valuations in the going concern period.

« We challengad Management’'s consiceration of a severe but plausible downside scenarto, and performed our own additional
stress testing to cash collections and valuations where appropriate to test the impact on liguidity and covenant compliance.
We also carried out reverse stress testing and assessed the lkelihood of such conditions arising that would lead to the group
utihsing all hguidity or breaching its firancial covenants during the going concern period
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Material uncertainty related to going concern continued

+ We evaluated whether the covenant requirements of the debt facilities would be complied with under the scenaros prepared
by Management and our additional stress testing scenarios Including assessing the impact of the timing of these events,

» We challenged the avallability of mitigating factors included in the cash flow forecasts such as removing cash flows relating to
uncommitted development costs and evaluated Managerrent's ability to control the fevel and timing of these autflows as rmitigating
actions If required. We assessed this through our understanding of the business and the presence of any contrary evidence.

+ We chalienged the abiiity of the investors to provide funding if required, by researching the financial health of the investors
and assessing any indicators that the financial support would not be forthcoming.

+ We challenged Management’'s view on the probability of being able to refinance the Portiands Place. New Maker Yards 1and
New Maker Yards 2 debt facilities in the going concern period Qur audit procedures include the perspective of EY Debt
Advisory Specialists on the probabihty of being able to refinance, understancing how far discussions have progressed with
prospective lenders and assessing the historical trends of debt refinancing whenr required.

+ We reviewed minutes of board meetings with a view to identifying any matters which may mpact the going concern
assessment, We inspected Management's assessment of tax exposure relating to land and property transactions to identify
any matters which may impact the going concern assassment.

+ We nspected evidence to support the £18 9m tax settiement paid to HMRC and receipt of £7.0m shareholder funding, both of
which occurred after the year end.

* We reviewad the Group’s going concern disclosures included in the annual report 1in order to assess whether the disclosures
were appropriate and 10 corformity with the reporting standards.

Going concern kas also been identified as a key audit matter.

Our respansihilities and the responsibitities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections
of this report However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, our responsibilit.es and the responsibilities
of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the rerevart statement is not a guarantee as o0 the group’s
ability to contipue as a going concern

Overview of our audit approach

Audit scope « We performed the audit of the group as If 't were a single aggregated set of financial information

Key audit matters « Valuation of the property portfolio
s Revenue recogrition
= Going concern basis used In the preparation of the financial statemenrts

Materiahty « Overall group matenahty of £29.7m which represents 1% of total assets

An overview of the scope of the parent company and group audits

Talloring the scope .

Cur assessment of audit sk, our evaluatior of materahty and our allocation of performance materality deterrmine our audit
scope for each company within the Group. Taken together, this enables us to form ar cpimon on the consolidated financial
statermerts We performed the audit of the group as If it were a single aggregated set of financial information. The audit was
performed using the materiaiity level set out above and covered 100% of group revenue, group profit before tax and group total
assets (December 2021 100% of group revenue, group profit before tax and group total assets)

Climate change

Stakkoholders are mmercosingly mterestac oy Fow Coale Change will ilnpget Gel Living PLL. THe Lroup has determined that

the most significant future iImpacts from climate change on thetr operations will be from impacts of £3G requirements on
operations, net zero carbon oblgat:ons and the potential iImpact of sustainable lending requirements. Thase are explained

on pages 40 - 43 1n the prrcipal risks and uncertaint:es which form part of the “Other informatiorn”, rather than the audited
financial statements. Cur procedures on thase unaudited disclosuras therefore consisted solely of considering whether they are
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained it the course of the audit or otherwise appear
to be materiaily misstated, in ine with our resporsibilities on “Other information”

In plarning and performing our audit we assessed the potentiai impacts of cimate change on the Group's bus.ness ard any
consequentiar maternal impact on :ts financial staterments.

The Group has explained in the Strategic Report governmental and societal responses to chimate change risks are stilt developirg,
and where the degree of certainty of thase changes means that they cannot be taken into account when determining asset and
llability valuations and the tirming of future cash flows under the reguirements of UK adepted international accounting standards

Qur audit effort In considering the impact of chimate change on the financial statements was focused on ensuring that the effects
of material cimate risks disclosed on page 42 have been appropriateiy reflected in the valuation of the property portfolio and the
goIng concern assessment where values are determined through modelling future cask flows, Including these reiated to climate

risks Detalls of our procedures and findings on the valuation of the property portfolio are included in our key audit matters below.

Annual Report 2022
61



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent auditor’s report continued

to the members of Get Living PLC

An overview of the scope of the parent company and group audits continued

Climate change continued

We also challenged the Directors’ considerations of climate change risks in their assessment of going concern and associated
disclosures. Where considerations of climate change were relevant to our assessment of going concern, these are described above

Based on our work we have not identified the impact of chimate change on the financial statements ta be A key audit matter or
to irmmpacl o key audit matter

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional jJudgment, were of most sigrificance in our audit of the financial
staterments of the current period and Include the most significant assessed risks of materal rmisstatement (whether or not due to
fraud) that we identified These matters included those which had the greatest effect on the overall audit strategy. the allocation of
resources In the audit; and direcung the efforts of the engagerment team. These matters were aadressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole, and 1IN our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In
addition to the matter described in the rmaterial uncertainties related to going concern section, we have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Risk

Valuation of the property portfolio
Investment property
2022: £2.6592m (December 2021 £2,366 2m)

Trading property
2022 £68.6m (December 2021 £35.6rm)

Refer to the Audit Committee Report (pages 52 to 54); Accounting polictes (pages 74 and 76); and Note 12 and 14 of the
Consohdated Financial Statements (pages 87 to 83)

Investment properties are held at fair vatue. Trading properties are held at the lower of cost and ret realizable value (NRV),
though EPRA measures are also disclosed 0 the annuai report whick refiect the fair value of traaing properties. The valuation
of the property portfolio contains a high degree of estmation uncertainty. Additicnally, the potential for manipulation of the
Lhderlying data provided to the third party valuer and :nfluence on the significant judgements to meet investor expectationrs or
perforrmanrce targets or to avoid an impairment of tradirg properties give rise to a fraud nisk.

in addition to the above, for ail properties in development, there 15 an additioral risk around completeness of forecasts costs to
complete, and the allocation of capital expenditure between investment property and tracing property.

Our response to the risk

We included Chartered Surveyors on our audit team and held discussions with the Group's external valuer, CBRE, to assess and

challenge the approprateness of the methodology adopted for each property.

Working with our EY Chartered Surveyors, we assessed.

« The appropriateness of the methodology adopted for the property valuations, inctuding holding meetings with CBRE

« We challenged whether the assumptions (yrelds, market rent. sales and cost assurmptions for developments) adopted by the
external valuers fall within a reascnable range based on knowledge and evidence from the market This included performing
benchmarking of the key inputs of the valuation against comparable build to rent schemes.

« We searched for transactional evidence which contradicted the inputs adopted by the valuer and challenged the valuer during
our meetings with them

» We reperformed vah atinn caleutations, neluding sensitivily enalysis uver key assumptions, te determine a reasonable range of
values for the entire portfolio of properties.

For operational properties:
» We agreed the contracted rental income at the valuation date to the assumed contracted rent per the valuatior report
« We assessed the 6-month traifing rents achieved across the properties and compared this to the market rents assumed by CBRE.

+ We challenged the completeness of Management's identificatior of remediation works as a result of buldirg and fire safety legislation
through selecting a sample of fire nsk assessments across the entire portfolio to assess the completeness of the provisions.

+ Sor each property with remedation works required, we inspected the results of the fire risk sssessments performed by
Managements external specialist,

= We challenged Maragement over the completeness of the risks identified and the required costs to remediate the fire safety issues.
This Included obtaining evidence to support the remediation work such as signed contracts and forecast costs to complete.

+ We read the contracts to deterrmine whether the scope of works was sufficient to address the remediation warks required per the
fire risk assessments.

* We corroborated the costs to complete were appropriately ncluded in the valuation of the property portfolio.
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Key audit matters continued

Cur response to the risk continued

For properties under development:

= On a sample basis, we vouched development expenditure to supporting evidence and determine whether these have been
capitalised appropndlely, ncluding whether the allocation between investment and trading property was appropriate

+ We assessed the completeness of the costs to complete. inciuding Inspection of board minutes for contract varations,

performing comparnson of costs over time and vouching a sample of forecast costs to committed contracts or other

supporting avidencea.

Compared total forecast costs at the year end in comparison to the prior year and mvestigated material changes.

Assessed Management's sphit of the costs to complete for developments where costs are incurred across both investrment and

trading properties.

« We performed site visits and attended meaetings with property development managers for a sample of properties. We
Inspected the stage of development, understood the key development risks and challenged the development managers on

the costs to complete,

We also carried out the following procedures:

+ We performed a walkthrough and identified the key controls over data used in the valuation of the property portfolio and
Management's review of the valuations.

« We made inguiries with the valuer to determine whether any undue pressure had been placed on them to arrive at a particular
valuation.

* Reconciled valuations to the financial statements and reviewed this for any caveats or imitations in scope, unusual terms
or conditions,

* We evaluated the competence of the externa: valuers in performing the valuation of iInvestment properties, ncluding
consideration of therr qualifications, expertise and independence.

In addition tc the above procedures, we performed the followmng procedures for trading property

* We obtained the net realisabie value {(NRV) calculations from Management and assessed whether the properties were
appropriately measured at the lower of cost and NRV We assessed the reasonableness of the cash flows used to calculate the
NRY includirng the agreed sales price and development costs to complete.

Scope of our procedures
The whoie Group was subject to audit procedures over the vaiuation of the property portfetio.

Key observations communicated to the Audit Committee

Based upon the audit procedures performed, we concluded that the valuation of the property pertfolio has been recognised on
an appropriate basis as at 31 December 2022,

The investmert properties are appropriately recorded at their fair value. The trading properties are appropriately recorded at the
lower of cost and NRV and are appropr:ately disclosed at fair value In the EPRA disclosures.

Risk

Revenue recognition
Rental income
2022: £83.4m (December 2021 £63.8m)

Trading property disposal
2022 £57m (December 20271 mil)

Revenue from development contracts
2022; £3.9m (December 2021 rib)

Other income

2022 £6 2m (Decemiber 2021 £6 9m)

Refer to the Audit Committee Repart (pages 52 to 54); Accounting policies (page 76), and Note & of the Consciidated
Financial Statements (page 79)

Investor expectations and profit based targets may place pressure on Management to distort revenue recognition. This may
result In overstaternent or deferral of revenues to assist In maeting current or future targets or expectations

We consicer that the risk lies within the revenue being overstated through fictitious leases, any top-side adjustments, and
incorrect cut off.
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Independent auditor’s report continued

to the members of Get Living PLC

Key audit matters continued

Our response to the risk

We performed a walkthrough of the process and key controls over revenue recognition which have been designed by the
Group to prevent and detect fraud and errors in revenue recognition.

Ve performed data analytics over the whole population of journals posted to revenue during the year to search for evidence
of Management override or iInappropriate journal pestings This involves investigating manual journal postings to revenue and
Jjournals with unusual account pairings.

For rental income.

» ‘We gbtained and used data from the property management systemn to form a highly granular expectation for the revenue recogrised
for every single lease using our lease analyser. We compared this detaled expectation at the tenant level to the General Ledger.

= We audited the integnty of the tenancy schedule downlocaded from the property management system, agreeing a sampie
of tease Information to the onginal lease documents or subsequent lease amendments and traced our sample through to
cash receipts. Using this data we recalculated the expected rental income and deferred income balances, comparing this to
the reported figures in the generat ledger.

« From our sample we recalcuiated the total expected rental income for the year, and agreed this te cash receipts in
December 2022 to confirm the completeness of the rental income recagnised We also considered any lease terms that
could iImpact revenue but were not identified by Management.

For the trading property disposal

+ We obtained and read Management's techrnical accounting paper for the sale of NO5, Including an assessment of the timing
of revenue recognition and determing whether the sale of NOS has been accounted for in accordance wrth IFRS 16

*« We recorciled the revenue recognised to relevant clauses in the lease agreement and cash recepts through the bank
statement,

« We inspected the lease agreement and other supporting agreements related to the sale. We searched for evidence of any
residual value heid by the Group after the sale and whether any value should be recognised on balance sheet.

* We performed cut-off procedures on the timing of development costs, focusing on costs incurred during the montk of sale
and whether they were allocated to trading property pre or post saie.

For revenue from development contracts:

» We inspected Management’s technical accounting paper. :including an assessment of the identified performance obhgations,
aliocation of the transaction price and the timing of reverue recognition to determine whether the construction iIncome has
been accounted for in accordance with the urderiying contract, the stage of comrplet:on and IFRS 15

* We reconciled total revenue forecast by managerment to the revenue contract. We inspected the entire agreement to
:dentify any terms or conditions that would impact the revenue recognition that were not identified by Management

« We challerged Managernent’'s treatment as to whether Get Living retain the control over the services provided, and
whether they are the ‘principal’ or ‘agent’.

* We recalculated the revenue recognised in accordance with the terms of the contract and verified compretion of
performance obligations through evidence to support completion.

For other income:

= We obtained Management's schedule of the allocation for the property maintenance costs between Get Living and the Non-
Controling Interest, including how these costs were apportioned between each property.
= ‘We performed test of detalls, n¢cluding sample testing, relating to the property mantenance costs inCurred and the amounts
recharged 1o the non-controlling interest. For the sample selected, we obtaned evidence which supports the value and
trming of the cast Incurred and assessed whether the costs can be recharged in accordance with the underlying agreement.
We tested a sample of the revenue transactions related to the Nor-Controlling Interests properties and obtained evidence to
challenge whether the revenue was being recaognised -n the Group financial statements appropnately, and, to search for any
patential overstatement of Group revenue

We searched for any evidence of claims, correspordence or credit notes from the Non-Controlling Interest through
nspection of board minutes, post year end bank statement testing and inquiries of the external preperty management team

Scope of our procedures
The whole Group was subject o audit procedures over reverue recogrition.

Key observations communicated to the Audit Committee

Based upon the audit procedures performed, we corcluded that revenue has been recognised on an appropriate basis in the year
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Our application of materiality
We apply the concept of materiality in planning and performing the audit, in evaluating the effect of iWdentified misstatements on

the audit and ir forming our audit opinion
Materiality

The magnitude of an omission or musstatement that, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably he exnected to influence
the pennomc decisions of the users uf the financial staternents. Materiahty provides a basis for determimng the nature and

extent of our audit procedures

The table below sets out the materiality, performance materiality ana threshold for reporting audit differences apphed on our audit:

Basis Materiality (Em) Performance materiality {(Em) Reporting threshoid (£m)

Group (overall) 1% of total assets  £29.7 £22.3 £1.5
{December 2021: (December 2021: £26.2) {(December 2021: £19.6) (December 2021: £1.3)

1% of total assets)

Group (specific) 3% of EBITDA £0.89 £0.67 £0.05

Related to revenue, expenses
and working capital balances

Farant 1% of total assets  £12.8 £9.6 EC.6
Company (December 2021: (December 2021: £12.8) (December 2021: £3.6) (December 2021: £0.6)

1% of tctal assets)

When establishing our overall audit strategy, we determined a magnitude of uncorrected misstatements that we judged would be matenal
for the financial statements as a whole. We determined that an asset-based measure would be the most appropriate basis for determining
overall matenaiity given that key users of the Group's financial staterments are primarnily focused on the valuation of the Group's assets.
Based on this, we determined that it s appropnate to set the overall matenaity at 1% of total assets (2021 1% of total assets). We applied
overall matenality to all financial statement line tems excluding those related to revenue, expanses and working capital balances.

in the current year, we deterrmined that for revenue, expenses and working capttal balances a misstaterent of iess than overall
matenality for the financial statements as a whole could irfluence the economic decisions of users. For these accounts, we believe that
it s most appropriate to use a profit-based measure as profit is also a focus of users of the financial staternents This change was made
In order to more closely align with what we assess to be a primary focus of users of the firancial statements, bemng a specific focus on
balances which impact upon EBITDA. Based on this, we determined that it 1s appropnate to set the specific materality at 3% of EBITDA.

During the course of our audit, we reassessed initial materiality which has not resulted in a change from our planning matenaity.

Performance materiality
The applicarion of materniality at the individual account or balance level It is set at an amount to reduce to an appropriately low
level the probability that the aggregate of uncarrected and undetected misstatements exceeds materiality.

On the basis of our rnisk assessments, togetter with our assessment of the Group’s overall control environment, our judgement
was that performance materality was 75% (2021 75%) of our planning materiality. namely £22 3rn (2021 £196m) and £0.67m
respectively for overall and specific materiality levels We have set performance matenality at this percentage based on our
axpectations of identifying matenal misstatements and the control environment supporting the prevention of matenal misstaternent.

Reporting threshold
An amount below which identified misstatements are considered as being clearly trivial.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them all uncorrected audit differences in excess of £1.5m
(2021: £1.3m) and £0.05m respectivaly for overall and spectfic matenality levels, which is set at 5% of planning matenality,
as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on gualitative grounds

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative measures of materality aiscussed above and in nght
of other relevant quantative corsiderations in forrming our opINION.

Other information
The other iInformation comprises the information iIncluded in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsibie for the other informatior contained within the annual report

Our opinion on the financial staternents does not cover the other nformation and, except to the extent otherwise explcitly
stated Iin this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibinty 1s to read the other information and, ir doing so, consider whether the other information 1s materially
nconsistent with the financial statements or cur knowledge obtained in the course of tha audit or otherwise appears to
be materally misstated. If we identify such matenal inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves If, based on the work we
have performed. we conclude that there s a matenal misstatement of the other Infarmation, we are required to report that fact
We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent auditor’s report continued

to the members of Get Living PLC

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial staterments
are prepared s consistent with the financial statements; and

¢ the strateqic report and directors’ report have heen prepared i accordance with applicable legal requirements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained i~ the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

We have nothing to report In respect of the following matters in relatien to which the Companias Act 2006 requires us to report

to you If, In cur opirion:

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

* the parent company financial statements are not In agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
« certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the directors' responsibilities staterment set out on page 58, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as
the directors determine 1s necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group and parent company’s ability to
continue as a gong concern, disclosing, as applicable. matters reiated to going concern and using the going cencern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to iguidate the group or the parert company Gr to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but o do s0

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reascrable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from materal
misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error, and to 1ssue an auditor's report that includes cur opinion. Reasonable assurance is a

righ level of assurarce, but 15 not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a materal
misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are corsidered materal if, individually or i the aggregate.
they could reasonably be expected to Influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

irregularities, including fraud, are iInstances of non-compliance with laws and regulaticrs. We design procedures in ine with

our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect rregulanties, ncluding fraud The risk of not detecting a mater:al misstatement
due to fraud 1s higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may nvolve deliberate concealment by,

for example, forgery or intentronal misreprasentations, or through collusion The extent to which our procedures are capable of
detecting irregularities, including fraud 1s detalled below. However, the primary responsitiiity for the prevention and detection of
fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the company and managemenrt.

= We obtained an understanding of the legat and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the group and determined that
the most significant are those which are directly relevant to specific assertions in the financial statermments are those that relate
to the reporting framework (UK adepted internatinnal arcounting standards) and thie relevanl Lax regulations in the Umited
Kingdom, including the UK REIT regulations and UK Bullding and Safety regulations.

+ We understagd how Get Living PLC 1s complying with those frameworks through enguiry with Management. and by
identifying the policies and procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations. We also identified those members of
Management who have the primary responsikility for ensuring compliance with laws and regulations, and for reportirg any
krown instances of non-complance o those charged with goverrance

Wa assessed the susceptibiiity of the group’s financial statements to materiai misstaternent, including how fraud might occur
by reviewing the Company's principal risks ard uncertainties, erquiry with Management and the Audit Committee dunng the
planning and executior phases of our aucht
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements continued

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud continued

« Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to rdentify non-compliance with such laws and regulatiors.
Qur procedures involved the following:

- Inquirng of members of Management, arnd when appropriate, those charged with governance regarding ther knowledgoe of
any run-comphance or potential non-complance with laws and regulations that could affect the financial statements

- Reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance.
- Oktaining ard reading correspondence from legal and regulatory bodies including HMRC.
- Performing journal entry testing

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 1s located on the Financial Reporting
Courncil's website ar https /www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities This description forms part of our aucitor's report

Use of our report

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members thase matters we are required
to state to them in an auditor's repert and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report. or for the opinions we have formed.

5’)’7/ -4 'fo‘,aj LL-F

Graeme Downes (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

28 April 2023
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group statement of comprehensive income

2022 2021

Notes £m £m

Revenue |3 99.2 707
Cost of sales 7 (36.0) (24.8)
Gross profit 63.2 45.9
Administrative expenses (35.7) (28.3)
Valuation gan on investment property 12 136.0 £1.9
Operating profit 8 163.5 79.5
Finance costs 1° (36.7) (27.0)
Change in fair value of dervatives 21 25.6 5.8
Profit before taxation 152.4 58.3
Tax charge 11 (16.1) 0.2)
Profit for the year 136.3 58.1
Total comprehensive income for the year 136.3 58.1

Atrtributable to:

Equity haolders of the parent 136.3 58.1
Non-controlling interests - —_
Total comprehensive iIncome for the year 136.3 58.1
35 136.36 58.03

Basic and diluted earnings per share (£)
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Group statement of financial position

(As restated*)

2022 2021

Notes £m £m
Non-current assets
Investment property 12 2,659.2 2,766.2
Property, plant and equipment 13 24 2.8
Trade and other recevables 15 5.8 10.5
Derivative financial instruments 21 31.7 23
Total non-currant assets 2,699.1 2,381.8
Current assets
Trading property 14 68.6 356
Inventory 0.1 0.1
Trade and other receivabies 15 142.3 115.8
Derivative financial instruments 21 0.5 —
Restricted cash 16 135 15.9*
Cash and cash equivalents 16 66.5 85.1*
Total current assets 29185 252.5
Total assets 2,990.6 2,634.3
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 17 (93.2) (126.03
income tax pavable (0.5) (0.7>
Loans and borrowings 20 (270.0) (97.8)
Derivative finranciai instruments 21 - (0.3
Provisions 18 (33.0) —
Total current liabilities €396.7) (224.8)
Non-current liabilities
Long-term other payables 19 (7.9) (12.2>
Loans and borrowings 20 (1,072.3) (1,067.3>
Dervative financiai instruments 21 - (.63
Total non-curraent liabilities ¢1,080.2) (1,080.1)
Total liabilities (1,476.9) (1,304.9)
Net assets 1,513.7 1.329.4
Equity
Share capital 27 1.0 1.0
Distributable reserve 27 783.6 783.6
Corsolidation reserve 27 (10.8) (10.8)
Retaned earnmgs 206 150.5 141.2
Orther eguity reserves 25 589.3 541.3
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 1,513.8 1,329.3
Non-controllirg interests 28 0.1 0.1
Total equity 1,513.7 1,329.4

* Cash and ¢ash equivalents and restrcted casn rave neen retrospectively restared as at 31 December 2021 following a clarficatior oy 'FRIC or the presentation of mories
tnat have legal or contractuat resfrctions or their use but are shysically accessiple, see ~ote 16 for further information.

The financial statements on pages 68 to 106 were approved by the Board of Directors for :ssue on 27 April 2023 and were signed
on its behalf by:

Vaomes Boadle

James Boadle
Director
27 April 2023
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group statement of changes in equity

Artr'butable o equity holders of the parent

Other Non-
Share Distributab.e Consolidat-on Retained equity controiling Total
capitai reserve reserve earnings reserves Total intorests equity
Notes £m Ermn £rmn £rm £m £rr £rm £rm
At 1 January 2021 1.0 783.6 (10.8) (43.9) 233.4 969.3 01 969.4
Total comprehensive
income for the year — — — 58.1 —_ 58.1 — 58.1
Cther eguity
contributions 25 — — - — 3019 301.9 — 3019
At 31 December 2021 1.0 783.6 (10.8) 14.2 541.3 1.329.3 0.1 1,329.4
Total comprehensive
income for the year - — — 136.3 — 136.3 — 136.3
Other eguity
contributions 25 — — — — 48.0 48.0 — 48.0
At 31 December 2022 1.0 783.6 (10.8) 150.5 589.3 1,513.6 0.1 1,513.7
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Group cash flow statement

{As restated*)

2022 2021

Notas £m £m
Operating activities
Profit before taxation 152.4 08.3
Adjustments to reconcile profit before taxation to net cash flows:
— Depreciation 13 1.7 11
— Valuation gain on investment property 12 (136.0) (61.9)
— F'nance costs 10 36.7 27.0
— Change In fair vaiue of dervatives 21 {25.6) (5.8
— Profit on disposal of trading property (4.5) -
Working capital adjustments:
— Development expenditure on trading property (31.1) 5.1
- Proceeds recetved from sale of trading property 5.7 -
— Increase In pther non-current receivables (2.1) (10.5)
— Increase N trade and other receivables (24.2) (21.6)
— Increase N trade and other payables 29.9 49.5
— Decrease i~ other long-term payables (4.5) (24.9)
— Increase in provisions 14.3 —
— Tax paid _ (1.8)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 12.7 4.3
Investing activities
Cash acquired from acquisition of group of assets 24 - 125
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2.0) (1.3
Development expenditura €201.2) (157.3)
Decrease/(increase) v restricted cash 24 (2.2~
Net cash cutflow from investing activities {200.8) (147.9)
Financing activities
Equity funding frem shareholders 25 48.0 1596
Drawdown of loan facilities 22 160.4 51.6
Loar and hedge arrangement fees (5.4) —
interest paid on ioan facilities 22 (28.2) (24.5)
Proceeds on sale of derivative financial instruments 22 1.0 -
Purchase of derwvative financial instruments 22 {6.2) -
Other firancing costs €0.1) (3.9
Net cash inflow from financing activities 169.5 182.8
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (18.6) 33.2"
Cash and cash equrvalerts at the start of the year 85.1 45.97
Cash and cash equivalents at the and of the year £6.5 05.1*

Cash and cash eguivalents and restricted cash nave been retrospectively restated as at 1 January 2021 and 31 Decemnber 2021 fallowing a clarfication oy IFRIC on the
oresentation of monies that nave ‘egal or contractual restrictions on tneir use but are physicaily accessible, see note 16 for further infarmation
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statements

1. Corporate information

Get Living PLC (the “"Company”) is a public imited compary, incorporated, domiciled and registered under the laws of England
and Waies with the registered number 1532492 The Company’'s ragistered office is at 6th Floor Lansdowne House, Berkeley Square,
London Wld 6ER, United Kingdom.

The Company I1s a UK Real Estate Investrment Trust (REIT) and 1ts oranary shares are hsted on The Internatinnal Stnck Exchange (TISE).

The Company, together weth its subsidiaries (the "Group”). 1s involved in the investrment and management of UK bund-to-rent
(BtR) properties in London at East Village and Efephant Central, and Manchester at New Maker Yards, alongside the ongoing
management of BtR developments at Fast Village, Elephant and Castle Town Centre, and Lewisham at Newton Place.

The Group's financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 were appraved by the Board of Directors on 27 Apnl 2023
and the Group Statement of Financial Position was signed on the Board's behalf by James Boadle.

2. Basis of preparation
The Group's financial statements have been prepared in accerdance with UK adopted international accounting standards,

The financial statements have been prepared for the year ended 31 December 2022, with the comparative perred being the year
ended 31 December 2021, The financial statements are presented 'in milions of Sterling (Em) and all values are rounded to the
nearest hundred thousand Sterling (£0.1m), except where otherwise indicated.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for iInvestment properties and denvative financial
instruments which are measured at fair value.

Going concern

The financial staterments have been prepared on a going concern basis The Directors have prepared cash flow forecasts

for the period to 30 June 2024 i order to assess the requirements of the Group and Cempany over that period (the "going
concern period’) Despite the buoyant rental market, driven in part by a market supply and dermand imbalance. the going

concern assessment has been performed against the backdrop of a subdued global economic outlook The Directors have
therefore considered a base case, a downside scenaric, and performed reverse stress testing, in consideration of the petential
future risks of economic uncertainty and further recession related to macro-economic events; the crisis in Ukraine and aftermath
of the global pandemic driving global supply constraints leading to high inflation and a cost of iving crisis, along with high interest
rates as a result of UK political instability and policy changes. The Directors have also considered the payment subseguent to the
year end of £18.9m to HMRC. and the recaipt of £70m furding from sharebolders in March 2023 .» the going concern assessment.

In the base case scenano”

The Directors have performed a detalled going concern review based on the Board approved 2023 budget, which reflects

current traging trends at tugh cccupancies for stabilised assets, a strong launch of lease-up assets and cont.nued strong rentai

growth, with revenue on stabilised assets forecast to increase approximately in ine with inflationary trends between 2022 and

2023, The impact of inflation on costs over the geing concern period has been incorporated into this scenano Key assumptions

In the base case scenaric Include’

+ The Group successfully refirances the debt facilities on 1ts Portlands Place asset ahead of the matunty date of September 2023,
and its New Maker Yards Phase 1 and Phase 2 debt facilities abead of ther matunty date in March 2024 The Group has the
option to extend the New Maker Yards Phase 2 facility for one year to March 2025, subject to meeting certain conditions which
the Group are confident can be achieved

+ The Group recelves further caprtal from its investors to meet the costs of carrying out fire safety remedial works.

+ The Group recelves further caprtal from 1ts investors to meet non-contractual commitments specifically for the development of
other plots at East Village If funding s not obtained, the Groug has the option not to enter into these transactions.

N1 Lhe downaids s¢enario, the Board has considered a severe but plausibie scenario whick considers the following assumptions

« Reduced occLpancy across the Group's assets and downward pressures on pricing, modelled based on an extended
economic downturn. This scenario assumes a 10% decrease from the base case in PRS, student ard retall revenues, This
scenano alse models a 10% increase 'n void unit and 15% Increase In bad debt costs

« var.ous mitigation measures that would need to be exercised including the deferral of certain discretionary operating
costs, development and capital expenditure. The Directors are confident these mitigating actions can be executed in the
necessary timeframe if required and are within the control of Management. Tre use of these rmitigations would not have a
resdltant impact on the forecast revenues.

*» Trere are nc breaches of loan facility covenants.

« The Group receives no further funding from shareholders
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2. Basis of preparation continuad

Going concern continued

Based on the downside scenarnio, assuming the debt facility refinancings in the going concern period are achieved and the
controllable mitigations are actioned, the Directors assess that the Group has sufficient cash reserves to operate as a going
concern. This judgerment 1s based upon:

+ Rofarance to the apu uved budger tor the year ended December 2023, through which shareholders have agreed to provide
funding for fire safety costs and non-contractual commitrments for development plots.

+ The Directors have corsidered the financial ability of the investors and assess they have sufficient cash resources to provide
the funding committed.

* In the scenario where no further shareholder funding is received the Group has sufficient cash reserves to meet its uabihties
after executing the mitigating actions which are within the control of Management.

The Group also performed a reverse stress test over the impact of a fall In 1ts preperty valuations during the going concern
period, with an unprecedented percentage fall not even seen during the Cevid-19 pandemic required to result in g loan to value
covenant breach, a decrease not historically seen by the Group This 1s therefore considered to be a remote possibility during
the going concern period.

The Directars also evaluated potential events and condit:ons beyond the period ending 30 June 2024 that may cast
stgruficant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, with no significant transactions or events of material
uncertainty identified

The Directors are confident in the Group's ability to refinance debt facihities expiring during the going concern perod. The Directors
have heid discussions with a number of potential tenders on the refinancings and a series of competitively priced indicative guotes
have bean received, subject to credit committee approval. The Directors are confident that the market appetite for lending against
PRS assets remains strong ard that Get Living PLC 13 well placed to secure the reguired financing on both the Portlands RPlace and
the New Maker vards Phase T and Phase Z debt facilities which fall due in the going concern period However, if the Group 15 not
successful In refinancing the debt facilities, it will be reliant on shareholders providing funds to support the repayment of existing
cebt faciities, In addition to the shareholder funding assumed in the base case scenario. The Directors have therefore concluded
that thare 1s a material uncertainty with respect to refinancing the Portlards Place, New Maker Yards Phase 1 and New Maker Yards
Phase 2 debt facilities which may cast significant doubt over the Group and Compary's ability to continue as a going concern.

“he Board believe that, subject to the materal uncertainty relating te achieving the refinancing described above. the Group will

be abie to manage its business risks successfuily, ara the Group's forecasts and projections show that the Group will be abie to
operate within the ‘eve! of its avaiiable lquidity and covenant reguirements. Accorchingly, the Directors continue to adeopt the going
conhcern basis in preparing the anrual report and financial statements, however, the matters described above result in the existence
of a maternial uncertainty which may cast significant doubt over the Group's ability to cortinue as a going concern.

The consolidated financial statements do not Include the adjustments that would result if the Group and Company were unable to
continue as a going concerr

Judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial staterments N accordance with UK adopted nternational accounting standards reguires the use of crtical
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of pohicies and reported amounts of assets and habilities,
mcome and expenses. Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and the accounting results of those estimates may
nct equal the related actual results

The areas Involving a higher degree of judgement or compiexity, or areas where assumptions ard estimates are sigrificant to
the financial statements, are disciosed i the relevart notes forming part of these financral statements as discussed below

Key judgements

Classiflcation and transfers between investment and trading property

The Group coPsiders the intention at the outset when each property 1s acquired in arder to classify the property as esther an
.nvestment property or a trading property Where the intention 15 to trade the property within the ordinary course of business,
the property is classified as trading property Where the ntent:ion is to hold the property for its lang-term rertal yield or capital
appreciation, the property 1s ciassified as an investmeant property.

wWhere there 1s a change in use of the property, a transfer between investment property and trading property takes place A change
N use cccurs when the prooerty ceases to meet the definition of investment property and there 1s evidence of the change in use.
The trensfer will take place when there are observabie actions toward effecting a change in use, for example the commencement
of development with a view to a sale

The classification of the Group’s properties I1s a signmficant jJudgement which directly impacts the statutory net asset position,

as trading progerties are held at the lower of cost and net reaiisable value, whilst investment properties are held at fair value,
with gains or lasses taken through the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Refer to note 14 for further information
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statements continued

2. Basis of preparation continued

Key judgements continued

Taxation

The Group applies jJudgernent in identifying uncertainties over Ncome tax treatments, particularly those retating to land and property
transactions The Group determined that it 1$ probable that .ts tax treatments (rcluding those for the subsidianes) will be ultimately
accepted by the taxatior authorities. A provisian frr a settlemont agreed with HMRC after the Staleiment of Financial Position date
Mas been recognised (note 18). The Directors have made a judgement based on their assessment that no further provisicn 1s required.

Other judgements

Sale of trading property

Praceeds received for the sale of trading property are recognised when the buyer assumes control of the property Should
exchange of title occur before the practical completion of the property. the Group assesses whether the disposal of trading
property and subsequent developrnent by the Group constitutes a single contract or two separate contracts The profit or
loss on disposal s calculated as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset at the date
of disposal, with this being taken through the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Refer to note 14 for further information.

Property acquisitions and business combinations
Where a property 1s acquired through the acquisition of corporate interests, management considers the substance of the assets
and activities of the acquired entity i determining whether the acquisition represents the acquisitien of a business.

The Group accounts for an acouisition as a business combination where an integrated set of activities 1s acguired 1n addition to the
property. More specificaily, consideration is made of the extent to which significant processes are acquired and, In particular, the extent
of services provided by the subsidiary. IFRS 3 sets out an optional concentration test designed to simplify the evaiuation of whether
an acguired set of activities and assets 1s not a business. An acquired set of activities and assets 's not a business If substantially ail
of the fair value of the gross assets acguired 1s concertrated in a single identifiable asset or group of similar 1dentifiable assets

Where such acquisitions are not deemed to be an acquisition of a business, they are not treated as business combinations Instead,
they are treated as asset acquisitiors, with the cost to acguire the corporate entity being allocated between the identifiable assets
and llabilities of the entity based or their relative fair values on the acquisition date. Accordingly, no goodwill arises. Refer to note 24
for more information

Key estimates
The key accourting estimates with a rsk of & material change o the carrying vaiue of assets and habihties within the next year

in terms of IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements’ are detalled below,

Fair value of investment property
The fair value of the Group's Irvestment property 1s a kay source of estimation uncertainty; however, in accerdance with the
account ng poicy of the Group, Investment property 1s revalued at each reporting date by CBRE Lirm:ted as third party speciahists.

Market value Is defined as the estimated amount for which a property should exchange or the date of valuation between willing
buyer and seller in an arm's length transaction without compuision. The Group considers the use of professional exterral valuers, in
accordance with the atest RICS Valuation Standards in the United Kingdom, sufficient to reduce but not eilminate the uncertamnty

The Group continues to review fire safety requirements in all homes to ensure they are safe to occupy, and fall in Iine with
government guidance and professional acvice Whiist none of the Group's bulldirgs are currently corsidered unsafe, such
a classification at a later date would be expected te matenally affect the value of the Group's investment properties

In response to the requirements of fire safety regulation the Group continues to perform remediation works where 't considers it
appropriate for ensuring ail bulldings remain safe Where the Group has considered it appropriate to carry out remediation work
the cost to perform these remediation works 1s included as a deduction from the fair value of the investment property as a cost
to complete. Despute the use of specialists and a dedicated internal team there 1s a degree of uncertairty Involved In estimating
the cost of thesa works to be performed due to their inkerertly complex nature. The existing estirates have been based on
surveys performed by specialists and Managerment's best estimate.

Refer to note 12 for further information.

Derivatives

The Group has entered financing facilities where the interest expense .s based on varable reference rates such as SONIA. This
provides a key source of estimation uncertamty. However. the Group has entered into derivatives to minimise the volatidity of its
expos.Jre to these interest rate movements, The derivatives are valued at the reporting date by an external consultant using

a discounted cash flow model and markat information (see notes 21 and 23)

Other sources of estimation uncertainty

The following areas of estimation uncertainty are net presented to comply with the requirements of paragraph 125 of IAS 3
Presentation of Financial Statements’ as 1t 1s not expected there 1s a rsk of a material adjustment to the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year. They are presented as additional disciosure of estimates used In the accounts.

Net realisable value of trading property
The Group's trading property Is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value ("NRV"). NRV 15 calculated with reference to
the expected sellinrg price. less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sate, discourted
to the net present value
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2. Basis of preparation continued

Other sources of estimation uncertainty cont:nued

Provisions - fire safety remedial works

Whenr recognising a provision with respect to fire safety remediation works undertaken by the Group on behalf of non-
controlling interests, the Group determines the best estimate for the value of the future economic outflow. The Group takes
a prudent approach and considers all available information in making such am assessmenrt. Assessments are revisited at each
reporling date. Heter to note 18 for further information

3. Accounting standards

a) New and amended standards and interpretations effective in the current financial year

The Group considers new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations which are applicable for the first tme in
the year ended 31 December 2022. These were found to be either not relevant or not have a materal impact on the consoiidated

financial statements of the Group

b) New and amended standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective

The relevant new and amended standards and interpretatiors that are 1ssued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance
of the Group's financial statements are disclosed below The Group intends to adopt thase new and amended standards and
nterpretations, If applicable, when they becomae effective. The Directors do not expect the adoption of thase standards and
interpratations to have a material impact on the censoldated or Company financial staterments in the period of imtial applhication.

s IFRS17 Insurance Contracts including Amendments to IFRS 17 (1 January 2023)

= Amendments to 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements ang IFRS Practice Statement 2' Disclosure of Accounting policies
C January 2023)
Amepdments to 'AS 8 Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Srrors Defimt:on of Accounting Estimates
¢ January 2023)

Arrendments to 1AS 12 Income Taxes Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction
(" January 2023)

* Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 'nitial Applicatton of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 - Comparative ‘nformation

" January 2023

* Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases: Lease Lrability in a Sale and _easeback ¢ January 20243

= Amendments to IAS 1 Presentatior of Financial Statements: Classificaticn of Liabilities as Current or Non-current Date
and its Deferral of Effective Date, and Nor-current Liabilities witk Covenants (1 January 20243

4. Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Consolidation
Subsidiares are corsolidated from the date of acguisition, beirg the date on which the Group obrains control, and continue

to be consoiidated until the date when such control ceases. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared using
consistent accourting policies. All intra-group balances and trarsactiors, unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions and dividends are eliminated in full.

The hst of subsichanes of the Group 1s Included n note 37,

Subsidiaries
Subsidianes are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group 15 expoesed, or has rights to, variable returns
from its invoiverment with the entity and has the abliity to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

Non-controlling nterests reprasent the portion of a subsichary’'s cquity which s not attributable to the Group They are presented
separately in the consolidated financial statements (note 28)

b) Asset acquisitions and business combinations under common control

The Group accounts for an acguisition as a business combinat.on where am integrated set of activities 1s acquired i addition to
the property. More specifically, consideration .s made of the extent to which significant processes are acquired ard, in particular,
the extent of services provided by the subsidiary. Business combinations under common control are accourted for using the
pooling of interests method. any difference between the tortal book value of the net assets obtained and the corsideratior paid
1s accourted for im the Group financial statements as a consolidation reserve,

Where such acaursificns are not deemed to be an acquisition of a business, they are not treated as business combinations
Instead, they are treated as asset acquisitions ard the cost to acguire the corporate ertity I1s allocated between the ident flable
assets and 1abilities of the entity based on their relative farr values on the acquisition date. Accordingty, no goodwilll arises,

Management reviewed the acqursition of New Maker Yards Phase 2 (note 24) during the prior year in accordance with the
requirements of IFRS 3, and concluded that it met the criteria of an asset acquisition rather than a business combination and
have accounted for it as such. The acquisit.on was treated as a transaction under common control in accordance with IFRS
3 as the combining entit.es were ultimately controlled by the same parties both before and after the combination and the
common control 1s not trarsitory
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes (0 the financial statements continued

4. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

c) Investment property

Investment property 15 initially recognised at cost, Inclusive of transaction costs, and subsequent!y measured at fair value.
Gains or losses arising from changes in farr value of investment property are :ncluded in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income In the period i which they arise. No depreciation or amortisat:on 1s provided In respact of Investment property

The Group has entered Into residertial property leases v ils investment property portfohio The Group has determired, based
on ar evaiuation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major part of the
economic life of the residentia! property and the present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially
all of the fair value of the residential property. that it retains all the significant rnisks and rewards of ownership of the properties
and accounts for the contracts with tenants as operating leases

d) Trading property

Property acguired or being constructed for saie 1n the ordinary course of business, rather than to be heid for rental or capital
appreciation, 's held as tradmg property and 1s measured at the fower of cost and net reatisable value ("NRV"). Principally, this
15 property that the Group develops and intends to sell befare, or on completion of, development. Cost imcurred 'n bringing each
property to its present location and condition includes:

* freehold and leasehold rights for land;
* amounts paid to contractors for development; and

* pianning and design costs, costs of site preparation, professional fees for legal services, property transfer taxes, development
overheads and cther related costs.

NRV 15 the estimated selling price in the ardinary course of the business. based on market prices at the reportirg date, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, discounted to the net present value The NRV of a trading
property s determined by a professional external valuer at each reporting date if the NRV of a trading property I1s lower than
ts carrying value, an impairment 10ss 1S recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive income. If, :n subsequent periods, the
NRV of a trading property that was previously impa:red increases above :ts carrying value, or If the circumstances that caused
the write-down cease to exist, such that all or part of the write-down is no longer neaded, 't shall be reversed to that extent.

Where the Group develops affordable housing units as part of local council reguirements of the Group's wider development
schemes with a view to sale ir the ordinary course of business, these units are held as trading property as they are to be transferred
to third parties at or prior to compietion. Where the expected cost of developing affordable units exceeds the amount recoverable,
the expected excess cost 15 assumea In the cost to complete of the premium asset classtfied as investment property up to the point
at which practical completion on the premium asset is reached. Following practical completion of the prermium asset, expected
excess costs of any remaining affordable housing uruts under construction are recognised as a separate hability with the related
capital expenditure being allocated to the premium assat,

Tradinrg property 1s cisposed of when control trarsfers to the buyer Profit or loss on disposal 1s calculated using the carry:ng
value of the trading property as at the date of disposal.

) Revenue recognition

Rental income from operating leases :s recognised 1n the Statement of Comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease, n ine with IFRS 16 Lgase agreements are all-inclusive, and contain incorme for other services. However, the term of these
services is the same as the lease term, so the recogrition period 1s the same, and the value of the services 15 included within service

charge and other related income, see note 6.

Interest income 15 recognised using the effective interest rate method.

Revenue from contracts with customers, as defined in IFRS 15, iIncludes several of the Group's iIncorme streams’
* Service charge and other related income from BRE and retaif teranls,

* Other income being service charge iINncome earned from third parties for estate management sarvices;

* Revenue from development contracts, and

* Revenue recevad for the sale of trading property.

All service charge and other related income s recorded as income over time in the period in which the services are rendered,
with payment in line with monthiy rentai income received Revenue 's recognised over time because the tenants benefit from
the services as soon as they are renderad by the Group.

Where a single payment 1s received from a tenant to cover both rent and other services, the service charge and other related

INcome component 1s separated and reported as service charge and other related income. It has been assessed that the Group 15

acting as a principal in service charge and other related income arrangements, since the provision of these benefits 1s incorporated

Into the provision of rental property as a package of services. accordirgly service charge 'ncome and expenditure are presented on

a gross basis in the Statement of Cormmpraehensive Incarme. The actuai service provided durng each reporting peried 1s determined
sing cost incurred as the input method.
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4. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

2) Revenue recognition continued

Revenue generated from developrnert contracts 15 recognised over time as the Group develops assets controlled by customers.
Revenue is determined using the input method by comparing costs incurred to date against total expected costs to be incurred
over the ife of the contract

Muceeds 1eceived for the sale of trading property are recognised when the buyer assumes control of the property Should exchange
of title occur befare the practical completion of the property, the Group assesses whether the disposal of trading property and
subsequent develocpment by the Group constitutes a single contract or two separate contracts. Total consideration recerved
where property is disposed of via a leng leasehoid 1s the sum of upfront premiums and the present value of any future payments.

f) Taxes
Currenrt tax assets and habiities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date

Current tax i1s the expected tax payable on any non-REIT taxable income for the period, using tax rates apphcable at the
Statement of Financial Position date, any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years, and any charges arising
from the requirernents to meet the RE!T regme rules.

Deferred tax 1s calculated using the rate substantively enacted at the Statement of Financial Position date. Deferred tax
assets are not recognised where thare 1s a high degree of uncertainty as to their future utinsation

@) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are measurcd at cost less accumulated depreciation, Depreciation of residential fixtures
and fittings, retail assets, and cffice fixtures and equipmenrt 1s charged at 25% per arnum on a straight-line basis. Plant and
machinery 1s depreciated between 10% and 25% on cost per annum, dependent on the asset's usefu! life. The carrying values
of tangble fixed assets are reviewed for imparrment If avents or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may ke
greater than its value in use

h) Cash

Cash and cash eguivalents in the Statement of Financial Position compnse cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and cash
equivalents Includes amounts accessible by the Group, even where there are legal or contractual restrictions on thetr use.

Restricted cash is cash held by the Group in designated accounts, to which the Group has no physical access, which are held for
loan corrpliance requirements and are only accessible by the relevant lender

Cash and cash egurivaients and restricted cash have been retrospectively restated as at 1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021
following a clarfication by IFRIC on the presentation of monies that have iegal or contractual restrictions on their use but are
navaertheless physically accessible, see note 16 for further nformation.

i} Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Obligations for loans and borrowings are recogrised when the Group becomes party to the related contracts ard are measured
initially at the fair vaiue of consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs.

After iInihial recognitior, interest-bearng loans and berrowings are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method. The discount between the redeemable amount and the net proceeds 1s accreted over the term of the loan
and charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

j} Receivables

Recelvables are initially recogrised on the Statement of Financial Position at fair value when the Group has become party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments. They are subsequently carr:ied at amort:sed cost using the effective interest rate
method if the time value of money may have a sinificAnt impart an therr walue

The Group must make judgements on the recoverability of its trade and other recaivables at the reperting date and has a policy of
oroviding for impairment based oh the expected credit loss model, tising & provisions matrix, The Group assesses on a forward-looking
basis the expected credit losses associated with its trade recevables, The Group applies a simplified approach in caiculating expected
credit losses and recognises a provision for impairment for the lifetime expected credit losses on nitial recognition of the receivable. In
determining the expected credit losses the Group takes Mto account any recent payment behaviours and future expectations of likery
default events (1e. not making a payment on the due date) based or iIndividual customer circumstances, actual or expected Insclvency
fillngs or Company voluntary arrangements and market expectations and trends in the wider macro-economic environment in
which customers operate, The amourt of the pravision 1s the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the estimated
future cash flows. The movement In the provision 1 recognised In the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Trade receivables balances are writter off when the probability of recovery 1s assessed as being remote

k) Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses INterast rate derivative financial INnstruments to hedge its exposure to movements in nterest rates All classes of
derivatives are initiaily recognised at fair value, which s considered to be equal to cost on inibal acquisition, and subseduently
remeasured to their prevailing fair value at each Statement of Financial Position date Changes in the far value of derivative
firarcial instruments are recogrised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as they arise
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Notes 10 the financial statements continued

4. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

k) Derivative financial instruments continued

Dervatives are derecognised either when they are sold to a third party or the termination date 15 reached. On a sale to a third
party the price paid 15 cansidered to be the farr value at that date with any difference between the carrying value and the price
paid being taken as a change in the fair value of the derivative. On reaching termination all derivatives have a nil farr value and
su nw furlien adjuslitieny s retjdired ror derecogrition

The Group does not apply hedge accounting.

1) Borrowing costs

The Group recognises borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acguisition, construction or development of a
qualifying asset as part of the cost of that asset Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the Consclidated
Staternent of Comprehensive Income.

m) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obilgation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, If it 1s probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the abligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement 1s recognised as a separate asset, but only when the rembursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to a provision |s presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value
of money I1s material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the nsks specific to the
iability. When discounting 1s used. the increase n the provision due to the passage of time 15 recognised as a finance cost, except on
variable consideration on property acquisitions.

n) Segmental information

IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be reported in a manner consistent with internal financial reporting. The Board 1s responsible
for reviewing the Group's internal reporting n order to assess performance and allocate resources; and s the chief operating decision
maker. The Board ultimately reviews and manitors the performance of the Group by neighbourhood. ana acress the entire portfolio
on a basis consistent with the Group financial statements. Properties in East Village, Elephant Centrai, New Maker Yards Phase 1, New
Maker Yards Phase 2, Elephant and Castle Town Centre, and Newton Place are held to generate rental incorme and capital returns

and are aggregated iNnto one operating segment as all properties are, or are being developed, to be predominantly resident al assets,
sorme of which include retall comporents The offering across all sites 1s similar, the properties share similar economic characteristics,
there 1s a similar type of customer across all neighbourhoods and the regulatory environment across all neighbourhoods 1s corsistent
Conseguerty. the Board concluded there to be only one operating segmenrt.

All reverue from continuing operations Is attributable to, and all non-clrrent assets are located in, the country of domicile of the
Group, the United Kingdom. There 1s no ndividual tenant or customer of the Group that contribbutes greater than 0% of total revenue

o) Leases

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not trarsfer substantially all the rsks and rewards incidental to ownership of ar asset are classifieg
as operating leases. This inciudes residential and retall rental contracts. with renta: income being accounted for on a straight-line
basis over the iease term,

p) Other equity reserves
Shareholder funding recesved by the Group 15 repayable oniy upon iquidation of Get Living PLC and s therefore classified as equity.

q) Key Management remuneration

The Group has a cash settled long-term incentive scheme for certain Executives. The awards have a three year grant period and are
anked to the long-term performance of the busiress. At the end of each financial year, the estimated total payout under the scheme
s calculated and 1s charged to the income statermnent as an employee expense aver the grant period. This 1s subsacuentty aniisren
at each financial year end based on the performance of the business.

The Group has a co-Investrment scheme for certair Executives and this 1s accounted for as a cash settled share-based payment
scheme. Tre grant fair value of the share-based payment awards I1s recognised as an employee expense at the date of grant. Any
cash praceeds recaived are credited to share capital and share prermium,

5. Fair value hierarchy
IFRS 13 sets out a three-tier hierarchy for financial assets and llabilities valued at fair value. These are as follows:

+ level 1fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or habiltias,

» level 2 fair value meaasurements are those denved from inputs other than guoted prices included withir level 1 that are
observable for the asset or hability, either directly (1 e as prices) or indirectly (Le derved from prices), and

¢ level 3 fair value measurements are those derivea from valuation techmigues that include inputs for the asset or liability
that are not based on observable market data (urobservable inputs)
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5. Fair value hierarchy continued

Derivatives

The fair value of the swaps and caps entered into in reiation to ioan balances is derived from the present value of future cash
flows discounted at rates obtained by means of the current yield curve appropriate for those instruments. As all significant
INpUts required to value the swaps and caps are observable, they alt fall within level 2 Information in respect of the fair value of
financial snstrurnenls 2 ingcluded 10 notes 21 and 2.5

Investment property

The fair value of Investment property falls within level 3. The investrment property vatuation 1s a third party valuation, which s
based on a discounted cash flow model 1n accordance with RICS Valuation Standards, Sixth Edition in the United K.ngdom, and
ncludes a number of unobservable INputs and other valuation assumptions, Further details of these assumptiors and significant
uncbservable Inputs are Included sn note 12

Loans and borrowings

The fair value of loans and borrowings falls within level 3 Loans are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. The fair values of any floating rate financial habilities approximate their carrying values. The fair values of the fixed rate lcans
are assessed based on a discounted cashflow model using the prevailing market rate of interest, determined with reference to recent
transactions and negohiations occurnng within the Group for loans with similar terms. Information in respect of the fair value of loans
and borrowings is included 1in notes 20 and 23

6. Revenue
2022 2022
£m £m
PRS and student rental iIncome 63.5 44.7
Retatl rental income 2.9 2.9
Service charge and other related income 17.0 16.2
Total rental income B83.4 63.8
Revenue from developrmenrt contracts {note 14) 3.9 -
Trading property disposal (note 14) 5.7 -
Other iIncomea 6.2 6.9
Revenue 99.2 0.7

PRS and student rental iIncome primar'ly arises from private tenant feases under Assured Shorthold Tenancy ("AST") agreemenrts.
These ‘ease agreements range from one to three years in tenure.

PRS and student tenants make a single payment under ASTs, which covers rent and other services. The component relating to the
service charge and other services Is separated and reported as service charge and other related income. These combined make up
the totai rental .ncome the Group earns from lease arrangements.

Revenue relating to non-iease iIncome 1s recognised In the period i which the performance obligations are satisfied. There was nil
revenue recogrised from performance obhigations settied in previous penods (2021 Enil)

ASTs have 2 minimum six-month break clause on the tenant side. Student AST agreements are for the duration of the academic
year. The Group has aiso 1ssued leases for retall units, having terms up to 24 years with agreed break clauses, which are located
within the investrment properties. Break clauses are assumed to be exercised at the earliest opportunity for the caiculation of

minimum lease receivable disclosed in the beiow tabie.

There are 1y artdigertigls 1 relation t contingent rent in the year. Rental contracts include a clause to ailow the Group to seek
compensation f prermises are not left In good conditicn There are no recevabies or contingent assets recognised at 31 December 2022
or at 31 December 2021 1n relatior to this clause.

Minimum 'ease recelvable 1s analysed as follows:

2022 2021

£m Ern

Within cne year 3.1 21.4
Between one and two years 1.9 1.6
Between two and three years 1.8 16
Between three and four vears 1.7 15
Between four and five years 1.6 1.4
After more than five years 15.7 14.6
53.8 42.1
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7. Cost of sales

2022 2021
£m fm
Service charge expensa 15.5 151
Void costs 1R
Uther property costs 9.2 9.7
Direct property costs 26.5 24.8
Development costs (note 14) 8.3 —
Cost of trading property cisposals (note 14) 1.2 -
Cast of sales 36.0 Z24.8
Other property costs includes management fees of £5.7m (2021 £6.4m)
8. Operating profit/(loss)
Operating profit is stated after charging
2022 2021
£m £rm
Salaries and wages 12.0 9.0
Social security costs 1.3 1.1
=mployer's pension contrbution 0.3 0.3
Depreciation 1.7 1.1

The average number of employees in the Group during the year was 157 (2021: 140)

Directors’ remuneration

The Directors of the Parent Company are also directors of other entities contreiled by the shareholders (see note 29) that are
not part of this Group. For the current year, the Drectors recerved no remuneration, reimbursements, or pension contributions
from the Parent Cocmpany or any of .ts subsidiaries for their services as Drrectors of the Parent Company (2021 £nil)

Key management personnel
The Group corsiders all individuals that have authonty and responsibility for planning, directing, ard controtling the Group's activities,
be it direct or indirect, ta be key management personner. Key management personnel compensation s analysed as follows.

2022 2021

£m frr

Salaries and wages 1.6 1.1
Other long term incentives 0.5 0.2
Share based payments 0.1 0.1
Terminat:on payments -_ 0.1
Total compensation 2.2 15

The Company has a long-term incentive scheme for certain Executives that 1s cash settled and not linked to shares. The awards have
a three year grant penod and are irked to the long term performance of the business. The Company has a co-investmert scheme for
certain Executives and this has been accounted for as a cash settled share based payment scheme, refer to note 30 for further details

Employers persion contributions during the year were less than £0.1m.

9. Auditor remuneration

2022 2021
Servces provided by the Group's auditor- £°000 £00C
Audit fees:
Audit of Parent Company and consolbdated financial statements 556 214
Audit of subsidiary undertakings 236 468
Non-audit services:
Other assurance services 20 20
Tax adviscry services 20 63
Tax compllance services 472 327
1,304 1.092

In the current year the auditor reallocated their spht of fees between the parent entity and :ts subsidiaries.
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10. Finance costs

2022 2021
£m Em
Interest on 0ans and borrowings 43.2 319
Less: capitalised borrowing costs (note 12) 10.7) (7.2)
325 247
Amortised arrangement fees 1.7 1.8
Other finance costs 25 0.5
36.7 27.0

Tre capitahised borrowing costs relate to borrowings used to fund property development. Borrowing costs are capitalised at the

rate specific to the borrowings and are capitalised up to the point of practical completion.

11. Taxation

2022 2021
£m £m

Current tax charge 16.1 0.2
Deferred tax credit - -
Tax charge for the year 16.1 0.2
Factors affecting the tax charge for the year
Profit before taxation 152.4 58.3
Profit before taxation multiplied by mamn rate of UK corporation tax of 18% (2021: 19%) 29.0 111
Effect of:
REIT exernpt net property rental (gains) (1.1) 1.0y
Fair value adjustments 0.1 113
Capitalised borrowing costs (2.0) (1.43
Non-allowable expenses 0.6 0.8
Valuation gam on mnvestment property (25.8) (11.8
Losses not recognised €0.8) 3.3
Interest cover ratio charge 0.5 0.8
Aajustments in respect of pror periods - over-provisior (0.8) {0.5)
Adpustments in respect of prior perieds - tax settlement (see note 18) 16.4 —
Current tax charge in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 16.1 0.2

The Company :s a UK Real Estate Investmeant Trust (REIT). As a result, the Group does not pay United LKingdom corporation tax
on the profits and gains from 1ts qualfying rental business m the United Kingdom provided it meets certain conditions. Non-

quailfying profits and gains of the Greoup continue to be subject to corporation tax as normal.

The Group has unrecognised deferred tax assets at 31 December 2022 in respect of fixed assel temporary differences and tax
losses carried forward of £32.7rm (2021: £23.9m). Trese deferred tax assets have not been recognised due to the uncertainty of
future taxable profits from the non-REIT business. Deferred tax is calculated at the rate substantively enacted at the Statement

of Financiai Position date of 25% (2021 25%)

Please refer to the Taxation section within Key ,udgements in note 2 for further «nformation on tax. For gefinitions see Glossary

12. Investment property

2022 2021

£m £m

Cpening balance 2,366.2 2,001.8
Acauwsitions - New Maker Yards Phase 2 (note 24) - 119.8
Capitai expenditure 146.3 1755
Capitalised borrowing costs 10.7 7.2
Valuation gain on Investment property 136.0 61.9
Closing balance 2,659.2 2,366.2

The Group acauired the New Maker Yards Phase 2 site :n the prior year (note 24), acquiring investment property with a value

at that date of £119.8m,
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Notes 1o the financial statements continued

12. Investment property continued

Captal expenditure of £146 3m (2021 £175.5m) includes £6.0m (2021 £60.0m) with respect to the East Village site. £82.2m
(2021 £83.0m) attributable to the development of Newton Place, and £56.4m (2021: £22.5m) attnibutable to the development
of Elephant ana Castle Town Centre, with the remamning capital expenditure relating to operational properties.

The fair vatues of the investment property held by the Group were undertaken in accorgance with the latest RICS valuatior
standards in the United Kingdam by CBRE Limited, whu are gualified for the purpose of the valuat:on \n accordance with
the RICS valuation standard The fee arrangement with CBRE for the vaiuation of the Group's properties is fixed, subject
to arn adjustment for acquisitions and disposals

This valuatior comprises residential units of £2,187 4m (2021 £2.0211m), properties in the course of development of £435.7m
(2021 £3075m) and retail units of £36.1m (202" £376m)

The properties in the portfalic were valued on either an iIncome capitalisation or a residual value appraisal approach

The key uncbservable inputs into the residential and commercial valuation are as follows:

2022 2021

Estimated rental Estimated renta
values (£ per 2022 values (£ per 2021
Asset square foot) Discount rate (%) sguare ooty Discount rate (%)
Clympic Homes, East village - residential 37.91 3.50 31.80 3.00
Olympic Homes, East Village - commercal 20.00-25.00 9.00-8.25 15.00-25.0C 8.00-8.25
Victory Plaza, East Village - residential 38.66 3.50 32.80 3.10
Victory Plaza, east Village - commercial 11.10-38.01 5.75-9.00 10.50-38.00 6.50-8.25
FPortlands Place, East village - residential 43.37 3.50 33.85 3.2
Portiands Place, East village - commercial 16.00-20.00 8.00 20.00 7.00
Elephart Central - residential 49.67 3.50 39.70 3.15
Elephant Central - commercia: 15.00-45.00 5.50-9.00 15.00-45.00 5.00-8.00
New Maker Yards Phase 1 -~ residential 23.77 4.25 21.59 415
New Maker Yards Phase 1 - commercial 13.50-47.22 6.50-8.50 13.50-15.00 5.75-9.00
New Maker Yards Phase 2 - residential 24.39 4.30 21.73 4.15

The key unobservable inputs INto the development valuation are average construction costs of £255 per sg ft (2021, ranaing from
E245 to £295).

Sensitivity to key unobservable inputs

Tre effect of Increasing and decreasing both the discount rate and the estimated rental value on the valuation of investment
properties I1s shown ik the following tabie

2022 2021
Change nunchservabe nput £m £m
An increase In the discount rate of 50 basis points (282.2) (294.7)
A decrease in the discount rate of 50 basis points 3740 406.6
An increase in the estirmated rental value of 10% 216.8 210.9
A decrease ir the estimated rental value of 10% {217.1) (211.1)

Where estimates have been used, an -ncrease/decrease in the value of fire safety remediation work costs deducted from
the farr value of Investment property as a cost to compiete of 10% would cause a corresponding decrease/increase of £11m
{2021: £1.3m) to the valuation of investment properties

13. Property, plant and equipment

Residential “xtares Office fixtures Pianr and

and ttings Retail assets  and equipment machinery Total
£m Em £rmn £mn £

Cost
At 1 January 2021 2.6 3.0 1.6 0.8 8.0
Additions 0.1 — 1.9 — 2.0
At 31 December 2021 2.7 3.0 3.5 0.8 10.0
Additions 0.6 - 0.4 0.3 13
At 31 December 2022 33 3.0 3.9 11 11.3
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13. Property, plant and equipment continued

Res'dential fixtures Office fixtures Plapt and
and “tT ngs Retar assets and equiprrent machinery Tota
Em £rm Em £m £m
Depreciation
At 1 January 2021 1.7 2.8 1.0 0.6 6.1
Deurevidliun charge tar the year 0.4 0.1 06 — 11
At 31 December 2021 2.1 2.9 1.6 0.6 7.2
Depreciation charge for the year 0.4 0.1 1.0 0.2 1.7
At 31 December 2022 25 3.0 2.6 0.8 8.9
Net book value
Balance at 31 December 2022 0.8 - 1.3 0.3 2.4
Balance at 31 December 2021 0.6 0.1 1.9 0.2 2.8
14. Trading property
2022 202
£m £m
Opering balance 35.6 30.5
Capital expenditure 34.2 5.1
Disposal during the year (1.2) —
Closing balance 68.6 35.6

The Group's trading property balance :ncludes £610m (2027 £35 6m) being a new academic bullding that s to be soid to the
University of the Arts London as part of the Elephant and Castle Town Centre Develcpment; £7.6m (2021, £nil) being a station
box that 1s to be sold to London Underground Lirmited once completed; £nil (2021 £nil) of affordable housing at East Village
that was disposed of during the vear.

Durng the year the Group disposed of affordable housing trading property at East Village to a third party. Consideration receved
for the disposal was £5.7m and the trading property had a value at the date of disposal of £1.2m, generating a profit on disposal
of €4.5m. The profit on disposal has been recharged to the premium assets for which the affordable Fousing has been created as
part of the wider geveloprment and for which excess costs have previously been recharged. The Group continued to develop the
property for the third party after the sale. separately recognising revenue of £3.9m and cost of sales of £8.3rm (see notes & and 7).

15. Trade and other receivables

2022 2022
£m £m
Non-current receivables
Other recevables 5.8 10.5
5.8 10.5
Current receivables
Trade receivables 51 2.7
Expected credit loss provisien (1.5) (1.3
3.6 1.4
Other receivables 123.1 89.2
Prepayments 12.7 215
Accrued income 0.7 —
Qther taxes - VAT 2.2 3.7
142.3 115.8

Non-current other receivables

Non-current other recervables inciudes £3.2m as an advanced payment o the developer for the Elephant and Castle Town Centre
development (2021 £10.0m) that i1s expected to be settled in 2024 The balance also includes £1.6m with respect to costs paid in
advance for land to be owned \n a future period (2021 £niD)

Annual Report 2022
a3



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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15. Trade and other receivables continued
Trade receivables
Trade and other receivables are non-interest bearing.

Trade recervables are lease receivabies due from tenants The expected credit loss provision was caiculated using the
provisions matrix in hne with the expected credit loss modetl The assessed credit risk has not sigrnificartly changead
hetween years.

Included within trade receivables 1s £0.9m (2021 £0.6m) of contract assets In relation to service charge income and £0 5m
(2021 Enil) of contract assets in refation to revenue from development contracts. All contract asset amounts are realisable
within one year

Current other receivables
Current other receivables includes £11.5m (2021 Non-current other receivable of £10 Om) as an advanced payment

to the developer for the Elephant and Castle Town Centre development that will be repaid 1n 2023,

Current other receivables due within one year includes a balance of £85 2m being sharehclder eguity that has not been
settled in cash. whereby the shareholders have committed equity to guarantee the performance of the New Maker Yards
Phase 2 group companies of payment obhigations under both a building agreement and a facility agreement to the surm
of this amount. Following practical completion of New Maker Yards Phase 2, the third party guarantees have significantly
reduced and will be fully unwound during the 2023 year (note 32).

There 1s a balance of £0.9m {2021: £0.9m) within other recevables relating ro retention monies heid in escrow In respect
of New Maker Yards, for which there I1s a corresponding payable in trade and other payables (note 17).

There Is a balance of £14 3m (2021: £nil} nciuded within other recevables being amounts expected to be recovered from nor-
sontrolling interests to offset the fire safety provision recognised (see note 18)

Recoverability of other recavables has been assessed using the expected credit loss model. The impairment of the other receivables is
imrraterial The assessed credit risk has not significantly cranged between years

Prepayments
Prepayments includes £6 9m of prepard {can arrangement fees (2021 £12.1m).

The prior year prepayments balance includes £4.8m in respect of prepaid development feas for the Elephant and Castle Town
Centre Development, which form part of iInvestment property capital expenditure ir the current year

Credit risk
The maximum exposure to creait risk at the reporting date 1s the carrying value of trade receivables pius other receivables

16. Cash
(As restated™)
2022 2021
£m £m
Cash and cash equivalents
Lnrestricted cash at bark 53.4 67.2
Cash restricted under iegal or contractual terms:
-— Sinking fund 8.9 10.8
- Loan requirements 4.0 4.0
— Tenant deposits 0.2 3.0
G6.9 8.1
Restricted cash
Restricted cash - loan requirements 135 15.9
13.5 15.9

Cash and cash eguivalents represents amounts physicalty accessible by the Group as at the Statemert of Financial Position date.
Within cash and cash equivalents are £13.7m {2027 £179m) of amounts that the Group considers to be restncted under legal or

Contractual terms.

The sinking fund consists of amounts held by estate maragement companies within the Group with receipts into the fund
coming from the Group and Triathlon Homeas LLP. The fund 1s .ntended for future major repair works that will be required on
the properties ir East Village {see note 17).

Loar reguirerments consist of funds held In designated bark accounts to ensure the Group meets specific loan reguirements. Whera
the Group 1S able to physically access manies they are included within cash and cash eguivalents, where the Group 's unable to
physically access monies they are included within restricted cash
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16. Cash continued
Tenant deposits consist of amounts paid by tenants of the properties where security deposits are reguired under the respective
tenancy agreement

* Restatement
Cash and casn equivalents and restricted cash nave beer retrospectively restated as at 3t Decamber 2021 following & clarification by IFRIC on the presentat:on of manwes
that have legal or conrtractual restnictions on tneir use but are physically acreszible As g razult of Hns ow sinking rund, a Lo un of cash heid For 10an requirements,
and terimnd leposils nave beer reclassilied rom restricted cash to casn and casr equivalents The total value of the reclassification as at 31 Decemper 2021 s £179m.

The totai value of the reclassification in the Group Statemnenrt of Financral Positior as at 31 December 202115 £17.9m whicn increased the casn and cash eguivalent
frome £67 2m to £85.]m and decreased the restricted cash from £33 8m to £15.9m wWithin the Group cash flow staterment for the year ended 31 Becember 2021, tris
raclassificatior also resulted in £11m Increase v met casn outflow from investing activities from £146.8m to £1479m and a decrease in the overall net movernent in cash
and casn equivalent from £40 3 ta £33 2m As at 1 January 2027, the total value of the reclassification 13 £79 0m wnich increased the cash and cash equivalent from
£26.9m to £45.9rm ard decreased the restricted cash from £22.7m to £13 7m

This prior year restatement did not have an impact on the reported net assets, net current assets or net profit.

17. Trade and other payables

2022 2021

£m £rr

Trade pavyables 2.7 4.0
Deferred income 29.1 14.1
Accruals 36.9 41.5
Other payables 15.7 32.0
Cther payables - DCMS settlement - 28.7
Other payables - Sinking fund 3.3 —
Other payables - Development retentions 55 5.7
93.2 126.0

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled in accordance with the Group's terms of business.

Deferred income

Deferred income includes £3.4m (2021 Enil) in relation to amowunts received from London Underground Limited to fund the
deveiopment of work at the Elephant and Castie Town Centre development. Deferred iIncome mncludes £4.8m (2021 £3.3m)
of contract liabilities in relation to service charge ircome. All contract hability amourts are to be settled within one year.
The remamirg deferred income balance of £20.9m reiates to rental iIncome

Accruals

Within the accruals baiance of £36.9m (2021 £41.5m3 15 a development cost accruat of £11.9m (2021 £17.4m) 1in relation te the Group's
ongoing developments of new property and £0.4m (2027 £nil) of contract habities in relation to costs from development contracts.
The pnor year accruals balance included £9 8m in relatior to the .nception of third party debt financing for Elephant ard Castie

Town Centrg,

Other payables

Within the other payables balance of £15.7m (2021 £320m) 1s £mil for amounts due to the developer for the Elephant and
Castle Town Centre development (2021 £10.0m), £6 Om in respect of accrued bank loan interest (2021 £6 Om), and £nil relating
to excess development costs (2021 £9.0m)

Other payables - DCMS settlement

A settlemant deed was signed n January 2020 between the Group and the Secretary of State for Digital, Culture, Media ard
Sport (DCMS, previously the Olympic Delivery Authority) in relation to the 201 sale and purchase agreement for SVRP Limitad
The deed states that the Groun mist pay 8 tatal agreed swa ol £29.0m1, With £U 3m payable on the date of the deed and the
remainder payable in March 2022 The DCMS settlement payabie at 31 December 2027 represents the £28 7m amount payabie
on 31 March 2022, ciscounted at the government risk-free pre-tax rate, which 1s based on the three-year GBP government bond
rate, and adjusted for risks specific to the hability. The balance was fully settled in March 2022

Other payablas - Sinking fund

The sinking fund s held by the subsiaiary, East Viliage Management Limited, to provide funds to meet the costs of future major
repalrs, replacements and scheduled works. The balance represents the contribution made to the sinking fund by Triathion
Homes LB which holds a non-contralling nterest In East Village Management Limited. Management have reviewed the hkely
urming of future expenditure and consider it appropriate to classify the sinking fund as a current liability as at 31 December 2022
(2021 Non-current Yability, refer to note 19). The funds are heid in a separate bank account as disclosed :n note 16
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Notes 10 the financial statements continued

17. Trade and other payables continued

Other payables - Development retentions

The development retention habilities are due to the contractor of the development property n relatior to works done during
the construct:on perniod, and are iable to be settled as 50% upor practical completion and 50% two years following practical
completion (see note 19) Development retentions as at the year end date are summarised as follows.

As at 31 December 2022

Within one year Maore than ane Total due
Asser {Em) year (£m) {Em) Tranche 1 due Tranche 2 due
Portlands Place - 2.7 2.7 Settled February 2024
Piot NO5, East Village 0.3 0.3 0.6 February 2023 February 2025
New Maker Yards Phase 1 0.5 - 0.9 Settled Due
New Maker Yards Phase 2 1.3 - 1.3 Settled November 2023
Newton Place 2.7 2.7 5.4 October 2023 October 2025
Elephant and Castle Town Centre 0.3 2.2 2.5 Several* Several*
Total 5.5 7.9 134

The Elephant and Castle Towr Certre retertion hakility has multiple sub tranches witn settlerment dates dependert or sectional practical completion.
As at 31 December 2021

With n one year More than one

Asset (Em) year (Em)  Total due (Em) Tranche 1 due Tranche 2 due

Portlands Place 2.8 2.7 5.5 February 2022 February 2024

Plot NO5, East Viliage - — — February 2023 February 2025

Elephart Central 2.0 — 2.0 Settled March 2022

New Maker Yards Phase 1 0.9 — 0.9 Settled Due

New Maker Yards Phase 2 - 1.3 1.3 Serttled November 2023

Newrton Place — 3.2 3.2 Qctober 2023 October 2025

Elephart and Cast'e Town Centre — 0.5 0.5 Several* Several*
Total 5.7 7.7 13.4

“ne S'ephart ard Castle 1own Centre retention laoiity has multiple sub trancnes with settlemert dates dependent on sectional oractical completion

18. Provisions

2022 2021

£m £m

Provisions - Fire safety remeaiation works 14.3 —
Provisions - Tax enguiry settlement 18.7 —
33.0 —

The fire safety remeagiation works provision of £14 3m (2021 £n1i) represents work to be undertaken by East Village Management
urmited ("EVML”) on behalf of non-controlling interests for the purposes of fire safety remediation works at East Village
neighbourhood properties not owned by the Group, A receivabie of equal value has been recognised, beina amounts expertert fo
e revuvened fronrr non-contrsiing itterests to ofset the fire safety provision recognised (soe nate 15). The vaiue of the provision
has been determined with reference to contracts entered into subsequent to the year end

There were No amounts spent durng the year in relation to the provision (2021 £ntl). Cash outflows in relation to the provision are
expected to occur primarly in the 2023 year.

Subseguent to the year end the Group made a payrment of £18.9 miilion to HMRC as part of an agreement signed n March 2023 to settle
an ongoing tax enquiry The settlement of this balance confirms that the Group had a present obligatior: at the erd of the report:ng perioc
and therefore the Group has recognised a provision for £18.7rm, which includes the tax settlement of £16.4m and nterest accrued on this
balance to 31 Decernber 2022 of £23m. The £18 2 million paid included £0.2m of interest accrued in the penod after 31 December 2022

19. Long-term other payables

2022 2021

£m £rm

Other payabies - Davelopmert retentions (see note 173 7.9 7.7
Sinking fund (see note 173 - 4.5
7.9 12.2
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20. Loans and borrowings

2022 2073
£m £rm
Current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 270.0 0.0
Deferred loan arrangernent fees -— (0.2
270.0 978
Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 1,082.9 1,079.4
Deferred ioan arrangernent fees (10.6) (12.1)
1,072.3 1,067.3

Drawn down

Drawn down

Fachty armit at 2022 at 2021

Secured asset Date entered nto Matunty {Em) (Em) (Em)
Elephant Central August 2018 July 2034 190.G 190.0 130.0
East Village September 2019 September 2029 550.0 550.0 550.0
East Village November 2019 August 2034 187.0 187.0 187.0
East Village March 2015 September 2023 99.9 98.6 S0.1
East Village January 2016 September 2023 67.5 64.4 62.3
New Maker Yards Phase 1 March 20138 March 2023 32.6 32.6 32.6
New Maker Yards Phase 2 March 2018 March 2023 68.2 64.8 65.4
Newton Place February 2021 April 2026 160.0 76.3 -
Elephart and Castle Town Centre December 2021 Apnl 2027 365.0 79.6 -
N/AY January 2022 On demand 9.6 9.6 -
1,729.8 1,352.9 1,177.4

uring tne year 3 loan of F3.6m was receivea fraom T3 Residential Limited, an entity under comman control Tne loan s renayanle on dermand and 1s rot secured agairst
ary of the Group's assets The loan represents the advancemenrt of a government grant that was awarded to T3 Residential L-mited to rep fund the development of
affardable housing at the Elegnanrt ard Castle Town Certre Development

During the year the Group extended the matunty date of both the New Maker Yards Phase 1 and New Maker Yards Phase 2 lears
o March 2023, In Febryary 2023 the Group exercised an option to further extend the New Maker Yards Phase 1 and New Maker
Yards Phase 2 loans matunty dates to March 2024

The New Maker Yards Phase 2 loan faciity agreement includes a further one-year extension options to March 2025, The Elephanrt
and Castle Town Centre |can facility agreement includes a one-year extension option to April 2028

21. Derivative financial instruments

The movement in the fair value of the derivative financial iInstruments is as follows

2022 2021
£m fm

Non-current assets
Non-current assets 31.7 2.3
Current assets 0.5 —
Current liabilities - {0.3)
Non-current hiabilities — (0.6)
Net derivatives valuation 322 1.4
Net derivatives valuation
Opening balance 1.4 (2.7
Acquisitions - New Maker Yards Phase 2 {see note 24) - (1.7
Purchase of dervatives 6.2 —
Disposal of derivatives {1.0) -
Change in fair value of derivatives 25.6 5.8
Closing balance 32.2 1.4
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21. Derivative financial instruments continued
The Group holds a number of swap arrangement to hedge floating rate interest payable on several of its loans.

Noliana amount (Em) Fffective date Term.nation date Fixed rate
35.6 13 March 2019 13 March 2024 1.2%
715 1% March 2019 15 tuldrety 2024 1.5%
32.3 25 February 2022 25 April 2026 0.8%
32.3 25 February 2022 25 April 2026 0.8%
The Group also holds the following interest rate caps

Notional amount (Em) Effective date Termination date Cap rate
65.8 1 March 2022 21 July 2026 1.5%
161.0 13 Cctober 2022 30 September 2023 4.0%

Notienal amounts are stated as at 31 December 2022, All of the financial derivatives included in the above table were valued by
an external consultant using a discounted cash flow model and market information, the primary level 2 input being interest rate
curves. The Group does not apply hedge accounting so movernents in fair value are taken directly to the Group's Statement of

Comprehensive INnCome.

22. Liabilities - reconciliation of cash and non-cash movements

Cash flows Non-cash flows
Change
from
iong-term
Interest  Derivative Derival ve to  Farr value Amortisaton Interest
2021 Drawdown oald purchases  disposals  short-term changes of loan fees  charged* 2022
£m Fm £m £rr Emr Em £rm £m £m £m
Short-term liabilities
—oans and borrowthgs 98.0 151 — — — 152.4 — — 4.5 270.0
Loan arrangement fees 0.2 — — — (0.3 — 0.5 — —_
Accrued loan interest** 6.0 - (28.2) - — — — - 28.1 5.9
103.8 15.1 (28.2) — — 1521 — 0.5 326 275.9
Long-term liabilities
Loans and borrowings  1,079.4 145.3 — — - (152.4) - — 106 1,082.9
Loan arrangement fees (12.1) — — — — 0.3 — 1.2 — (10.6)
1.067.3 145.3 - — — (152.1> - 1.2 10.6 1,072.3
Daerivatives used to
hedge borrowings
Derivative financal
instruments (1.4) — — (6.2) 1.0 — (25.6) — — (32.2)
Total liabilities from
finencing aclivilles 1.169.7 150.4 L2d.) {b.2) 10 — (25.6) 1.7 43.2 1,316.0

.nterest cnarged ncludes aor-Ltiisation fees ard 15 net of accrued interest of £4 3m wrich 1s ~ot capitalised ar the lean calarce out 1s included n otrer payaoles (see note 173

** Accrued loan interest relates to irterest on both wong-term liaoilities and srort-term habihtes
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22. Liabilities - reconciliation of cash and non-cash movements continued

Cashk “lows Non-cash flows
Loan and  Interest Balances Fair vaiue Accrued Amortisat on Interest
2020 Drawdown hedge fees pad acquired* changes  lcan fees  of 'oan fees charged® 2021
£m £m £m £Em £m Em fm £ £m £rm
Short-term liabilities
Loans and borrowmngs 32.6 4.5 — — 60.9 — — - - 38.0
Loan arrangement fees (0.1) — - — (0.2) — - 0.1 — {0.2>
Accrued loan interest™ 4.3 — — (24.5) — - — — 26.2 6.0
36.8 4.5 — (24.5) 60.7 — - 01 26.2 103.8
Long-term liabilities
Loans and borrowings 1,02%.4 47.1 — — - — — — 29 1,079.4
Loan arrangement fees (13.8) — — - — - — 1.7 — (12.1>
1,015.6 47.1 — — - — - 1.7 — 1,067.3
Derivatives used to
hadge borrowings
Derivative financial
instruments 2.7 - - — 1.7 (5.8) — - — (1.4}
Total liabilities from
financing activities 1,055.1 51.6 — (24.5) 62.4 (5.8} — 1.8 291  1,1697

nterest charged includes ror-ytilisatior fees ard s net of accrued interest of £6 Orm which 15 not capitalised an the loan palarce but 1s Ircluded » other sayabies (see rote 17)

** Accrued lnan interest relates 1o interest on both long-term fiailities ard short-term iabilities.

T During thae 2021 year the group acquired New Maker Yards Phase 2 and resultartly became party to its loar obligations {see note 24}

23. Risks and financial instruments

The Group's key financial rsks arising from 1ts operat'ng activities and its financial instruments are

* credrt risk,
* hguidity risk, and

= market risk Grciuding interest rate risk and currency risk).

The Directors have overail responsibiiity for the establishmert ard oversight of the risk managemenrt framework

Categories of financial instrumerts:

2022
Carrying value Fair value
£m £m
Financial assets
At falr value through profit or loss:
Dervative finarcial instruments Cevel 2) 32.2 32.2
Financial liabilities
At amortised cost:
Loans and borrowings - fixed rate {level 3) 926.0 779.9
Loans and borrowings - floating rate (level 3) 416.3 416.3
2021
Carrying vaiue Far value
Em £rm

Financial assets
At fair value through profit or loss:
Dervative financial irstruments (level 2) 2.3 2.3
Financial liabilities
AL amortised cost:
l.oans and borrowings - fixed rate {level 3) 915.1 960.2
Loans and barrowings - float:ng rate (level 33 250.0 250.0
At fair vaiue through profit or loss:
Derivat.ve financial ‘nstruments (evel 2) 0.9 0.9
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23. Risks and financial instruments continued

Management assessed that the fair values of cash and cash eguivalents, financial assets included in trade and other recevables
and financia habhties included In trade and other payabies (all at amortised cost) approximate thar carrying amounts largely due
to the short-term maturities of these instrumenrts The difference between the fair value and the carrying amount of non-current
trade and other receivables and long-term other payables 1s mmaterial The fair values of the fixed rate loans and borrowings have
been calculated based on a discounted cashflow model using the prevalling market rate of interest, deterrmined with reference
to recent transactions and negotiations cccurring within the Group for loans with similar terms

Fimanciai instrurments that are measured subsequent to iInitial recognition at fair value are disclosed as levels 1to 3 based or the
degree to which the fair value 1s observable (see note 5)

Credit risk

The Group services the private rental property sector as it rents its investment groperties to third party private residents. The PRS
industry 1s highiy competitive and relies on payment of financial obligations by private indrviduals, whose economic circumstances
can &lter from time te tme. If a tenant experiences financial difficulties this may result in arrears which, ulimately, are pursued
through a legal process which can end In repossession of the property. The Group mitigates this risk by conducting comprehensive
credit checks. Currently, for those tenants that do not pass credit checks, the Group requires receipt of a deposit pnar to tenancy
commencement and will INnsist on guaranters as required. The effectiveness of the Group's policy in this regard 1s evidenced by the
Group's consistently high collection rates of 97% (2021, 97%).

The Group considers the credit worthiness of counterparties holding balances that are included within other receivables,
epsuring that amounts are not advanced unless full recoveraniity 1s anticipated

The credit risk on hquid funds is imited because the sigmficant counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international creait-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet ts financial obligations as they fall due. The Group aims to mitigate
lguidity risk by mairtaining adeguate reserves. banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows and matching the matunty prefiles of financial assets and liabilities. For detalls of the Group's availabre delbt
faciities, including undrawn amounts, see note 20

The following table represents the contractual undiscounted cash flow

Carrying Contractual Less than One to Two to Over flve

amount cash flow one year two years five years years

2022 £m Em £m £m Em £m
Trade and otrer payabies 72.0 72.0 64.1 2.7 4.1 1.1
Loans and borrowings 1,342.3 1,558.3 291.1 233 225.7 1,018.2
Total 1,414.3 1,630.3 355.2 26.0 229.8 1,019.3
Carrying Contractual Less than Cne to Two to Gver five

amount cash flow one year TWO years five years vears

2021 £m £m £rn £m £m £m
Trade and other payables 1225 1225 110.3 2.8 8.8 0.5
_oans and borrowings?® 1.166.7 1,451.5 122.0 182.0 79.6 1.067.9
Derivative financial instruments 0.9 0.9 G.3 0.6 — -
Total 1,290.1 1.574.9 232.6 185.5 88.4 1,068.4

*  Included witmin loans and borrowings s a carrying amourt of £1.6m which s classified as trade ard other nayables on the Statement of Finarcial Position at 31 December 2021
This palance relates to accrued snterast ard non-utilisation faas on loar facilities nat yet Jtéised and the contractual cashflows are also shown iIr tne loans and corrowings
lire of the above ~ote.

Market risk

Market risk s the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, will affect the Group's ncome or the value of its

nvestment properties and holdirgs of financial instrumerts The objective of market risk management 1s to manage and

control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return

currency risk
The Group has no s.gnificant assets or Hiabilities denorminated n currencies other than Pounds Sterling and was therefore not
exposad to currency risk at the Statement of Financiar Position date

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest-tearing financial assets ard hakilities expose it to risks associated with the effect of fluctuations in the
prevalling ievels of market nterest rates on its financial position and cash flows The rong-term other payables are not subject
to interest rate risk as they do not bear interest
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23. Risks and financial instruments continued

Interest rate risk continued

The interast rate profile of the Group's Fnancial assets and habhities,

as at 31 December 2022 was:

excluding short-term payabies and recevables,

Total carrying
value (before
unamortised

Fixed rate Floating rate loan {ssue
items items costs)
2022 £fm £m £&m
Financial assets
Cash at bank - 66.5 865
Maonies held in restricted accounts ard deposits - 135 13.5
Total - 80.0 80.0
Financial liabilities
Laans and borrowings (before the effect of the
derivative and excluding accrued Interest) 936.6 416.3 1,352.9
{As restated®)
Total carrying
value {(bafore
Jdnamaortised
Fixed rate Floating rate loan issae
items items (el d 3]
2021 £m £m £m
Financial assets
Cash at bank — 85.1* 85.1°
Restricted cash — 15.9* 15.9*
Total — 101.0 101.0
Financiatl liabilities
Loans and borrowings (befora the effect of the
927.0 250.4 1,177.4

dervative and excluding accrued interast)

* Cash and cash equivalents and restricrad cash nave beer retrospectively restated as at 31 Decemper 2021 following a clanfication by IFR'C on the presentation of
rnomies that nave legal or contractual restrictions on their Lse but are physically accessible, see rote 16 for furtner -nformatior

The Group makes use of derivative financial Instruments where possible to minimise the Group's overall exposure to

Interest rates

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

The Group has derivative arrangements in place to fix the interest rate on the majority of its variable rate loans with high
hedge efficiency Therefore the Group's loans and borrowirgs as at 31 December 2022 are not subject to significant changes
N Intergst rate moverments. MHowever, the interest rate derivatives are subject to movements in floatunrg interest rates based or
SONIA (see note 2). The impact on the fair value of the derivative financial instruments if interest rates increase/decrease by
50 basis points would be an increase/decrease i the gain or derivative financial instruments of £4.6m (2021 £3.5m).

Fair value measurements

I he tollowing table preserts the Group's assets and habilities that are measured at fair value.

Total galn/
2022 Assets Liabilitles {losses)
Recurring fair value measurements £m £m £m
Level 2
Derivative financial instruments 32.2 - 25.6
2021 Assels L.abiit'es Tota losses
Recurring “air vaue measurerrents £m £ £
Level 2
Derivative financial iInstruments 2.3 (0.9 5.8
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24, Asset acquisition between entities under common control

On 15 September 2027, the Group acquired the entire share capital of Get Living Group {(Middlewood Locks) Phase 2 Topco
Limited (MWL 2 TopCe'), collectively known as New Maker Yards Phase 2, from Middlewood Locks LLP (MWL LLP") for a total
consideration of £142 3m.

Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) Phase 2 Topco Limited 1s 3 private limited company reqgistered In the Bnfish Virgin Isiands.
Mirddiewood Locks LLM and its subsidiaries are entities jointly controlled ultimately by the same shareholders (note 29)

The acguisition was for the New Maker Yards Phase 2 site in Salford, Manchester with a view to completing the development of
this property as a residential scheme, alongs:de the Group’s existing New Maker Yards Phase 1 property.

The acquisition was not treated as an acquisition of a business as the acquired group held one property asset with neghgible
operations. As such, the transaction was treated as an asset acguisition between entities under common control and the
wdentifiable assets and habihities of the acquired group were recorded at their fair vaiues on the acquisition date.

£Em
Fair value of net assets acquired:
Investrnent property 119.8
Trade and other recetvables 852
Cash and cash equivalents 129
Loan net of arrangement fees (60.7)
Trade and Gther payables (13.23
Derivative financial instruments (1.7
Net assets acquired 142.3

Mo cash was transferred In consideration for this transaction as It was funded through Shareholder funding of £142.3m (note 25)

25. Other equity reserves

2022 2021

£m £m

Cpening balance 541.3 239.4
Equity contribution for asset acquisition {note 24) — 142.3
Other egurty contribution 48.0 159.6
Closing balance 589.3 541.3

During the year there was a cash equity contribution from shareholders in the ordinary course of business of £48.0m
(2021, £159 6m). Stareholder funding is interest free ard repayable only wpcn liquidation of Get Living PLC. In the prior year
there was also a non-cash contribution of €142.3m 1n respect of the acguisition of New Maker Yards Phase 2 (see note 24).

26. Retained earnings
The retained earnings reserve represents cumulative profits, including unreal-sed profit on the remeasurement of investment
propertes and investrnent properties under construction.
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27. Share capital and other reserves

Ordinary shares Share
Number of of £1 each premium
ordinary shares £rm £m
Allotted, called up share capital:
At 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2077 1,000,000 1.0 -

Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to cne vote per share. The Company Is suthorised to 1ssue unlimited shares.

For the purpose of the Group's capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves attrbutable to the
equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to maximise shareholder value. There are
no debt covenants that place any restriction over capital

Distributable reserves

The distributable reserve was created in 2018 by transferring share premium of £950 7m to distnbutable reserves through a capital
reduction During the year, a total dividend of £nil (2021: £nil) has been paid to shareholders from the distributable reserve.

Amounts avallable for distribution consist of the Company's realised profits within retained earnings and the distnbutable reserve
(see note 12 to the Company's firancial staterments).

Consolidation reserve

In Novernber 2018, the Group was formed through a reorgarmsatien :n which the Company became a new parent entity of the Group.
The Group financial statements were prepared using the poaling of interests method, with the differernce in share capital and reserves
resulting from the use of the pooling of interests method of £10.8m being recorded as an adjustment to the consolidation reserve

it the penod ended 31 March 2019.

28. Non-controlling interests
The non-controlling interest relates to the estate management cornpany for East Village, EVML The non-controlling interest
represents the urits operated by Triathlon Homes LLP - shared ownership and social housing.

The cumulative non-controlling interest of EVML. at 31 December 2022 was £01m (2021 £0.1m)

The non-contralling Interest reserve represents corresponding cumulat:ve profits from EVML's company operations

29. Controiling parties
At 31 December 2022, Get Living PLC was jointly controlled as follows.

() by DOCR. SLP, a imited partnershp registered and incorporated in Jersey,
1y by QD UK Holdings LP, a rmited partnership registered and incorporated .0 Scotland; and
) by Stichtimg Depositary ARG Strategic Real Estate Poal, a pension fund asset manager based in the Netherands.

Subseguent to the year end QD UK Holdings LP, one of the Group's controlling parties, exchanged on a transaction to dispose
of its entire shareholding in Get Living PLC to Aware Super, an Australian superannuation fund

30. Related party disclosures

Transactions between the Group and Its reiated parties that are recogrised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
Statement of Financial Position are surmmarised beiow:

2022 2021
£m £m
Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
Advisory fees charged by Qatan Diar Europe LLP and expensed (0.8) -
Development advisory fees charged to ertities under commor control 0.5 —
2022 2021
£m £m
Group Statement of Financial Position
Advisory fees charged by Qatar Diar Europe LLP and capitalised to investment property 0.8 1.3
Recevable from QD UK Holdings LP 0.4 —
Development adyvisory fees recevable from entities under commaon contro! 0.5 —
Shareholder equity not settled in cash 85.2 85.2
Insurance proceeds payable to sharerolders (1.3) (1.3
Loan from T3 Resident:al Limited (9.6) —
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30. Related party disclosures cont'nued
Qatari Diar Europe LLP 15 a wholly owned subs'aiary of Qatar Diar Real Estate Investment Company which has control over
QD UK Holdings LP as a hmited partner.

Total fees of £1.6m were incurred with respect to services provided by Qatar: Diar Europe LLP in the year ended 3! Decermber 2022
(2021 £1.9m), of which £0 8m (2021 £nil) were expensed and €0 8m (2021 £1 8m) were capitalised to nvestment property
As at 31 December 2022 there were no fees payable to Qatan Diar Europe LLP (2021 £mil)

During the year the Graup incurred expenses of £0.8m (2021 £nil) on behalf of Q0 UK Holdings LP The Group recharged £0.8m
(2021 Enil) of these expenses to QD UK Holdings LP of which £0 4m (2021: £nil) remains receivable as at the Staterment of Financial
Position date

The Group recognised cther incame of £0.5m as a result of development advisory services provided to entities under common
control (2021: £nil).

There :s a balance of £85 2m included within other recevables baing shareholder equity that has not been settled in cash, whereby
the shareholders have committed equity to guarantee the due performance of the New Maker Yards Phase 2 group companies
of payment obhgations under both a building agreement and a facility agreement to the sum of this amount Following practical
completion of New Maker Yards Phase 2, the third party guarantees have significantly reduced.

The Group received INnsurance proceeds from a third party, which as at the statement of financial position date were payable to
shareholders and were therefore recognised as an other payable.

During the year a loan of £9.6m was received from T3 Residential Limited, an entity under common contrel. The loan 15 repayable
on demand and I1s not secured against any of the Group's assets, The loan represents the advancement of a government grant
that was awarded to T3 Residertial Limited to belp fund the development of affordable housing at the Elephant and Castle Town
Centre Development

Get Living operates a co-.nvestment plan for certain members of the Executive Team. The plan allows the participant to invest
ntc the Company over the term of the plan. The plan allows for a subscription for units that vest on a Iguidity event or at the
and of seven years by reference to Net Asset Value per share The amount of co-investment held on the Statement of Financial
Position as at 31 Decermber 2022 s £0.4m (2021 £€nif). The amount of the co-investment scheme expensed to the Statement of
Comprehensive income is included within saiares and wages for key management persornel, see note 8

During the year ended 21 December 2021, there was an asset acguisition betweer entities under common control which s disclosed
In note 24.

See note 37 for the iist of subsiaiary undertakings of the Company

31. Capital commitments
The Group has the following current commitmerts under its development projects.

2022 2021

£m Fro

Newton Place 721 132.8
Elephant and Castle Town Centre 440.0 505.7
New Maker Yards Phase 2 — z.2
East village 345 27.3
Total 546.6 669.0

Capltai commitments represent contractually committed development expenditure, including amounts agreed under forward
funding contracts and a commitment to purchase the existing academic buiiding owned by the University of the Arts London
for £70.5m, with the cash outflow for this purchase anticipated to be in 2024 All amounts aside from the commitment to
purchase an academic bullding are already captured in the financial statements as either a2 deduction te the far value of
nvestment property or a provision In the Statement of Financial Position,
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32. Contingent liabilities

As part of the acquisitian of New Maker Yards Phase 2 (note 24) the Group became party to guarantee agreements ralating to
financing arrangements and development contracts. initially there was a maximum aggregate hability of £85 2m payable under
these guarantees which s backed by shareholder loans to the sum of £85 2m (see note 15), Foliowing practical completion of
the New Maker Yards Phase 2 development. the total guarantee cutstanding as at 31 December 2022 15 £2.3m (2021 £5 7m).

The (Armip wag cubject 1o an uiiyuiny Lax ehguiry ab the Staterment of Financial Position date that subseguently resulted
in a future ocutfiow of economic resources, accordingly a provisior has been recognised, refer to nate 18

33. EPRA performance measurements
‘n accordance with the tatest published EPRA guidelines (EFPRA Best Practices Recommendations) the Group has presented the
appropnate measures being EPRA Net Rainstatement Value ("EPRA NRV"), EPRA Net Tanagible Assets ("EPRA NTA"), EPRA Net

Disposal Value ("EPRA NDV") and EPRA Loar to Vaiue ("EPRA LTV™)

The EPRA NRV seeks to highlight the value of net assets on a long-term basis and assumes that entities never sell assets and aimns to
represent the value required to rebuwild the entity. Assets and habilities that are not expected to crystaillise in normal crcumstances.
such as the fair value movements on derivatives, are therefore excluded. Since the aim of the metric is to also reflect what would
be needed to recreate the company through the investment markets based on 1ts current capital and iinancing structure, related
costs such as real estate transfer taxes should be Included. EPRA NRV will be the primary EFRA measure used by the Group.

The EPRA NTA calculation assumes entities buy and seil assets, with fair value movements on derivatives being excluged
It 1s the board's intention to hold all investment properties for the long term and not to sell them.

The EPRA NDV seeks to represent the full extent of habilities and resulting shareholder value 'f companry assets are sold and/
or If labilitias are not held until maturity. For this purpose, the EPRA NDV providges the reader with a scenario where financial
mstruments and certamm other 2djustments are caiculated as to the full extent of hakihties, net of any resulting tax.

2022

Em
EPRA Net Asset Value measures EPRA NRV EPRA NTA EPRA NDV
Total shareholders' equity 1,513.6 1,513.6 1,513.6
Deficit of farr vaiue of rading property over carrying value 35 3.5 3.5
Derivative firancial instruments {32.2) (32.2) -
Defct of fair value of fixed interest rate debt over carrying value - - 146.1
Real estate transfer tax 79.0 — -—
EPRA measure 1,563.9 1,484.9 1,663.2
Per share measure (£)* 1,564 1,485 1,663

The EPRA NAV per share, EPRA MRV per share, EPRA NTA ger snare and EPRA NDV oer share are calculated oy dividing the EPRA performance measure by the numbper
of ordirary shares ir issue at the end of the reporting period. being L.000,00C snares.

2021

£m
EPRA Net asset Value measures EPRA NRV EPRA NTA EPRA NDV
Total shareholders' equity 1,329.3 1,329.3 1,329.3
Derivative financial instruments (1.4} (1.4) -
Excess of fair value of fixed interest rate debt over carrying value — — (4503
Real estate transfer tgx 75.6 - -
EPRA measure** 1.403.5 1,327.9 12842
Per share measure (£)* 1,404 1,328 1.284

Tre EPRA NAY per share, EPRA NRVY Der snare, EPRA N™A per snare and EPRA NDV per snare are calculated oy diiding the ERPRA performance measure by the numroer
of ordinary sharas Ir 15508 ar the end of tne reporting peried, beirg 7,000,000 shares

* At 31 December 2021, tre fair value of trading oroperty 1s equal to the carrying vaiue
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Notes (o the financial statements continued

33. EPRA performance measurements continued
The EPRA LTV seeks to present a gearing metric that 1s comparable between entities through standardisation of calculation.

2022 2021
FPRA LTV measure £m Ern
Net debt
Include:
Loans and borrowings 1,342.3 1,185.1
Net payables -— 12.6
Exclude:
Cash and cash equivalents {66.5) (85.1)
Net debt 1,275.8 1.092.6
investment property portfolio and other eligible assets
Investment properties at fair value 2,659.2 2.3566.2
Trading property 68.6 35.6
Net receivables 13.5 —
Restricted cash 135 15.9
Total investment property portfolio and other eligible assets 2,754.8 2.417.7
EPRA LTV 46.3% 45.2%

34, Net asset value per share
Net asset value per share 1s calculated as equity attributable to owners divided by the number of ordnary shares in1ssue at the
end of the reporting period As at 31 December 2022, net asset value per share s £1,514 (2021 £1,323).

35. Earnings per share

Zarnings per share s calculated as profit after taxation attributable to equity holders of the parent of £136.3m (2021: £58.1m)
divided by the weightea number of shares In issue during the year ended 31 Decernber 2022 of 1,000,000 shares

(2021: 1,000,000 shares). Basic earrirgs per share ard diuted earrings per share armount to £136.36 (2021: £58.03)

36. Subsequent events
Subseguent to the year end QD UK Holdings P, ore of the Group's controlling part.es, exchanged or a transaction to dispose
of its entire shareholdirg in Get Living PLC to Aware Super.

Subsequent to the year end the Group made a payment of £18 9 million to HMRC as part of an agreement signed i~ March
2023 to settle an ongoing tax erguiry. The sett/ement of this balance corfirms that the Group had a present obligation at the
end of the reporting period and therefore the Group has recognised a provision for £18.7m, refer to note 18

There are no further subsequert everts that impact the Group.
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37. Subsidiaries

Country of C.ass of 2022 2021
Subtsidiaries af Get Living PLC NCorporation ratus shares neld ownersh p % ownership %
Get Living Londen EVY Holdco Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living London EV NO1 Limited UK Active Crainary 100 100
Get Living London EV NO2 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living Londor EV NO3 Limited UK Active Ordirary 100 100
Get Living London EV NG4 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living London EV NOS Limited* UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living London EV NO6 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living London EV NO7 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living London EV NO8 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100G 100
Get Living London EV N0O9 Limited UK Actve Ordirary 100 100
Get Living London EV N10 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living London BV N13 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living London EV N14 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living London EV N15 Limited UK Active Qrdinary 100 100
Get Living London EV N26 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living London EV1 Holdco Limited UK Dormant Ordirary 100 100
Get Living London EV2 Holdco Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Lwving London Limited UK Active Qrdinary 100 100
Newincco 1234 Limited UK Active Ordinary 1C00 100
QDD Athletes Village UK Limited UK Active Orchnary 100 160
QDD East village UK Limited UK Dormanrt Ordinary 100 100
QDD (Millage Plots) Hoidece Limitea UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD EVY Holdco Limited UK Dormant Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV NOT Lirmited K Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV NOZ Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD £V NO3 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV NO4 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV NQ7 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV NO9 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV N10 Limited UK Active Qrdinary 100 100
QDD EV N13 Limited UK Active Crdinary 100 160
QDD EV N14 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV N15 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDO EV N26 Limited [WEY Active Ordirary 106 160
QDD EV NOS Holdco 1 Limuted UK Dormant Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV NOE Moloce 2 Lirmited UK Dormant Ordinary 100 100
QDD EYV NO5 Limited UK Active Qrdinary 100 1a¢
QDD BV NO6 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QLD EV NO6 (892) Limited U Dormant Oradinary 100 100
QDD EV NO6/NO8 Holdgo 1 Limiten Uw Active Jrdinary 100 100
QDD EV NO6/NOB Holdeo 2 Limited UK Active Ordirary 100 160
QDD EV N0O6/NO8 Holdco 3 Limited UK Active Orcinary 100 100
QDD EV NO6/NO8 Holdco 4 Limited UK Active Qrdinary 100 100
QLD £V NO8 Holdco Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD EV NO8 Limsted UK Active Orainary 100 100
QDD EYV MO8 (395 Limited WK Active Qrdinary 100 100
QDD EV1 Investment UK Limited UK Dormant Ordinary 100 100
QDD £V2 Irvestment UK Limited UK  Dormant Ordinary 100 100
QDD Holdco Limited® Bvi Active Ordinary 100 100
QDD Lirmited BvI Active Ordinary 108 100
Stratford Village Development {GP) Limited UK Dormant Ordinary 100 100
Stratford village Development LPL Lirnited UK Dormant Ordinary 100 100
Stratforg village Development LP2 Lirmited UK Dormant Ordinary 100 106
Stratford Village Development Partnership UK Active Ordinary 100 100
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Notes to the financial statements continued

37. Subsidiaries continued

Country of Class of 2022 2021
Subsidiaries of Get Living PLC Incorporation Status sharas heid ownership % ownarship %
Stratford Village Property Holdings 1 Limited UK  Deormant Qrdinary 100 100
Stratford Village Property Holdings 2 Lirmited UK  Dormant Qrdinary 100 100
SVDP Limitedd UK Dormant Qrainary 100 100
East Village Management Lirited UK Active Limited by 58 58
guarantee
DV4 613 Limited® BvI Active Qrdinary 100 100
Dv4 Eadon Co. Limited BvI Active Crdinary 100 100
Dv4 Eadon Development UK Limited UK Active Crdinary 100 100
Elephant Central Management Limited UK Active Limited by 100 100
guarantee
Tribeca Square (Commercial) 175 Co. Limited BvI Active Ordinary 100 100
Tribeca Square (Commercial) 990 Co. Limited BVI Active Ordinary 100 100
Tribeca Square (Mawes House) 175 Co. Limited Bvi Active Crdinary 100 100
Tribeca Square (Mawes House) 990 Co. Limited Bv! Active Crdinary 100 100
Tribeca Square {(Portchester House) 175 Co. Limited BVI Active Crdinary 100 100
Tribeca Sguare (Portchester House) 990 Co. Limited Bwv! Active Ordinary 100 100
Tribeca Sguare (Raglan and Tantallon House) BVI Active Crdinary 100 100
175 Co. Limited
Tribeca Sqguare (Raglan and Tantallon House) 3V1 Active Ordinary 100 100
990 Co. Limited
Get Living Group {Middlewoacd Locks) Topco Limited BvVI Active Ordinary 100 100
(Previously Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks)
Phase 1 Topco Co. Limited)®
Get Lving Group (Middlewood Locks) BvVI Active Oordinary 100 100
Phase 1 Hoidco Co. Limited
Get Living Group (Middlewood _ocks) Bv! Active Ordinary 100 100
Phase 1 Co. Limited
Get Living Group {(Middlewood tocks) Phase 1 999 Bwv! Active Qrdinary 100 100
Holdco Co. Limited
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) | 999 BV’ Active Ordinary 100 100
Co. Limited
Get Living Group (Middlewcod Locks) Phase 1 175 BVI Active Ordinary 100 100
Holdco Co. Limiteq
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) | 175 Co. Limited BV Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) Reversionary BvI Active Ordinary 100 100
Co. Limited
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) F Reversionary BVI Active Ordinary 100 100
Co. Limited
Get Living Group {Middlewood Locks) J Reversionary BvI Active Qrdinary 100 100
Co. Limited
MWL Estate Maragement Limited UK Active  Limited by 100 160
guarantee
Get Living (Middlewood Locks) Phase 2 Topco Limited BvI Active Ordinary 100 100
(Previously Get Living Group (Midalewood _ocks)
Holdco Co. Limited)
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) Co. Limited BvI Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) Residential BV Active Qrdinary 100 100
Co. Limited
Get Living (Middlewood Lacks) Phase 2 Hoideco 8vi Active Orchinary 100 100
Co. Limited
Get Living (Middiewood Locks) Phase 2 Co. Limited BvI Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living (Middlewood Locks) Developments Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living (MWL) One Limited Uik Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living (MWL) Two Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) Phase 2 999 UK Active Ordinary 100 100

Holdco Limited
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37. Subsidiaries continued

Country of Class of 2027 2021
Subsidiaries of Get L ving PLC incorgoration Status shares hald ownership % awnership %
Geat Living Group (Middlewcod Locks) G 999 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) H 999 Lirmited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) Phase 2 L/5% UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Heldco Limited
Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) G 175 Limited UK Active Crdinary 100 100
Get Living Group (Middlewood | ocks) H 175 Limited UK Active Crdinary 100 100
GL Lewisham Holdco Limited* Jersey Active Ordinary 100 100
GL Lewisham Holdco 1 Limited UK Active Crdinary 100 100
GL Lewisham Holdco 2 | imited UK Active Crdinary 100 100
GL Lewisham D1 Hetdeo Limited Uk Active Crdinary 100 100
GL Lewisham D1 250 Limited UK Active Crdinary 100 100
GL Lew:sham C Holdco Limited UK Active Crdinary 100 100
GL Lewisham C 250 Limited UK Active Crdinary 100 100
GL Lewisham D2 Heldeo Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
GL Lewisham D2 250 Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
GL Lewisham £ Holdco Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
GL Lewisham £ 250 Lirmited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
GL Lewisham Common Parts Limited UK Active COrdinary 100 100
Gi Lewisham Development UK Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Go Lewisham Gateway Management Limited UK Active Limited by 100 100

guarantee
GL E&C Holdeco Limiteg* Jersey Active Qrdinary 100 100
GL Elephant Two (Holdeo) Limited Jersey Active Crdinary 100 100
Elephant & Castle Development UK Limited UK Active Ordinary 100 100
Elephant & Castle Properties Co. Limited BvI Active Ordinary 100 100
Elephant & Castle 990 Un Co Limited UK Dormant COrdinary 100 100
Elephant & Castle Properties Limited UK Actve Ordinary 100 100
Elephant Three (Holdcg) Limited BvI Actwve Ordinary 100 100
Elephant Three Development UK Lirmited UK Dormart Ordinary 100 100
Elephant Three Properties Limited BWvI Active Ordinary 100 100
E&C Manco Limited UK UK Lirmited by 100 100
guarantee

rrectly owned by Get Living PLC

** Newly ircorporated dunimg the penod ended 31 Decemoer 2022
Ownership % 15 equal to the voting rights held.

Subsidiaries have the following registered offices:

UK incorporated: 6th Floor Lansdowne House, Berkeley Sqguare, London W1J 6ER.

British Virgin Islands incorporated: Craigmuir Cambers, PO Box 71, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands.

Jerssy incorporated: 47 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey JE1 OBD.

Exceptions to the above UK incorporations:

East Village Management Limited: Websters, 12 Melcombe Place, Marylebone, London NW1 620

38. Subsidiary audit exemption

The following subsidiary entities have taken exemption from the requirements relating to the audit of therr individuai financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 by virtue of section 479A of the Comparies Act 2006 and the exempticn

contaned therain. Accordingly the Company has guaranteed the obhgations of each of its subsidiary undertakings.

Subsid aries of Get Living PLC

Registration nrumber

Country of incorporation

QDD EV NOB/NO8 Holdco 1 Limited
QDD Athletes Village UK Limited
Stratford Village Development (GP) L.mited

09504426
07503926
06583350

UK
UK
UK
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Company statement of financial position

2022 2021
Notes £m €m
Non-current assets
Investments In subsidiaries 7 866.2 904.7
Loans to subsidiaries 0 409.% 3500
Total non-current assets 1,275.5 1,241.2
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 9 74.3 371
Cash and cash equivalents 0.5 1.9
Total current assels 74.8 380
Total assets 1,350.3 1,280.2
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 10 (9.2) (3.5)
Income tax payable (0.5) (0.7)
Loans and borrowings 11 (9.6) —
Total current liabilities ¢19.3) 4.2)
Net assets 1,331.0 1,276.0
Equity
Share capital 12 1.0 1.0
Distributable reserve 12 783.6 783.6
Cther equity reserves 13 589.3 541.3
Retained deficit (42.9) (45.9)
1,331.0 1,276.0

Total equity

The Company profit for the year was £70m (2027 £78m). There was no other comprehensive :ncome in the year or prior period.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors for 1ssue on 27 April 2023 and were signed on 1ts behalf by

Vames Bacdle

James Boadle
Director
27 April 2023

Company registration no 11532492
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Company statement of changes in equity

Share Retained Disrinutable Other equity Total

capital earnings reserve reserve equity

Notes £m £m £€m £m £m

At 1 January 2021 10 (57.7) 783.6 239.4 966.3
Total comprehensive profit for the year — 7.8 — - 78
Other eguity contnbulions 13 - - — 301.9 301.9
At 31 December 2021 1.0 (49.9) 783.6 541.3 1.276.0
Total comprehensive profit for the year — 7.0 - — 7.0
Other equity contributions 13 — — — 48.0 48.0
At 31 December 2022 1.0 (42.9) 783.6 589.3 1,331.0
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Notes forming part of the Company financial statements

1. Statement of compliance with FRS 101

The Parent Company financial staternents of Get Living PLC (the "Company™) for the year ended 31 December 2022 were authorised
for 1ssue by the Board of Directors on 27 April 2023 and the Statement of Financial Pasition was signed on the Beard's behalf by
James Boadle These Parent Company financial statements were prepared In accordance with Fmancial Repeorting Standard 101
"Reduced Disclosure Framework” (FRS 10T)

2. Basis of preparation

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. The financial staterments are presented m
miltions of Sterling (Em) and all values are rounded to the nearest hundred thousand Sterling (£0.1m), except where otherwise
indicated The financial staterments have been prepared for the year ended 31 Decamber 2022, with the comparative period
being the year ended 31 December 2021,

See note 1to the Group financial statements for general information about the Company

The Company applies consistent accounting poiicies, as applied by the Group. To the extent that an accounting policy s relevant to
both Group and Company financtal statements, refer to the Group financial staternents for disclosure of the accounting policy (see
notes 2. 3. and 4 In the Group accounts). Accounting policies that apply to the Company only are included as appropriate (see note 3)

The Company has used the exemption granted under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 that allows for the non-disclosure
of the income statement of the Parent Company.

The Company cid rot have items to be reported as other cormprehensive inceme; therefore, no Statement of Comprehensive
Income was prepared,

The Company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptiors under FRS 10T

= the requirements of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments. Disclosures - the management of firancial risk disclosures including managerment
of creait, iguidity ana market nsk and Interest rate sensitvity analysis;

the reguirements of paragraphs 91-99 of IFRS 13 Fair Vaiue Measurement - disclosures around fair values of assets and liabihties;

the requirernents of paragraphs 10(d), 16, 1M1 and 134-136 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financiai Statements - presentation of statement
of cash flows, explic:t and unreserved staterment of compilance with International Financial Reporting Standards and disclosures
of the Company's objectives, policies and processes for managirg capitai;

« the reguirements of IAS 7 Staternent of Cash Flows;

» the requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of |1AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estirmates and Errors - disclosure
of new account:ng standards and interpretations that have been 1ssued but are not yet effective,

» the requirements of paragraphs '7 and 18A of |AS 24 Related Party Disclosures - discliosure relating to compensation of key
management personnel; and

= the requirements in IAS 24 Reiated Party Disclosures to disclose related party transactions entered :nto between the parent
and wholly owned subsidiaries.

Where required, equivalent disclosures are given ir the consolidated financial statements of Get Living PLC, i which the Company
s consolidated.

Going concern

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared or a going concern basis The Directors have referred to cash
flow forecasts for the period to 30 June 2024 in order to assess the requirements of the Company over that penod For further
information see note 2 in the Group financial statements

Judgements and estimates

The praparation of bnancial statements in conformity with FRS 107 requires the use of critical judgements, estimates and assurnptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses Estimates and assumptions
concerning the future and the accounting results of those estimates may not equal the related actual results.

The areas involving a higher degree of Judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significart to
the financial statements, are disclosed in the relevant notes forming part of these financiai statements as discussed below

Key estimates

Investments in subsidiaries

Get Living PLC carries out an annual impairment review on the value of investments held by the Cornpary. The underlying net assets
of the subsidiaries are deemed to be the net recoverabie amounts. Where the carrying value of an nvestrment in a subsidiary exceeds
Its recoverable amount, an impairment 1s récognised. Further nformation 1s included in note 7

Discount rate

The Company enters into iong-term interest free :0ans with subsidiary entities. These loans are measuread at fair value, represented
by the present value of future cash flows discounted at the market rate of interest at the date of the intial drawdownr. In determining
the market rate of interest, management considers interest rates which could be achieved or external funding, and other market
obsarvations. Further .nformation Is Included in note 8.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Investments in subsidiaries

investments in subsidianes are shown at cost fess prowvision for impairment. impairment exists when the carrying value of an :nvestment
N a subsiciary exceeds its recoverable amourt, which 1s the higher of 5 fawr value less costs of disposal and its vaiue In use.

b) Interest-free intercompany loans

Recaivables arising fram interest-free intorcompany loans are recognised when the Company becomes party to the related
cortracts and are measured intially at the farr value represented by the present value of future cash flows discounted at market
interest rate. An other equity reserve increasing the cost of investrment in subsidiary 1s recognised, being the difference between
the above and the cansideration advanced,

After intial recognition, interest-free intercompany loans are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The finance income 1s recognised in the Staterment of Comprehensive Income.

c) Current tax
Current tax assets and lLiabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.
The tax rates and tax laws Jsed to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, at the reporting date,

Current tax :s the expected tax payable cn any non-REIT taxable income for the pertod, using tax rates applicable at the
Statement of Financial Positron date, any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years, and any charges ansing from
the requirements tc meet the REIT regime rules

4, Taxation

2022 2021
£m £m

Current tax credit (0.3) 0.2
Deferred tax charge - —
Tax {credit)/charge for the year (0.3) 0.2
Factors affecting the tax (credit)/charge for the year
Profit before taxation 6.7 8.0
Profit before taxation mulupled by main rate of UK corporation tax of 19% (2021: 19%) 1.3 1.5
Effect of:
Imputed nterest not deduct:ble for tax purposes (6.8) (3.8
Imparment of investments 5.1 1.7
Lasses Not recognised -_ 0.3
Transfer pricing adjustrment 0.4 =
Interest cover ratio charge 0.5 0.8
Adjustrments in respect of prior periods (0.8) (0.5)
Tax (credit)/charge (0.3) 0.2
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Notes forming part of the Company financial statements

-
continued
5. Auditor remuneration
2022 2021
£000 £'000
Sarvices provided by the Company’s auditor:
Audit fees - audit of Parent Company accounts 4 5
Non-audit services:
Other assurance services - interim review 20 20
Tax advisory services 20 63
Tax complisnce services ar2 327
516 415
6. Employees and Director remuneration
Refer to note 8 of the consoiidated financial staterments for Director remuneration disclosures.
The Company had one empioyee during the year (2021 one).
7. Investment in subsidiaries
2022 2021
£m £mr
Opening baiance 904.7 808.7
Other eguity contribut:on <o subsidiary undertakings 3.3 105.0
True-up of farr valug discounting (15.0) -
Impairment of 1nvestments (26.8) (9.0}
Closing batance 866.2 904.7

The true up of the fair value discounting relates to the correction of the imitial discounting provided on loans to subsidiaries
n 2021 The directors do not consider thus correction to be material to the financial statements and as such, no prior year
restaternent has beer recorded Refer to note 8 for the corresponding entry :micans to subsidiaries

The Directors believe that the carrying value of the :nvestments 1s supported by therr underiying net assats. After an assessment
of net recoverable amount. an mpairment of £26 8 (2021 £9.0m) has been made. Imparrments in the current year are primarily
due to far vaiue losses on the revaluation of investment property, resulting in a gecrease in the underiying net assats of the
Nvestments. The overall impact on the Group's consohdated results 1s £mil (20210 £n11).

2022 2021
Subs.diaries directly held by the Company: ownership % awnershio %
QDD Holdco Limited 100 100
V4 613 Limited 100 100
Get Living Group (Middiewood Locks) Topco Limited 100 100
GL Lewisham Holdco Limited 100 100
GL E&C Hoidco Limited 100 100

The fuil st of subsidiary undertakings of the Company and their details are set out 0 note 37 to the Group financial statements.
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8. Loans to subsidiaries

2022 2021
£m Em
Interest-free intercompany term loans:

Amounts due from Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) Topce Limited 146.9 133.7
Amounts due from GL Lewisharn Holdoo Limited 94.4 791
Amounts due from GL E&C Hotdco Limited 141.4 116.2
Amounts due from QDD Holdeco Limited 17.0 7.5

Interest-free intercompany loans repayable on demand:
Amounts due from GL E&C Holdco Limited 9.6 —
409.3 336.5

The Company has issued interest free term loans to its subsidiary entities In order to finance their operations The total
principal advanced 's discounted to present value using the market interest rate of 10%. The difference between the principal
advanced and its present value 1s recognised as an investment in subsidhary. Imputed interest 1s charged on the interest free
loan balance.

The interest free loan due from Get Living Group (Middlewood Locks) Topco Limited 1s a term ioan 1ssued in March 2019 with
further drawdowns in September 2021 and 1s repayable in March 2025

The interest free loan due from GL Lewisham Holdco Limited 1s a term loan ssued 'n Juiy 2020 with multiple further drawdowns
between July 2020 and December 2021 and 15 repayable in July 2026,

The interest free loar due from GL E&C Holdco Limited 's a term loan issued in August 2020 with multipte further arawdowns
between August 2020 and June 2022 and 1s repayabie in July 2025,

The interast free loan due from QDD Holdco Limited 1s a term ‘oan issued in December 2021, with further subseguent drawdowns
beyond that date, and i1s repavyable in December 2027

During the year the Company 1ssued an interest free loan to GL E&C Hoidco Limited which 1s repayable on demand (see note 11).

Reconcihation of movements during the year and cumulative totals

Get Liv ng Group GL L ewisham GL £&C QDo
(Middlewood i.ocks) Holdco Holdco Holdco
Topco Limited cirmited Limited Limited Total
Counterparty frm £m Em £m £m
Opening balance 133.7 79.1 116.2 7.5 336.5
True-up of farr vaiue discounting — 6.6 5.7 2.7 150
issue of interest free loan — — 8.7 6.9 15.6
Fair value adjustment on issue
of interast free loan (note 7) - — (2.2) 1.1 (3.3
'mputed nterest iIncome 13.2 8.7 13.0 1.0 259
Closing balance 146.9 24.4 141.4 17.0 399.7
Cumulative totals
Drawdown 179.8 1208 177.0 20.2 507.8
Far value adjustment on ssue (56.1) (49.6) (62.3) (6.9) (174.9)
Liability recognised on drawdown 123.7 81.2 114.7 13.3 3329
Imputad interest accrued 23.2 13.2 26.7 3.7 66.8
Total liability 146.9 94.4 141.4 17.0 3998.7

The true up of the farr value discounting relates to the correction of the mtiai discourting provided on loans to subsidiaries
N 2021 The directors do not consider this correction to be material *o the finarcial statements and as such, ne pnior year
restatement has beer recorded. Refer to note 7 for the corresponding entry in investment :in subsidiaries.

The Company has considered the recoverabihty of the ioans to subsidiaries at the reperting date based or the expected credit
Ioss model. The expectied credit ioss calculated 1s immaterial to the Company.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes forming part of the Company financial statements

-
continued

9. Trade and other receivables
2022 2021
£m £m
Trade and cther receivables 0.3 G.1
Prepayments 0.1 —_
Arngunts duc frorm subsndiary under lakiigs 73.8 37.0
74.3 7.1

Amounts due fram subsidiary undertakings are unsecured, interest free and are repayable on dermanrd, with balances expected to

be settled within twelve months of the Statement of Financial Position date. Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings includes
amounts due from multiple subsidiary undertakings and represents short term funding requirements and operational amounts
advanced in the hormal course of business. The Company has considered the recoverability of the amounts due from subsichary
undertakings at the reporting date based on the expected credit loss model The expected credit [oss calculated 1s immaternial to
the Company

10. Trade and other payables

2022 2021
Em £m
Other creditors 1.8 1.1
Armounts due to subsidiary undertakings 7.3 2.4
9.2 3.5
Amounts due 1o subsidiary undertakings are unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand
11. Loans and borrowings
2022 2021
£m £m
Loan from T3 Residenual Limited 9.6 -
9.6 —

Dunng the year a loan of £3.6m was received from T3 Residental Limited, an entity under common control The loan 1s repayable
on demand and 's not secured against ary of the Company or Group's assets. The ioan represents the advancement of a government
grant that was awarded to T3 Residential Limited to heip fund the development of affordabie housing at the Elephant and Castle
Town Centre Development. The Company in turn advanrced this furding to GL E&C Holdco L'mited as a subsidiary (see note 8).

12. Share capital and other reserves
Refer to note 27 of the conselidated financial statements for share capttal and other reserves disclosures

Total distributable reserves are the distributable reserve of £783.6m (2021 £783.6m) iess realised retained deficit of £42.9m
(2021 £49.9m)

13. Other equity reserves
For detalls or other equity reserves see note 25 1in the Group accounts,

14. Controlling parties
At 31 December 2022, Get Living PLC was Jointly controlled as follows

« by DOOR, SLP a iimited partnership registered and incorperated i Jersey:
* by QD UK Holdings L2 a imited partnershup registered and incorporated in Scotland, and
» by Stichting Depositary APG Strategic Real Estate Pool, a pension fund asset manager based in the Netherlards

Subsequent to the year end QD UK Holdings LP, one of the Group's controling parties, exchanged on a transaction to dispose
of its entire shareholding In Get Living PLC to Aware Super, an Australian superannuation fund.

15. Contingent liabilities
For details on contingent Labiiities see note 32 1n the Group accounts. There are no other contingent iabilities that impact
the Company.

16. Subsequent events
For details on subsequent events see note 36 in the Group accounts There are no other subsequent events that impact the Compary.
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Glossary of terms

Assured Shorthold Tenancies ("AST”) are the agreements used
by iandlords to ‘et res'dent al properties to pr vate tenants.

Inherent Risk s untreatea risk without any mit gating actions
ar contrais.

Building Research Establishment Environmental Assessment
Method (“BREEAM*) assesses the sustainability of bul dings
against a range of criter a.

Build to Rent (“BtR™) s private rented res:aential assets, built
and designed specifically for renting

Company and/or parent s Get Living PLC.

Direct property costs comprise ground rents payabie under head
eases, vo.d costs, other direct irrecoverable property expenses,
rent review fees and va uat on fees.

DOOR is Daiancey Oxford Residential, a co-nvestment vehicie.

Earnings before Interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
(“"EBITDA™) s a metric used to evaluate a company’s
operating performance.

Earnings per ordinary share from continulng operations (“EPS")
's the profit attributable to equity helgers of the Parent divided by
the weghteo average number of shares in 'ssue during the per-od.

European Public Real Estate Assoclation (“EPRA") s 5 real estate
industry body, which has 1ssued Best Pract ce Recommendat.ons
in order to provide consistency ang transparency in real estate
report ng across Europe Get Living has not eary agopted the
new EPRA Best Practice Recormmendations ("BPRs").

EPRA cost ratlo is the rat o of net overheads and operating
expenses aga nst grass rental income (with both amounts

exc uaing ground rents payable). Net overheads and operating
expenses relate to all administrative and operat.ng expenses,
net of any service fees, recharges or other ncome specifically
rtended to cover overhead and property expenses.

EPRA earnings Is the profit after taxat.on exclug'ng nvestment
and deveiopment oroperty ravaluations, gams/losses on disposals,
changes in the far value of financiai instruments ana assocated
close-Gut costs and therr related taxat on.

EPRA vacancy rate s, as a percentage, the ERV of vacant space in
the Graup's property portfolio divded by ERV of the whaole portfolic.

Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG") arc the three
key factors in measuring sustamability,

Estimated rental value (“ERV™) s the external Vaiuers opimon as to the
open mMarket rent which, on the gate of vawat.on, could reasonably te
expected to be obtained on a new ietting or rent review of a property.

GHG ‘s greenhouse gas emissions.

GRESB s the leaaing ESG benchmark for real estate ana
infrastrycture investments across the world,

INREV s the European Association for Investors in Non-Listed
Real Fstate.

Interest cover s the number of times net interest payabie 's
covered by net rental iIncome.

Interest Cover Ratlo (“ICR”) charge s applcabie to UK REITs
when property profits do not pass the leverage test, being 1.25
times the property financing costs.

Interest rate cap s a contract to receive payments when interest
rates are above a certain threshod, and 1s generally used to
manage exposure to fluctuations In Interest rates.

Interest rate swap s a contract to exchange fixed payrments for
floating payments 'nked to an interest rate, and 's general'y used
to manage exposure to fluctuations in interest rates.

Loan to value (“LTV") s the rat.c of net debt to the total value of
investment and tragng property.

Mark to market {("MTM*) s the difference between the book value
of an asset or liabl ity and ts market value

Net debt s total borrowings, excluding loan issue costs, 'ess
unrestricted cash

Net promoter score (“NPS") measures customer experience and
predicts business growth. This proven metric provides the core
measurement for customer experience management globally.

The Net Promaoter Score can range from a low of -100 (if cvery
customer is unhapoy) to a righ of 100 (f every customer is happy
ta refer cthers).

Net rental income s the rentai INcome recaivable in the perad
after payment of direct property ¢osts. Net rental .ncome s
guotea on an accounting basis.

Portfolio value includes both investment and trading oroperty

Property Income Distribution (“P1D”) s the requirea distribut or
of income as dividends under the REIT regime. It I1s caiculated as
90% of exempted net income.

PRS ‘s the UK private rented sector

Real Estate Investment Trust (“REIT") s a listed property
company which qualifies for and has etectec into a tax regme,
which exempts qualify ng UK profits, arsing from property

rental INcome and ga ns an nvaestment property aisposals, from
corporation tax, but which has a numper of specific reauirements.

Rent revlews take place at intervals agreed 10 the iease and ther
purpose Is usualy to adjust the rent to the current market level at
the review date.

Gross rental Income s the gross account ng rert receivable,

RICS s the Royal Insttut on of Chartered Surveyors

Group s Get Lowving PILC ana its subsidiaries.

SECR ‘s Streamiined Energy & Carbon Report ng.

IFRIC 5 the IFRS Interpratat ons Comm ttee Updates

IFRS s International Financ.al Reporting Standaras.

Sterling Overnight Index Average (“"SONIA”) s the effective
reference for overnight Indexed swaps for unsecured transactiors
in the Sterling market.
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FURTHER INFORMATION

APPENDIX: SECR Reporting Methodology

The Companias (Directors’ Report) and Limited Liability
Partnerships (Energy and Carbon Report) Regulations

2018, also referred to as Streamlined Enargy and Carbon
Reporting {SECR), reguires all guoted companies, “large”
unguoted companes and LLPS to report their UK energy use,
assoclated Scope 1and 2 emissions, an intensity metric and,
where applicable. gtobal energy use in their Annual Reports.
Get Lving PLC has followed the GHG Repoerting Protocol -
Corporate Standard] for company reporting to identify and
report relevant energy and GHG emissions which are material
for the compary for the year ending 31 December 2022

Data 1s included for the year 31 December 2021 to enable
comparison with the previous yvear.

Get Living has considered the maternality of environmental
impacts arising from its operations ang identified GHG emissions
{generated via energy use) for Scope 1 and 2 to be the most
significant. This assessment was based on financial spend and
the ability for Get Living to control impacts Although Scope 3
2missions reporting s voluntary, Get Living beheves the impacts
from resident’s energy use 1S material and has also included
the related GHG emissions In this report. Other areas, such as
water, waste, biodiversity and emissions to air, water and land
are deemed less material, however, some or all Impacts may
be reported in the future.

Scope

Get Living PLC has chosen to report GHG emissions using the
Operational Cantrol approach for its orgarisational boundary
This boundary includes owned assets where the REIT, acting
as the landlord. 1s directly respensible for electricity and/or
gas supplies and/or has control of ar conditioning eguipment.
Aaditronally, Get Livirg has included any scope 3 material
sources of emissions from owned assets, such as resident’s
electrcity use n the reporting scope, where gata s avallable
Emissions from residential umts under control of Triathion
Homes on a long leasehold agreement are excluded, on the
basis that these units are rot under the operaticra: control

of Get Living PLC

Get Living PLC has considerad the seven main GHGs covered
by the Kyoto protoccel. mncludng:

= Carben dioxide (CO))

* Methane {(CTH,)

¢ Nitrous oxide (N,O)

¢ Hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs)
» rertlucrocarbons (PFCs)

« Suiphur Hexafluoride (5F,)
» Nitrogen Trnfluorde (NF,)

Total GHG ermissions are reported In terms of carbon dioxide
equivalent (CO_e). Convers:on factors have been sourcea from
the UK Government's Greenhouse Gas Reporting Factors for
Company Reporting (2021 and 2022)

Tre following sources of emissions have been considerea
as part of this review:

Scope 1

» Direct ermissions from controlled gas bailers i energy
centres at Elephant Central New Maker Yards (converted
from kWh usage).

« Busiress travel through company owned vehicles
(excluded as emissions from vehicle use 1s negligible for
the reporting panod).

« Get Living PLC has chosen not to report fugitive emissions,
e g. from refrigerant leaks

Scope 2

+ Indirect emissions from eiectricity purchased by Get Living
PLC and consumed within real estate assets owned by the
company (converted from kWwh usage)

» Indirect emissions from district heating purchased by Get
Living PLC and consumed within iandlord controlled areas
of real estate assets owned by the company (converted
from k\Wh usage). Emissions have been apportioned
between landlord and tenant use on a floor area basis

s Greenhguse Gas (GHG) emissions from electricity and
district heating (Scope 2) are reported according to the
‘location-based’ approach,

Scope 3

« Indirect emissions from electricity purchased by Get Living
PLC assets residents and consumed within real estate assets
owned by the company {(converted from kWh usage)

.

tndirect emissions from district heating purchased by Get
Living PLC and consumed within residential units of real
astate assets owned by the company {convertad from kwWh
usage) Emissions have been apportioned between the
landlord and tenant use on a floor area basis

Emissions within Operational Control

As a property company, the majorty of Get Living PLC
emissions anse through assets that are owned and leased.
At mult-let properties, Get Living PLC acting as the landlord,
has control and influence over the whole bullding and/or
shared services, external hghting and void spaces. In this
reporting year, Get Living PLC was responsible for Scope 1
and/or Scope 2 emissions at the assets held by entities histed
in note 37 to the fnancial statemants All Get Living PLC's
assets are located in the UK.

Carbon Offsets
No carbon offsets were purchased during the
reporting penod.

Emissions outside of Operational Control

Get Living PLC 15 not dirgctly responsibie for any (3R
emissions/energy usage at single let/FRI assets nor at multi-let
assets where the tenant 1s counterparty to the energy contract
These ermissions form part of the wider vatue chain (Le. ‘Scope 37
emissions, which are currently monitored and reported only
for tenants energy use. Emissions from residential units unaer
control of Triathion Homes on a long leasehold agreement

are excluded, on the basis that these units are not urder

the aperational cortrol of Get Living PLC.

Baseline Year

A baseline year of 2021 has been selected to enable
comparison over time. The baseline year comprises energy/
GHG data from all the assets (where data has been reported).
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Intensity Ratios (Key Performance Indicator)

In addition to reporting refevant absolute GHG emissions

(by scope and per sector), Get Living PLC has chosen to
report intensity ratios, where approorate. The denormimator
determined to be most relevant to the business 15 square
metras of net lettable area The intensity ratio 15 expressed as

*» Energy kilowatt hours per metre square (net lettable area)
per year, or, kwWh/mi/yr

» GHG kilograms carbonr dioxide eguivalent per metre sguare
(net lettable area) per year. or, kgCO,e/m?/yr.

Like-for-like Reporting
Assets are included within hke-for-like and intensity analysis
where each of the following conditions 1s met:

assets owned for two consecutive years,

* no maor renovation or refurbishment has taken place
Le. affecting more than 50% of the buillding by area or

number of occupants,

*

at least 24 months data 1s available; and

buildings have maintained at least 75% occupancy In the
last 24 months

New Maker Yards Phase 1 tenart electricity has been excluded
from like-for-like due to data avallabihty, whilst New Maker
Yards Phase 2 and Port'ands Place have been excluded from
like-for-like due to the development works being completed
during the 2021 reporting year

Normalisation Factors

Normalisation of intensity ratios and like-for-like data has beenr
completed to account for year-on-year changes in arnual
temperatures Annual gas usage data for 2022 has been
compared to, and normalised against, the UK degree day
ratio betweer 2021 and 2022 Degree days data i1s sourced
from www degreedays.net using the closest and most reliable
weather statjon to each asset.

As 2022 was a warmer year than 2021, this normalhsation
presents ap increase n like-for-hke degree day adjusted
ermissions and energy consumption where absolute energy
consumption s unchanged This reflects that during a warmer
year the energy required o heat a space should be reduced,
and therefore the consumption in the warmer year 1s adjusted
upwards to negate the impact of the warmer weather.

No further adjustments are considered for this Annual Repiort,
however, further evaluation concerning occupancy and/or
aoperation hours may be considered in the future.

Data Collection and Validation

Data has been sourced from Get Living's Property Managers

and therr utikty brokers Data s held within the sustainabiity

data platform SIERA which 1s used as the basis for data checking
and validation In summary, the applied process includes

1. Confirmation of asset location and scope of landlora
impacts (Scopes 1and 23

2 'nput of Scope T and Scope 2 data (provided by Property
Managers and appointed brokers)

3 Completon of data accuracy checks

4 Intial review ang/or approval of data (by Property Managers)

Furthermore, energy use within the assets I1s actively tracked
and reported agamst an an annual basis.

EVORA has reviewed the accuracy of data as determined by
actual or estimated kWh usage. As a percentage of the total
kwWh reported, actual/estimated data was reported on the
following pasis tor 2021 ang 2022

+ Scope 1 (gas) 96% actual data/4% estimated
s Scope 7 {(electrcity): 99% actual data/1% estimated
= Scope 3 (residents electnicity) 99% actual data/1% estimated

Note that residential eiectricity has been excluded at New
Maker Yards Phase 2 Data is only avallable for residential
urits on a move In / move out basis and, due to the age of
the asset, data I1s currently unavaiiable.

Where data estimations have been calculated, the following
approach has been undertaken:

Electricity: Average dally consumption rate calculated from
actual data received In same year and apportioned over the
data gap period,

Gas' Actual gas consumption for the same months at
Middlewood Locks Phase 1 usea to fill gaps 'n Middlewood
Locks Phase 2, uplifted for floor area differences

District Heating No district heating estimations have
been reguired

Scope 1 data {gas) s based on whole asset data as the
landlord procures the main gas supply to the heat plants
which 15 then provided and recharged to residents through
heat meters

Scope 2 and scope 3 district heating has been apportioned
between landlord and terant space on a floor area basis to
better reflect the consumption of heat at the asset.

ENERGY EFFICIENCY ACTIONS

Data quality ard granularity 1s a key focus i prioritising
asset-level energy efficiercy and sustainability measures.
Throughout 2022, asset performance was monitored through

a ‘data guardian' process Get Living uses SIERA to collect and
validate energy and GHG ermission data (as well as water ana
waste) for ali assets where the pertfolio has operational control.
A quarterly dashboard enables data trends to be visualised,
allowing for improved ergagement with property management
teams to understand and act upon consumption trends. Data
Aquality fras been improved through ths process, for cxample
ensuring that district heating at East Village can be included in
this year’s report, having been excluded last year

The value of this process will continue to Improve as data guality
and granulanty improves, aided by a smart meter piot process
has been implemented for automated data collection at the
ndividual unit-level, with a view to roling this out on a wider
basis in future reporting years This automation should also
lead to improved access to tenant data. Additiorally, Get
Living has established energy reduction targets across all

the assets The guarterly monitoring of data wili better allow
progress against these targets to be monritored.

Further to thes, Get Living has carried out traming for all Estate ard
Sroperty Managers on ESG topics, including rmonitorning of energy
usage, reporting of energy data and improvement opportunities.

Annual Report 2022

109



Directors

Mabel Tar

James Alexander Boadle
Rafael Torres Villalba

Secretary
Crastbhridge UK Lirmited

Company registration number
1532492

FURTHER INFORMATION

Company in

Get Livin
1o

formation

Registered office

6th Floor Lansdowne House
Berkeley Square

London

W1J BER

United Kingdom

Auditor

Ernst & Young LLP

1 More London Place
London

SE1 2AF

United Kingdom

g PLC



Get Living PLC's commitment to envirormental issues 15 reflected m this Arrual Recort,
which has ceen prirted on Premier kHtemeanrts Fire, an FSC cerfified mate~al

This document was printed oy Opal X using its environmental grint tecnnology, whicr
minirmises the impact of primting on the envirorment, witn 39% of gry waste diverted
from landfll Both the orinter and the paper mill are registered to 1ISO 14001



